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Company Profile 
Optimus Finance Limited (‘OFL') - Formerly known as Transpek Finance Ltd. - was incorporated under the Companies Act, 

1956 (erstwhile Companies Act) in the year 1991 having its Registered Office at Vadodara, Gujarat, India. In the year 1995, 

OFL became public listed company having its shares listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). 

OFL is registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC- ND) and 

having a Certificate of Registration. 

At present, OFLis concentrating mainly on loan, investment and trading in marketable securities and mutual funds. 

Asa strategic move, OFL has set up its subsidiary(ies) as follows: 

Subsidiaries 

  118 Independent Auditors’ Report on the 

Consolidated Financial Statements   124 Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Corporate Information 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Mr. Dipak Raval 
Chairman & Whole time Director 

Mr. Vinay Pandya 
Independent Director 

Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Milind Joshi 

Secretarial Auditors 

H. M. Mehta & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries, Vadodara 

Registered Office 

504A, OZONE, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, 

Vadi-Wadi, Vadodara-390003, Gujarat. 

Phone: +91 - 265 - 232 5321 

Email: info@optimusfinance.in 

Website: www.optimusfinance.in 

CIN: L65910GJ1991PLC015044 

Annual Reports 2023-24 

Ms. Divya Zalani 
Independent Director 

Mr. Rahil Thaker 
Independent Director 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Ms. Divya Prajapati 
up to 31st January 2024 

Ms. Krati Gupta 
w.e.f 18th March 2024 

Statutory Auditors 

Shah Mehta and Bakshi 
Chartered Accountants, Vadodara 

Bankers 

Axis Bank Limited | Federal Bank Limited 

Yes Bank Limited 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent Branch Office 

Link Intime India Private Limited 

C-101, Embassy 247, LBS Marg, 

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai — 400083. 

Phone: 022 - 4918 6000 

Fax: +91 - 22 - 49186060 

Email: mumbai@linkintime.co.in 

Website: www.linkintime.co.in 

“Geetakunj”, 

1, Bhakti Nagar Society, 

Behind Abs Tower, Old Padra Road, 

Vadodara - 390015. 

Phone: 0265 - 3566 768 

Email: vadodara@linkintime.co.in 

Website: wwwinkintime.co.in 
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Maximus International Limited (MIL) 

MIL was incorporated on 22nd December 2015, under the 

Companies Act, 2013, having Corporate Office at Vadodara. 

Maximus Group is a manufacturer and distributor of Lubricants, 

Lube Base Oils and other petro-chemical products used in 

industries such as automotive, metal working, refrigeration, 

electrical, paint & ink industries. Maximus group's consolidated 

manufacturing capacity for lubricants and _ specialty 

oils/chemicals is 18,000 KL p.a. MIL has two Wholly Owned 

Subsidiaries- Maximus Global FZE, UAE - (‘MGF') and MX Africa 

Limited, Kenya - (‘MXAL’). MIL conducts its manufacturing 

activity through their two step-down subsidiaries (a) Maximus 

Lubricants LLC, UAE - (‘MLL’) (subsidiary of Maximus Global FZE) 

and (b) Quantum Lubricants (E.A.) Limited — (‘QLL') (Wholly 

Owned Subsidiary of MX Africa Limited). The group strives to 

maintain high standards in terms of quality and service thus 

strengthening its position and ensuring client retention. 

Stepdown Subsidiaries 

MAXIMUS GLOBAL FZE (MGF) 

MGF is a wholly owned subsidiary of Maximus 

International Limited (MIL). MGF is located at United 

Arab Emirates (UAE) and registered with Hamriyah 

Free Zone Authority, Sharjah. MGF is engaged in 

Marketing & Export of specialty, industrial and 

automotive lubricants. 

Manufacturing Subsidiaries 

MAXIMUS LUBRICANTS LLC (MLL) 

MLL, based in UAE, is a subsidiary of Maximus Global 

FZE. MLL has state-of-the-art manufacturing unit in Ras 

Al Khaimah, UAE. MLL has highly trained professional 

team and a robust distribution network. 

Maximus Infra Ventures Limited (MIVL) 

MIVL was incorporated on 11th July 2024 under the 

Companies Act, 2013, having Corporate Office at 

Vadodara. MIVL shall capitalize on growth 

opportunities in the dynamic real _ estate, 

infrastructure, and construction sector. This 

strategic move will enhance the Company's agility 

and strengthen its customer-centric approach, 

positioning it for sustained success in these 

markets. 

MX AFRICA LIMITED (MXAL) 

MXAL, wholly owned subsidiary of Maximus International Limited (MIL), is located at 

Nairobi, Kenya. MXAL is Marketing & Distribution entity for specialty, industrial and 

automotive lubricants, specialty chemicals and other value-added products.The 

primary focus is on East Africa, however other African Countries are also being 

pursued. Any other Export opportunity beyond Africa could also be catered subject 

to Logistics and Statutory feasibility. 

QUANTUM LUBRICANTS (E.A.) LIMITED (QLL) 

QLL, wholly owned subsidiary of MX Africa Limited, is located at Nairobi, Kenya. 

Quantum Lubricants Limited has a manufacturing facility for specialty, industrial and 

automotive lubricants, specialty chemicals and other value-added products. These 

products are marketed in Kenya and exported to neighboring countries such as 

Uganda, Tanzania etc. 
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Group Structure 

Sukruti Infratech 

Private Limited (Promoter) 

Optimus Finance Limited 

  

  

  

Maximus International Maximus Infra Ventures Limited 

Limited (‘Subsidiary’) (‘Wholly Owned Subsidiary’) 

Maximus Global MX Africa Limited 

FZE (MGF) (‘Wholly (MXAL) (‘Wholly 

Owned Subsidiary’) Owned Subsidiary’) 

Maximus Lubricants Quantum Lubricants (E.A.) 

LLC (MLL) Limited (QLL) (‘Wholly 

(‘Subsidiary’) Owned Subsidiary’) 
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Dear Shareholders, 

I hope this message finds you in good health and high spirits. I am pleased to share that your company 

continues to operate at a steady pace while exploring new avenues for growth. 

I am delighted to inform you that we have established a Wholly Owned Subsidiary, Maximus Infra Ventures 

Limited, which will enable us to capitalize on the growth opportunities in the dynamic real estate, 

infrastructure, and construction sectors. This strategic move will enhance the Company's agility, strengthen its 

customer-centric approach, and position us for sustained success in these markets. 

As we are all aware, Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) have undergone a significant transformation, 

becoming an integral part of India’s financial system. They have contributed immensely to infrastructure 

development, transportation, and employment generation. In response to these evolving dynamics, the 

Management is committed to formulating forward-looking plans that carefully consider both opportunities 

and potential challenges. 

Iam also pleased to update you on the financial performance of our subsidiary, Maximus International Limited 

(MIL). Despite a challenging environment, MIL has demonstrated consistent growth, with its total consolidated 

income rising to an impressive INR 108.8 crore. Moreover, the company has maintained steady growth in 

EBITDA and PAT. By surpassing the INR 100 crore milestone in consolidated revenue, MIL has not only achieved 

its FY24 targets but has also laid a solid foundation for an even brighter future. 

In conclusion, I wish to express my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders for your unwavering support and 

trust in our journey. Together, we will continue to explore new horizons, seize opportunities, and build a 

brighter future for your company. 

Yours sincerely, 

Dipak Raval 

Chairman & Whole-Time Director 

Annual Reports 2023-24 
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Notice 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty-third (33rd) Annual 
General Meeting of the Members of OPTIMUS FINANCE 
LIMITED will be held on Monday, the 30th day of 

September 2024 at 04:00 PM. through Video 
Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM") 

to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

Item No. 1: Adoption of the Audited Financial 

Statements as of 31st March 2024: 

To receive, consider and adopt the 

¢ Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the 
Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March 

2024 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and 
the Auditors’ thereon; and 

e Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March 
2024 and the Report of the Auditors’ thereon. 

Item No. 2: Appointment of Mr. Dipak Raval having 
DIN: 01292764 as a director liable to retire by rotation: 

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Dipak Raval having DIN: 
01292764 who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

Item No. 3: Increase in Remuneration of Mr. Dipak 

Raval, Whole time Director (DIN: 01292764): 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 

Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 

196, 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) read with Schedule V of 

the Act, and the Rules framed thereunder, including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof and the 

Articles of Association of the Company and subject to such 
other permissions, sanction(s) as may be required under 
the Act, if any, and in furtherance to the Special Resolution 
passed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company 
held on 30th September 2023 ("32nd AGM") for re- 

appointment of Mr. Dipak Raval (DIN: 01292764) as a 
Whole time Director of the Company and based on the 

recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (“NRC”) and the Board of Directors of the 

Company at their respective meetings held on 1st July 
2024, the consent of the Members of the Company, be and 
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is hereby accorded for revision in the remuneration 
payable to Mr. Dipak Raval, Whole time Director of the 

Company, as per the recommendations of the Board set 
out in the Explanatory Statement forming part of this 

Notice. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT save and except as aforesaid, 

the Special Resolution approved and passed by the 
Members in the 32nd AGM with respect to the re- 
appointment of Mr. Dipak Raval (DIN: 01292764) as a 
Whole time Director of the Company shall continue to 
remain in full force and effect with the liberty to the Board 
of Directors to alter, vary and modify the terms and 

conditions of the said remuneration, which shall not exceed 
the overall ceiling of the total managerial remuneration as 

provided under Section 197 and Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or such other applicable provisions or 

any amendments thereto, or such other limits as may be 
prescribed from time to time and as agreed to between the 
Board of Directors and as may be acceptable to Mr. Dipak 
Raval. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 
Company (including any Committee of Directors), Chief 
Financial Officer or Company Secretary of the Company, be 
and are hereby authorized severally to do all such acts, 

deeds and things and execute all such documents, 
instruments and writings as may be required and to 
delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any 

Committee of Directors to give effect to the aforesaid 
Resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT a certified copy of this 

resolution, duly signed by any of the Directors or Company 
Secretary or Chief Financial Officer of the Company, be 
forwarded to the concerned authorities / parties, as and 
when required.” 

Item No. 4: Approval for Material Related Party 
Transaction(s) for Financial Year 2025-26: 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following 

resolution as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 

till date ("SEBI Listing Regulations”), applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) read with Rules 

made thereunder, other applicable circulars, laws, statutory 
provisions, if any, including any statutory modification(s) or 
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amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 

being in force, the Company's Policy on Related Party 

Transactions, and subject to other approval(s), consent(s), 
permission(s) as may be necessary from time to time and 
based on recommendation and approval of the Audit 

Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, 
approval of Members be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors of the Company to enter/continue to 
enter into Material Related Party 
Transaction(s)/Contract(s)/Arrangement(s)/Agreement(s) 

including any modifications, alterations or amendments 
thereto, with its Related Parties namely (1) Maximus 

International Limited (MIL), (2) Sukruti Infratech Private 

Limited (SIPL), (3) MX Africa Limited (MX), (4) Maximus 

Global FZE (MGF), (5) Maximus Lubricants LLC (MLL), (6) 

Quantum Lubricants (E.A.) Limited (QLL), (7) Quebec 

Petroleum Resources Limited (Quebec), (8) SKG Energy PTE. 

Ltd. (SKG) with respect to (“i”) Providing/Availing Loan(s), 

Inter corporate Deposit(s), advance(s) or providing 

guarantee(s) or security(ies) for loan taken by Related Party 
and (9) Maximus International Limited (MIL), (10) Sukruti 

Infratech Private Limited (SIPL), (11) MX Africa Limited 

(MX), (12) Maximus Global FZE (MGF), (13) Maximus 

Lubricants LLC (MLL), (14) Quantum Lubricants (E.A.) 
Limited (QLL), (15) Quebec Petroleum Resources Limited 

(Quebec), (16) SKG Energy PTE. Ltd. (SKG), with respect to 

(‘ii’) Investment(s)/Redemption/Repayment/Conversion 

of Shares/Loan to meet business objectives 
/requirements/exigencies; being “Related Parties” within 
the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 
2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as detailed in the 

table(s) forming part of the Explanatory Statement 

annexed to this Notice on such term(s) and condition(s) as 

the Board of Directors may deem fit, provided that the said 
contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) so carried out 

shall be at arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of 
business of the Company during the Financial Year 2025- 
26; 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and 
Chief Financial Officer of the Company be and are hereby 
severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 
things as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and to 
take all such steps as may be required in this connection 
including but not limited to finalizing and executing 

necessary documents, contract(s), scheme(s), 
agreement(s) and such other documents as may be 
required, seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to 
the foregoing resolution for and on behalf of the Company, 
settling all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts 
whatsoever that may arise, delegating all or any of the 
powers herein conferred to any director(s), committee(s), 

executive(s), officer(s) or representatives(s) of the 

Company, and to take all such decisions powers herein 
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conferred to, without being required to seek further 

consent or approval of the members or otherwise to the 
end and intent that the members shall be deemed to have 
given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of 
this resolution; 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board 
in connection with any matter referred to or contemplated 
in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and 
confirmed in all respects.” 
  

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 13.08.2024 

By Order of the Board 

For Optimus Finance Limited 

SD/- 

Krati Gupta 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer         

07   

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements 

NOTES: 
1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide its 

General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 

2023, in relation to “Clarification on holding of Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing 

("VC") or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM") read with 

Circular 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, Circular No. 

14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated 

April 13, 2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 

January 13, 2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated 

December 14, 2021,Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 5, 

2022, and Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 

2022, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

("MCA’) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “MCA 

Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(‘SEBI') vide its Circular Nos. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 

2020, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 

January 15, 2021, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 

dated May 13, 2022, SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD- 

2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 = and 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated 

October 07, 2023 (collectively referred to as “SEBI 

Circulars"), permitted the companies to conduct their 

Annual General Meetings to be held on or before 

September 30, 2024 through VC/OAVM, without the 

physical presence of the Members at a common venue 

by following the guidelines specified in the said MCA 

Circulars. In compliance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and MCA Circulars, the 

33rd AGM of the Company is being held through 

VC/OAVM on 30th September 2024, at 04:00 PM. The 

venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the 

Registered Office of the Company situated at 504A, 

OZONE, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, Vadi-wadi, 

Vadodara-390003, Gujarat, India. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

(‘the Act'), a member entitled to attend and vote at the 

AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on 

his / her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of 

the company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to 

the MCA and SEBI Circulars through VC/OAVM, the 

requirement of physical attendance of members has 

been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 

appointment of proxies by the Members will not be 

available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form, 

Attendance Slip and Route Map of AGM are not 

annexed to this Notice. 
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However, members of the Company under the category 

of Institutional Investors / Corporate Members 

intending to authorize their representatives to 

participate and vote at the meeting are requested to 

send a certified copy of the Board Resolution / 

Authorization Letter to the Company on its registered 

email address to info@optimusfinance.in or upload on 

the VC portal / e-voting portal. 

3. Participation of members through VC/OAVM will be 

reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the AGM as per 

Section 103 of the Act. 

4. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) 

of the Act with respect to the Ordinary/Special Business 

to be transacted at the meeting set out in the Notice is 

annexed hereto. The brief details of the persons seeking 

appointment/re-appointment as Directors as required 

under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations 

and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by 

the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), is 

also annexed to this Notice. 

5. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 

15 minutes before and 15 minutes after the scheduled 

time of the commencement of the Meeting by 

following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. 

6. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI 

Circulars, printing and dispatch of physical Annual 

Reports for the Financial Year 2023-24 to the 

shareholders has been dispensed with. Hence the 

Notice of AGM along with the Annual Report 2023-24 is 

being sent only through electronic mode to those 

Members whose email addresses are registered with 

the Company/RTA/Depositories, unless any member 

has requested for a physical copy of the same. Member 

may note that Notice and Annual Report 2023-24 will 

also be available on the Company's website at 

www.optimusfinance.in, website of the Stock Exchange 

ie. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the 

website of CDSL, the e-voting agency at 

www.evotingindia.com. 

If your e-mail address is not registered with the 

Company/Depositories, you may register on or before 

5:00 p.m. (ST) on Monday, 23rd September 2024, to 

receive this Notice of the AGM and the Annual Report 

for FY 2023-24 by completing the process for 
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registration of e-mail address as under: 

IL Members holding shares in dematerialized 

form/electronic mode are, therefore, requested to 

keep their email addresses updated with the DP(s). 

Shareholders/Members holding shares in physical 

mode, can register their email address, by sending 

duly filled and signed Form ISR-1 through an email 

at info@optimusfinance.in by quoting their Folio 

No./DP ID — Client ID to facilitate the Company to 

serve the documents through the electronic mode. 

I. Alternatively, the said Members of the Company 

can update their e-mail address, Mobile No., PAN, 

and Bank Details in duly filled and signed Form 

ISR-1 by following the below prescribed steps: 

a) Click on the URL- 

https://liiplweb.linkintime.co.in/EmailReg 

/Email Register.html. 

b) Select the Name of the Company from 

dropdown: Optimus Finance Limited. 

Cc) Enter DP and Client ID (if shares held in 

electronic form)/Folio number (if shares 

held in physical form) and Permanent 

Account Number ("PAN"). In the event 

PAN details are not registered for physical 

folio, Member to enter one of the Share 

Certificate numbers. 

d) Enter Mobile Number and E-mail ID. 

e) System generated One Time Password 

(“OTP”) to be sent on Mobile Number and 

E-mail ID. 

f) Enter OTP received on Mobile Number 

and E-mail ID. 

g) Click on Submit button. 

h) On completing the above process your 

request will be accepted, and request ID 

will be generated. Email registered is for 

limited purpose of sending notice 

pertaining to the current event. 

7. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, 

pertaining to their name, postal address, E-mail 

address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent 

Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power 

of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and 

branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC 

code, etc.: 

a. For shares held in dematerialized/electronic form: 

Annual Reports 2023-24 
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to their Depository Participants (DPs) 

b. For shares held in physical form: to the 

Company/Registrar and Transfer Agent of the 

Company in prescribed Form ISR-1 and other 

forms pursuant to SEBI Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD- 1/P/CIR/2023/37 

dated March 16, 2023. 

The Company has sent individual letters to all the 

Members holding shares of the Company in physical 

form for furnishing their PAN, KYC details and 

Nomination pursuant to aforesaid SEBI Circulars in 

Form ISR-1 and other Forms. These forms are also 

available on the website of the Company at 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2023/06/KYC-updation-as-per-SEBI- 

Circular-Dated-16th-March-2023-1.pdf.   

Attention of the Members holding shares of the 

Company in physical form is invited to go through and 

submit the said Form ISR-1 and such other Forms, as 

may be applicable to them. 

Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the 

Company will remain closed from Tuesday, 24th day of 

September 2024 to Monday, 30th day of September 

2024 (both days inclusive) in connection with the AGM. 

The Company has fixed Monday, 23rd September 2024 

as the cut-off date (‘Record Date’) for determining the 

entitlement of Members for remote e-voting as well as 

e-voting of shareholders holding shares in physical or 

dematerialized form. 

In case of joint holders, the Member whose name 

appears as the first holder in the order of names as per 

the Register of Members of the Company as on the cut- 

off date will be entitled to vote during the AGM. 

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), will 

be providing facility for voting through remote e- 

voting, for participation in the 33rd AGM through 

VC/OAVM facility and e-voting during the AGM. 

Members who would like to express their views or ask 

questions during the AGM may register themselves as a 

speaker by sending their request from their registered 

Email ID mentioning their Name, DP ID and Client 

ID/Folio mumber, PAN, Mobile Number at 

info@optimusfinance.in 
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Only those Members who have registered themselves 

as a speaker will be allowed to express their views / ask 

questions during the AGM. 

The Company however reserves the right to restrict the 

number of speakers depending on the availability of 

time for the AGM. 

11. Members desirous of obtaining information/details 

about the Financial Statements are requested to write to 

the Company at least one week before the Meeting, so 

that proper information can be made available at the 

time of the meeting. The Members desirous of 

inspection of documents may write to the Company by 

E-mail and the same shall be sent to them electronically. 

12. As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as 

amended, securities of listed companies can be 

transferred only in dematerialized form with effect 

from, April 1, 2019, except in case of request received 

for transmission or transposition of securities. Members 

may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 

January 25, 2022, has mandated the listed companies to 

issue securities in demat form only, while processing 

service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities 

certificate; claim frorn Unclaimed Suspense Account; 

Renewal/Exchange of securities certificate; 

Endorsement; Sub-division/Splitting of securities 

certificate; Consolidation of securities 

certificates/folios; Transmission and _ Transposition. 

Thus, effective from January 24, 2022, requests for 

transmission or transposition of securities held in 

physical or dematerialized form shall be effected only in 

dematerialized form. Members holding shares of the 

Company in physical form are requested to kindly get 

their shares converted into demat/electronic form to 

get inherent benefits of dematerialization. 

Accordingly, Shareholders are requested to make 

service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed 

Form ISR-4, the format of which is available on the 

Company's website under the weblink at 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2022/04/Form-ISR-4.pdf as well as on 

the website of Company's Registrar & Share Transfer 

Agent (‘Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.) which can be 

accessed at the weblink: 

https://web.linkintime.co.in/KYC-downloads.html It 

may be noted that any service request can be processed 
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only after the folio is KYC compliant. 

Members can contact the Company or Link Intime India 

Pvt. Ltd. for assistance in this regard. 

In accordance with SEBI- Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2023/193 dated 

December 27, 2023, last date for submission of 'choice 

of nomination’ for Demat accounts is June 30, 2024. 

(1) The securities in the frozen folios shall be: 

¢ Eligible to lodge any grievance or avail service 

request from the RTA only after furnishing 

PAN, KYC details and Nomination. 

° Eligible for any payment including dividend, 

interest or redemption payment only through 

electronic mode upon complying with the 

above-stated requirements. 

(2)(a) The relevant formats for Nomination and 

Updation of KYC details viz; Forms ISR-1, 

ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-13, SH-14 and SEBI Circular(s) 

are available on Company website as well as the 

website of Link Intime India Pvt.Ltd. 

(https://web.linkintime.co.in/KYC- 

downloads.html). 

(b) Original cancelled cheque leaf bearing the name 

of the first holder failing which first security 

holder is required to submit copy of bank 

passbook/statement attested by the bank which 

is mandatory for registering the new bank 

details. 

In view of the above, we request the physical 

shareholders to submit the KYC Form, duly 

completed along with Investor Service Request 

Form (ISR-1) and the required supporting 

documents as stated in Form ISR-1 at the earliest to 

Link Intime India Private Limited. 

While Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 

has vide its Circular No.: SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD- 

1/P/CIR/2024/81 dated June 10, 2024, relaxed the 

rules for existing investors by not freezing accounts 

due to non-submission of Nomination, it strongly 

encourages all investors to update their Nomination 

details to ensure seamless transmission of assets 

and prevent the accumulation of unclaimed assets. 

The necessary forms for providing or opting out of 

the Nomination are available in the annexures of the 
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Circular. Shareholders are urged to take prompt 

action to comply with these requirements to avoid 

further hassles. 

14. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and Rule 

19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 

Rules, 2014, Members holding shares in physical form 

may file Nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with 

Registrar. In respect of shares held in dematerialized 

form, the Nomination Form may be filed with the 

respective DP As per SEBI Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated 

March 16, 2023, the common and simplified norms for 

processing investor's service request by RTAs and 

norms for furnishing PAN, KYC details and Nomination 

with various forms are made available at the Company's 

website at https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2023/06/KYC-updation-as-per-SEBI- 

Circular-Dated-16th-March-2023-1.pdf for easy access. 

The Shareholders who are desirous of availing this 

facility, may kindly write to RTA of the Company, M/s. 

Link Intime India Private Limited, “Geetakunj’ 1, Bhakti 

Nagar Society, Behind ABS Tower, Old Padra Road, 

Vadodara - 390015, Gujarat, India, at 

vadodara@linkintime.co.in, quoting their folio number. 

15. Voting through Electronic Means: 

1. As you are aware, the General Meetings of the 

companies shall be conducted as per the 

guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 

8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 

and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, 

22/2020 dated June 15, 2020, 33/2020 dated 

September 28, 2020, 39/2020 dated December 31, 

2020, 10/2021 dated June 23, 2021, 20/2021 dated 

December 8, 2021, 3/2022 dated May 5, 2022, 

11/2022 dated December 28, 2022, and 09/2023 

dated September 25, 2023, ("MCA Circulars”). The 

forthcoming AGM will thus be held through video 

conferencing (VC) or other audio-visual means 

(OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and 

participate in the ensuing AGM _ through 

VC/OAVM. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2014, as amended and Regulation 44 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
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Regulations 2015, (‘Listing Regulations’), as 

amended, and Secretarial Standard on General 

Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India and MCA Circulars, 

the Company is providing facility of remote e- 

voting to its Members in respect of the business to 

be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the 

Company has entered into an agreement with 

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) 

for facilitating voting through electronic means on 

all the resolutions set forth in this Notice, as the 

authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of 

casting votes by a member using remote e-voting 

as well as the e-voting system on the date of the 

AGM will be provided by CDSL. 

The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the 

VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the 

Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in 

the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM 

through VC/OAVM will be made available to at 

least 1000 members on first come first served 

basis. This will not include large Shareholders 

(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 

Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel, the Chairperson(s) of the 

Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to 

attend the AGM without restriction on account of 

first come first served basis. 

The attendance of the Members attending the 

AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 

purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 

103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 

08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and 

cast vote for the members is not available for this 

AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and 

113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of 

the members such as the President of India or the 

Governor of a State or body corporate can attend 

the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes 

through e-voting. 

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 

Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the 

Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the 
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website of the Company at 

www.optimusfinance.in. The Notice can also be 

accessed from the website of the Stock Exchange 

ie. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM 

Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL 

(agency for providing the Remote e-voting facility 

and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e. 

www.evotingindia.com. 

7. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM 

in compliance with applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with various MCA 

Circulars as mentioned herein above. 

8. In continuation of this Ministry's General Circular 

No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, and General 

Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, and 

General Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 

2022, and after due examination, it has been 

decided to allow the companies whose AGMs are 

due in the year 2024, to conduct their AGMs 

through VC/OAVM on or before 30th September 

2024, in accordance with the requirements laid 

down in Para 3 and Para 4 of the General Circular 

No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. 

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING 

AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER: 

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e- 

voting system in case of individual shareholders 

holding shares in demat mode. 

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-voting system in case of 

shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non- 

individual shareholders in demat mode. 

()The e-voting period begins on Friday, 27th 

September 2024 at 9.00 a.m. (IST) and ends on 

Sunday, 29th September 2024 at 5.00 p.m. (IST). 

During this period, shareholders of the Company 

holding shares either in physical form or in 

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. 

Monday, 23rd September 2024 may cast their vote 

electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled 

by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the 

meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 

meeting venue. 

(ii)Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. 
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SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 

December 9, 2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

listed entities are required to provide remote e- 

voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all 

shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been 

observed that the participation by the public non- 

institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a 

negligible level. 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service 

providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 

entities in India. This necessitates registration on 

various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs 

and passwords by the shareholders. 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting 

process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has 

been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat 

account holders, by way of a single login 

credential, through their demat accounts/ 

websites of Depositories/Depository 

Participants. Demat account holders would be able 

to cast their vote without having to register again 

with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 

authentication but also enhancing ease and 

convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e- 

voting system in case of _ individual 

shareholders holding shares in demat mode. 

(iv)In terms of SEBI Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 

December 9, 2020, on e-voting facility provided by 

Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with 

Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 

number and email ID in their demat accounts in 

order to access e-Voting facility. 

Pursuant to aforementioned SEBI Circular, Login 

method for e-voting and joining virtual meetings for 

Individual shareholders holding securities in 

Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 
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ki service provider website for casting your Login type Helpdesk details number sent by Company/RTA or 
ere titers | vote during the remote e-voting period or os : we contact Company/RTA. 

shareholders we . : : Individual Shareholders} Members facing any technical issue 
joining virtual meeting and voting during the , ooo . . 

Individual a meeting. holding securities in in login can contact CDSL helpdesk Dividend Bank Details OR | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date 

Sh whol 4 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi/Easiest 3, If the user is not registered for IDeAS e- Demat mode with by sending a _ request at Date of Birth (DOB) of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 
din  rities reclty can login trrowah their existing vole Services, option to register is available at CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or are ort recorded in your demat account or in the 

: 9 and’ password. ption wi be “mace https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33. company records in order to login. 
in Demat mode available to reach e-Voting page without any Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at 

mn cDsL further authentication. The users to login to https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/Idea Individual Shareholders] Members facing any technical issue ¢ If both the details are not recorded 
epository ron Easiest and reatiested to ss te. sDirectReg.jso holding securities in in login can contact NSDL helpdesk with the depository or company, 

he © ne) Nea Systems Mie Syst ve _ b ron 4, Visit the e-voting website of NSDL. Open Demat mode with by sending a _ request at please enter the member id/folio 
2 oe icon “el a ath a . : web browser by typing the following URL: NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - number in the Dividend Bank details 

se er successtul login the asi/ asies t user https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 field. 

will be able to see the e-voting option for Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the . 
cigble companies ifonnstion provioed bp home page of e-Voting system is launched, Step 2: Access through CDSL e-voting system in case of (vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on 

company. On clicking the e-voting option, click on the icon “Login” which is available shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non- “SUBMIT" tab. 
under ‘Shareholder/ Member’ section. A new 

screen will open. You will have to enter your 

User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account 

the user will be able to see e-voting page of individual shareholders in demat mode. 
the e-voting service provider for casting your (vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will 

  

        
  

  

vote during she remote evoing perioe or number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and (v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings then directly reach the Company selection screen. 
meeting, Additionally, links are provided to a Verification Code as shown on the screen. for Physical shareholders and shareholders other However, shareholders holding shares in demat 
access the system of all e-voting Service redirected to NSDL Depository te whereie than individual holding in Demat form. form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu 

Providers ie CDSL/NSDLInk Intime/K- you can see e-voting page. Click on company 1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting wherein they are required to mandatorily enter 
Fintech sot atthe user can visit e e-voting name or e-voting service provider name and website www.evotingindia.com. their login password in the new password field. 

3. Ifthe ser is not registered for Easi/Easiest you will be redirected to e-voting service Kindly note that this password is to be also used by 
option to register is available at CDSL website provider website for casting your vote “ung 2) Click on “Shareholders” module. the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any 

e remote e-votin: eriod or joining virtua . > 

www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New meeting & votin an the nein gvume other company on which they are eligible to vote, 
System Myeasi Tab and then click on 9 9 9 9. 3)N UserID j ; y: y' ) Now enter your User provided that company opts for e-voting through 
registration option. DSL platf Iti | ded 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e- . oo oe C prattorm. It Is strong y recommended not to 

voting page by providing Demat Account a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, share your password with any other person and 
Number and PAN No. from a e-voting link| _| Individual You can also login using the login b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits take utmost care to keep your password 
available on www.cdslindia.com home page Shareholders . credentials of your demat account Client ID, confidential. 

or —_ https://evoting.cdslindia.com —_/E- (holding securities ; «ai c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form 
voting/E-votingLogin. The system will in demat mode) through your Depository Participant , : g . y . see . . . 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on login through registered with NSDL/CDSL for e- should enter Folio Number registered with the (viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the their Depository voting facility. After Successful login Company. the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

Participants (DP) . . a . . . . . 
Demat Account. pa you will be able to see e-voting option. 4) Nextenter the! Verificat disolaved and resolutions contained in this Notice. 

After successful authentication, user will be Once you click on e-voting option, you vce sn loe in emage menicanon 2s euspreyeean Le . . . 
able to see the e-Voting option where the e- will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL gin. (ix) Click on the EVSN of Optimus Finance Limited on 
voting is in progress and also able to directly Depository site after successful ‘ hold h 4 ‘ d had which you choose to vote. 

-Voti i ae . 5) If you are holding shares in demat form and ha 

Providers, system of att eating Sence authentication, wherein you can see e- to ved on to ww evotingindia.com and voted on * 2 . . 2 1 j " Voting feature. Click on company name 99 i i ‘ th (x) On the voting page, you will see RESOLUTION 
Individual 1. Ifyou are already registered for NSDL IDeAS or e-voting service provider name and an eanier_@-voning or any “company, men your DESCRIPTION and against the same the option 
Shareholders — facility, please visit the e-Services website of you will be redirected to e-voting existing password is to be used. “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO 
holding securities NSDL. Open web browser by typing the . . . . as desired. The option YES implies that you assent 
in demat mode following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com service provider website for casting 6) If re a first-tim r follow the st iven j j imoli ith NSDL ; _ ; -voti you are a Tirst-time user ToNow the steps give to the Resolution and option NO implies that you wit s either on a Personal Computer or on a your vote during the remote e-voting below: di he Resoluti 
Depository mobile. period or joining virtual meeting & - — issent to the Resolution. 

2. Once the home page of e-Services is voting during the meeting. eel Cee Li meCam uri mic ihc Lr) 

launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” shareholders holding shares in Demat. (xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish 
icon under “Login” which is available under . PAN Ent 10 digit alpha- ic PAN ; j j j 
'IDeAS' section. A new screen will open, You Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User issued. by Inc a . Depart a to view the entire Resolution details. 

will have to enter your User ID and Password. ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget (Applicable for both demat shareholders ii) Aft lecting th luti h decided 

After successful authentication, you will be} ~~ Password option available at above mentioned website. as well as physical shareholders) (xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decide 
to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box 

* Shareholders who have not updated will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, 
able to see e-voting services. Click on “Access 

. . : Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding 
to e-voting” under e-voting services and you 

  

will be able to see e-voting page. Click on| securities in demat_mode for any technical issues their PAN with the click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 
company name or e-voting service provider related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and Company/Depository Participant are 1 » inal y ‘ 
name and you will be re-directed to e-voting NSDL: requested to use the sequence CANCEL’ and accordingly modify your vote.           
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(xii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the attested specimen signature of the duly queries will be replied to by the company suitably by Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N. M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel 

(East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 

1800 22 55 33. 

resolution, you will not be allowed to modify authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, email. 

your vote. to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email 

address viz.; info@optimusfinance.in (designated 

email address of the Company), if they have voted 

from individual tab & not uploaded same in the 

CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify 
the same. 9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM 

through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as 

a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 

questions during the meeting. 

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by 

clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page. 

16. Other Information: 

1. The remote e-voting facility will be available during the 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login voting period: 
  

  

password, then Enter the User ID and the image INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and Commencement of From 09:00 a.m. (IST) of Friday, 27th 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible e-voting day of September 2024. 

enter the details as prompted by the system. MEETING ARE AS UNDER: to vote through e-voting system available during the 
AGM . . From 05:00 p.m. (IST) of Sunday, 29th 

‘ . : + . . . , End of e-voting period day of September 2024. 
(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload 1. The procedure for attending the meeting & e-voting         

BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made 

available to scrutinizer for verification. 

10. If any votes are cast by the shareholders through the 

e-voting available during the AGM and if the same 

shareholders have not participated in the meeting 

through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 

shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of 

e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 

shareholders attending the meeting. 

on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions 
E-voting shall not be allowed b d 05:00 p.m. (IST) of 

mentioned above for e-voting. young Snal nonibe alowed peyon p.m. (IST) 0 
Sunday, 29th September 2024. The e-voting module 

shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. During 

the e-voting period, shareholders of the Company 

holding shares either in physical form or in 

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. Monday, 

23rd September 2024, may cast their votes 

electronically. The voting rights of Members shall be in 

(xvii) Additional Facility for Non —- Individual 

Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote Voting 
2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be 

available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed 

only. after successful login as per the instructions mentioned 

above for e-voting. 
¢ Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 

Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE . . , : 

required to log on to wwwevotingindia.com voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share 

and register themselves in the “Corporates” they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES: oer of the Company as on Monday, 23rd September 
module. . 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting 1. For Physical shareholders - please provide necessary 

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e- 

2. Mr. Hemang Mehta, Proprietor of M/s. H. M. Mehta & * A scanned copy of the Registration Form 

bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should 

be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

« After receiving the login details a Compliance 

User should be created using the admin login 

and password. The Compliance User would be 

able to link the account(s) for which they wish 

to vote on. 

* The list of accounts linked in the login will be 

mapped automatically & can be delink in case 

of any wrong mapping. 

* It is mandatory that, a scanned copy of the 

Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) 

which they have issued in favour of the 

Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF 

format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify 

the same. 

Alternatively, Non Individual shareholders are 

required mandatorily to send the relevant Board 

Resolution/Authority letter etc. together with 
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through Laptops/iPad for better experience. 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera 

and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 

6. Please note that the participants connecting from 

Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience 

Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective 

network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi- 

Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 

glitches. 

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask 

questions during the meeting may register themselves 

as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 

one week prior to meeting mentioning their name, 

demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 

number at info@optimusfinance.in. The shareholders 

who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have 

queries may send their queries at least one week in 

advance prior to the date of AGM mentioning their 

name, demat account number/folio number, email id, 

mobile number at info@optimusfinance.in. These 

15   
details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self- 

attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self- 

attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 

Company/RTA email id — info@optimusfinance.in / 

vadodara@linkintime.co.in. 

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id 

& mobile no. with your respective Depository 

Participant (DP). 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders - Please update 

your email id & mobile no. with your respective 

Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e- 

voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending 

AGM & e-voting from the CDSL e-voting system, you 

can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33. 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by 

electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 

Sr. Manager (CDSL), Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited, ‘A’ Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, 
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Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Vadodara, 

Gujarat (Membership No. FCS - 4965 & Certificate of 

Practice No. 2554) has been appointed as the 

Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process 

and e-voting during the AGM in a fair and transparent 

manner. 

3. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of e-voting at 

the AGM, will first count the votes cast during the 

meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through 

remote e-voting and shall make, in two working days of 

the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's 

report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, 

to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in 

writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the 

result of the e-voting forthwith. 

4. The results declared of e-voting along with the report 

of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the 

Company at www.optimusfinance.in and on the website 

of CDSL e-voting immediately after the declaration of 

result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in 

writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded 

to BSE Limited. 
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Annexure To Notice 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

The following statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying Notice: 

Item No. 3: Approval for increase in Remuneration of Mr. Dipak Raval, Whole time Director of the Company: 

Mr. Dipak Raval is a well-qualified person possessing 45 years of experience with industries and Bank and having in depth 

exposure in the field of Company Law, Secretarial matters, Corporate Laws, Securities Laws, Capital Markets, Banking & 

Finance, Administration, etc. Due to his foresightedness and hard work, the Company is achieving greater heights. Your 

Directors foresee a bright future of the Company under his management. Considering his valuable efforts and on the basis 

of recommendation received of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors of the Company at their 

respective meeting(s) held on 12th July 2023, re-appointed him as Whole time Director of the Company for a term of three 

consecutive years, with effect from 10th August 2023 to 9th August 2026, as per the terms and conditions specified therein, 

which was subsequently approved by Shareholders in the 32nd Annual General Meeting held on 30th September 2023 

("32nd AGM’) by way of a Special Resolution, 

Keeping in view the above and industrial standards and with the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and Board of Directors of the Company, in their respective meeting(s) held on 1st July 2024, unanimously 

recommended the revision in the managerial remuneration payable to Mr. Dipak Raval, Whole time Director of the 

Company from Rs, 2,35,000/- per month to Rs. 2,65,000/- per month, with retrospective effect from 1st August 2023 & from 

Rs. 2,65,000/- per month to Rs. 3,00,000/- per month with effect from 1st June 2024, subject to the approval of shareholders 

of the Company. 

NOTES: 

i. Net Profit for this purpose shall be computed in accordance with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

ii. Pursuant to the provisions of Schedule V to the Companies Act, in case of no profits or inadequate profits during the 

tenure of appointment of managerial personnel (i.e. Managing Director, Whole-time Director or Manager), 

remuneration shall be paid as per the applicable slab prescribed based on the ‘Effective Capital’ of the Company. 

iii. The remuneration package is well within the overall limit prescribed under Section II Part It of Schedule V to the 

Companies Act, 2013, which permits the company having no profit or inadequate profit to pay managerial 

remuneration to managing person or other director with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the 

Board” which term shall be deemed to include the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board) to alter and 

vary the terms and conditions of the said revision in remuneration as it may deem fit and as may be acceptable to Mr. 

Dipak Raval, subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified under Section 197, Schedule V to the Companies 

Act, 2013 or such other limits as may be prescribed from time to time or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 

thereof. 

In view of the provisions of Section 196 and 197 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board 

of Directors recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of the 

Members. 

Except Mr. Dipak Raval, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is 

concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3. 

Statement in terms of Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013: 
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I. General Information: 

a 
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ea tea Ul rey 

Financial Statements Q 

Mr. Dipak Raval 

  

Optimus Finance Limited (OFL) — Formerly known as Transpek Finance Ltd. — was incorporated 

under the Companies Act, 1956 in the year 1991 having its Registered Office at Vadodara, 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          

Nat f indust 
0 azure orincusiry Gujarat, India. 

Optimus Finance Limited is concentrating mainly on Loans and Investment activities. 

The Company was incorporated on 11th February 1991 with Registration No. 015044, in the 

02 Date or expected date of commencement State of Gujarat under the Companies Act, 1956. 

of commercial production Further, the Company had commenced its business on the same date of its incorporation i.e. 
11th February 1991. 

In case of new companies, expected date of | Not applicable 

03 commencement of activities as per project 

approved by financial institutions appearing 

in the prospectus 

Financial performance based on given On the basis of Standalone Financial Results: (Amounts in lakhs) 

04 | indicators UU FY 2023-24 FY.2022-23_~—“FY 2021-22 
Gross Revenue 128.05 63.44 107.01 

Profit Before Tax (PBT) 335.17 10.65 (4.83) 

Profit After Tax (PAT) 283.81 10.34 (3.63) 

Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

i. Before exceptional items 0.74 
.07 

ii. After exceptional items 3.80 0.17 (0.07) 

NIL. 

05 | Foreign investments or collaborations, if any 
The Company has not entered into any foreign collaboration and no direct capital investment 

has been made by the Company during the previous three financial years. 
  

Il. Information about the appointee: 
  

06 Background details 

Mr. Dipak Raval aged 65 years is Graduate in Commerce and Law and Fellow Member of the 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India (CSI), New Delhi and a Certified Associate of The 

Indian Institute of Bankers, Mumbai (CAIIB). 

Mr. Dipak Raval possesses 45 years of experience with industries and Bank and having in depth 

exposure in the field of Company Law, Secretarial matters, Corporate Laws, Securities Laws, 

Capital Markets, Banking & Finance, Administration, etc. 
  

07 Past Remuneration 

i. Rs. 1,85,000 per month (till 31st July 2022) 

ii. Rs.2,35,000 per month (with effect from 1st August 2022) 

  

08 Recognition or awards NIL 
  

09 Job profile and his suitability 

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of 

Directors at the meeting held on 12th July 2023, has re-appointed Mr. Dipak Raval as Whole 

time Director of the Company for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 10th August 2023 to 9th August 2026 

which was subsequently approved by the shareholders in the 32nd AGM by way of a Special 

Resolution. 

As such Mr. Dipak Raval is also appointed as Chairman of the Board, he has been accordingly 

designated as "Chairman and Whole time Director". 

Mr. Dipak Raval has been serving the Board of the Company as a Director of the Company since 

10th August 2015. 

Taking into consideration, the qualifications, varied experience and achievements, growth of 

the Company, the Board had bestowed upon Mr. Dipak Raval, the responsibilities of Whole time 

Director & designated him as Executive Chairman & Whole time Director of the Company and 

continues to consider him suitable for the position. 
  

10     Remuneration proposed   LT (oe Remuneration proposed 

01 Rs. 2,65,000 per month 

02 Rs. 3,00,000 per month 

acoder LC) 

1st August 2023 

1st June 2024 
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Comparative remuneration profile with 

respect to industry, size of the company, 

11 profile of the position and person (in case 

of expatriates the relevant details would be 

with respect to the country of his origin) 

Taking into consideration his qualifications and experience the proposed remuneration is 

commensurate with the remuneration prevalent in the industry as well as other industries. 

  

Apart from the remuneration and perquisites paid to him as Whole-time Director of the 

Company as stated above, he does not have any pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly 
Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company and its managerial personnel 

12. | with the Company, or relationship with 

the managerial personnel, if any Mr. Dipak Raval is not related to any of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company. 
  

Ill. Other information: 
  

The Company reported a profit after tax of 310.34 lakhs for the financial year 2022-23 and of 

283.81 lakhs for the financial year 2023-24 respectively. However, the profit calculated in 

accordance with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, is inadequate to pay managerial 

remuneration in accordance with conditions specified under Section 197. 

13 | Reasons of loss or inadequate profits 

  

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for The Company is making necessary efforts to improve its performance by aggressively 

  

14]. implementing its strategies and cost reduction initiatives along with revenue enhancement 
improvement sage as 

initiatives. 

The Company has earned the profit after tax of Rs. 283.81 lakhs (on standalone basis) during 

. . . the financial year ended 31st March 2024 and the Company is expected to do well in future. 
15 Expected increase in productivity and 

profits in measurable terms In view of the steps taken by the Company as stated above, the Company believes that there 

will be significant increase in productivity and profitability in the years to come.         
  

VI. Disclosures: 
  

The disclosures as required on all elements of remuneration package such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension, details of fixed 

components and performance linked incentives along with performance criteria, service contract details, notice period, severance fees, etc. have been 

made in the Board of Director’s Report under the heading “Corporate Governance Report” forming part of the Annual Report for 2023-24.     
  

Except Mr. Dipak Raval, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is 

concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3. 

The Company has disclosed all the related information and to the best of understanding of the Board of Directors, no other 

information and facts are required to be disclosed that may enable members to understand the meaning, scope, and 

implications of the items of business and to take decision thereon. 

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends that the Special Resolution under Item No. 3 be passed in the 

interest of your Company. 

Item No. 4: Approval for material Related Party Transaction(s) for the financial year 2025-26: 

Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, ('SEBI Listing Regulations’), 

as amended vide SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2021, effective 

April 1, 2022 read with the Company's policy on Related Party Transactions, states that all Material Related Party 

Transaction with an aggregate value exceeding 1,000 crore or 10% of annual consolidated turnover of the company as per 

the last audited financial statements of the Company, whichever is lower, shall require prior approval of the Members of the 

Company. The said limits are applicable even if the transactions are in the ordinary course of business of the concerned 

Company and at an arm's length basis. The amended Regulation 2(1)(zc) of the SEBI Listing Regulations has also enhanced 

the definition of Related Party Transaction which now includes a transaction involving a transfer of resources, services or 

obligations between a listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on one hand, and any other person or entity on the other hand, 

the purpose and effect of which is to benefit a related party of the listed entity or any of its subsidiaries, with effect from 
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April 1, 2023 regardless of whether a price is charged and a “transaction” with a related party shall be construed to includea 

single transaction or a group of transactions in a contract. 

In furtherance of its business activities, the Company and its Subsidiaries proposes to enter into contract(s)/ 

arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with “Related Parties” as mentioned below, which are in the ordinary course of business. 

Further, the estimated value of the proposed transaction is likely to exceed the said threshold limit of 10% of the annual 

consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the Company and therefore may 

exceed the materiality threshold as prescribed under Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Thus, these transactions 

would require prior approval of the shareholders of the Company. 

Accordingly, the Related Party Transactions as approved by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors at their 

respective meetings are hereby placed before the shareholders for their approval by way of Special Resolution to enable 

the Company/Subsidiary companies to enter into the following Related Party Transactions in one or more tranches. The 

transactions under consideration are proposed to be entered into by the Company/Subsidiary companies with the 

following related parties in the ordinary course of business and at arms’ length basis. 

Details of the transactions and other particulars thereof as per Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 

Powers) Rules, 2014 read with Section 188 of the ‘Act’ as amended till date, SEBI Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated 22nd November 2021 and SEBI Master Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023: 

(i) Details wrt. material Related Party Transactions for providing/availing Loan(s), Inter corporate Deposit(s), 

advance(s) or providing guarantee(s) or security(ies) for loan taken by related party. 

Nya 

  

  

                
  

No. aC Ley pearly 

01 | Name of the MX Africa Maximus Maximus Quantum Maximus Sukruti Quebec SKG 

Related Party Limited Global FZE | Lubricants Lubricants |International | Infratech Petroleum Energy 

(MX) (MGF) LLC (MLL) (E.A.) Limited Private Resources PTE. Ltd. 

Limited (MIL) Limited Limited (SKG) 

(QLL) (SIPL) (Quebec) 

02 | Name of the Mr. Dipak Mr. Dipak None None Mr. Dipak Mr. Dipak None None 

Director or KMP Raval Raval Raval & Raval 

other than Mr. Milind 

Independent Joshi 

Director who is 

related, if any 

03 | Nature of Step down | Step down | Step down Step down | Subsidiary Ultimate Significant | Significant 

Relationship Subsidiary Subsidiary | Subsidiary Subsidiary Company Holding Beneficial Beneficial 

(including nature | (Wholly (Wholly (Subsidiary | (Wholly Company Owner- Mr. | Owner- Mr. 

of interest, owned owned of Maximus | owned Aniruddh Aniruddh 

financial or Subsidiary | Subsidiary | Global FZE) | Subsidiary Gandhi Gandhi is a 

otherwise) of Maximus | of Maximus of MX holds 40% director 

Internat- Interna- Africa equity and holds 

ional tional Limited) shares 100% 

Limited) Limited) equity 

shares 

04 | Nature of Providing/Availing Loan(s), Inter corporate Deposit(s), advance(s) or providing guarantee(s) or security(ies) for loan taken 
Transactions, by related party. 

Type, Material 

terms and The transactions are proposed to be undertaken during the financial year 2025-26, on such term(s) and condition(s) as 

particulars of the Board of Directors may deem fit. 

the proposed 

transaction         
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05 Maximum value 

of Transactions 

during 

Financial 

Year 2025-26 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

  

06 The percentage 

of the listed 

entity's annual 

consolidated 

turnover, for the 

immediately 

preceding 

financial year, 

that is 

represented by 

the value of the 

proposed 

transaction - 

Refer Note 

No. 1 

OFL: 46% OFL: 46% OFL: 46% OFL: 46% OFL: 46% OFL: 46% OFL: 46% OFL: 46% 

  

07 Percentage of 

the listed 

entity's 

Subsidiary - annual 

standalone 

turnover, for the 

immediately 

preceding financial 

year, that is 

represented by 

the value of the 

proposed 

Transaction (In 

case of RPT 

involving a 

Subsidiary). - 

Refer Note No. 2 

Mx: Refer 

Note - 3 

  
MGF: 106% 

  
MLL: 85% 

  
QLL:162% 

  
MIL: 611% 

  
NA 

  
NA 

  
NA 

  

08 Details of the 

source of funds 
The financial assistance is provided/ would be provided from the internal accruals/own funds/funds raised through issue 

of equity shares/debt Instruments or inter corporate loans of the Company. 
  

09 Where any 

financial 

indebtedness is 

incurred to make 

or give loans, 

inter-corporate 

deposits, 

advances or 

investments 

No 

  

10     Applicable terms, 

including 

covenants, 

tenure, interest 

rate and 

repayment 

schedule, 

whether secured 

or unsecured; if 

secured, the 

nature of 

security;   Terms and conditions (including Tenure, interest rate, commission rate, etc.) attached to unsecured working capital 

loan/Term Loan (s)/ Inter corporate Deposit(s) , advance(s) or providing guarantee(s) or security(ies), for loan taken by 

related party will be mutually agreed between the parties. Interest rate will be in line with prevailing bank lending rates. 
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11 | The purpose for Funds shall be utilized towards meeting the operational cash-flows and/or business objectives/ requirements/ exigencies 

which the funds —_| of the Related Party and its subsidiary including step down subsidiary. 
will be utilized 

by the ultimate 

beneficiary 

pursuant to 

the RPT 

12 | Justification as The Board considers that the proposed related party transactions are in the ordinary course of business and at arm's 

to why the RPT length basis and play a significant role in the growth of business operations of the listed entity/its subsidiaries/step down 

isin the interest | subsidiaries/related parties. 
of the listed 

entity; 

13 | Any other All relevant/ important information forms a part of this Explanatory statement setting out material facts pursuant to 

information Section 102(1) of the Act. 
relevant or 

important for 

the members to 

take a decision 

on the proposed 

resolution 

(ii) Details w.rt. material Related Party Transactions for Investment(s)/Redemption/Repayment/Conversion of 

Shares/Loan to meet business objectives /requirements/exigencies. 

ey Particulars Details 

01 | Name of the MX Africa Maximus Maximus Maximus Quantum SKG Quebec Sukruti 

Related Party Limited Global FZE | Internat- Lubricants Lubricants Energy Petroleum Infratech 

(MX) (MGF) ional LLC (EA) PTE. Ltd. Resources Private 

Limited (MLL) Limited (SKG) Limited Limited 

(MIL) (QLL) (Quebec) (SIPL) 

02 | Name of the Mr. Dipak Mr. Dipak Mr. Dipak None None None None Mr. Dipak 

Director or KMP Raval Raval Raval & Raval 

other than Mr. Milind 

Independent Joshi 

Director who is 

related, if any 

03 | Nature of Step down Step down Subsidiary | Step down Step down | Significant Significant Ultimate 

Relationship Subsidiary Subsidiary Company Subsidiary Subsidiary | Beneficial Beneficial Holding 

(including (Wholly (Wholly (Subsidiary | (Wholly Owner- Mr. | Owner- Mr. | Company 

nature of owned owned of Maximus | owned Aniruddh Aniruddh 

interest, Subsidiary Subsidiary Global FZE) | Subsidiary | Gandhiisa | Gandhi 

financial or of Maximus | of Maximus of MX director holds 40% 

otherwise) International | International Africa and holds equity 

Limited) Limited) Limited) 100% shares 

equity 

shares 

04 | Nature of Investment(s)/Redemption/Repayment/Conversion of Shares/Loan to meet business objectives 
Transactions, /requirements/exigencies. 
Type, Material 

terms and The transactions are proposed to be undertaken during the financial year 2025-26, on such term(s) and condition(s) as 

particulars of the Board of Directors may deem fit. 
the proposed 

transaction     
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05 Maximum value 

of Transactions 

during 

Financial 

Year 2025-26 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

Rs. 50 

Crores 

  

06 The percentage 

of the listed 

entity's annual 

consolidated 

turnover, for the 

immediately 

preceding 

financial year, 

that is 

represented by 

the value of the 

proposed 

transaction - 

Refer Note 

No. 1 

OFL: 46% OFL: 46% OFL: 46% OFL: 46% OFL: 46% OFL: 46% OFL: 46% OFL: 46% 

  

07 Percentage of 

the listed 

entity's 

Subsidiary - 

annual 

standalone 

turnover, for the 

immediately 

preceding 

financial year, 

that is 

represented by 

the value of the 

proposed 

Transaction 

(In case of RPT 

involving a 

Subsidiary). - 

Refer Note 

No. 2 

MX: Refer 

Note - 3 

  
MGF: 106% 

  
MIL: 611% 

  
MLL: 85% 

  
QLL:162% 

  
NA 

  
NA 

  
NA 

  

08 Details of the 

source of funds 
The financial assistance is provided/ would be provided from the internal accruals/own funds/funds raised through issue 

of equity shares/debt Instruments or inter corporate loans of the Company. 

  

09 Where any 

financial 

indebtedness is 

incurred to make 

or give loans, 

inter-corporate 

deposits, 

advances or 

investments 

No 

  

10     Applicable terms, including 

covenants, tenure, 

interest rate and 

repayment 

schedule, 

whether secured 

or unsecured; if 

secured, the nature 

of security;   As mutually agreed between the parties.   
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11 | The purpose for 

which the funds 

will be utilized 

by the ultimate 

beneficiary 

pursuant to 

the RPT 

Funds shall be utilized towards meeting the operational cash-flows and/or business objectives/ requirements/ exigencies 

of the Related Party and its subsidiary including step down subsidiary. 

  

12 | Justification as 

to why the RPT 

is in the interest 

of the listed 

entity; 

The Board considers that the proposed related party transactions are in the ordinary course of business and at arm's 

length basis and play a significant role in the growth of business operations of the listed entity/its subsidiaries/step down 

subsidiaries/related parties. 

  

  
13 | Any other 

information 

relevant or 

important for 

the members to 

take a decision 

on the proposed 

resolution     
All relevant/ important information forms a part of this Explanatory statement setting out material facts pursuant to 

Section 102(1) of the Act. 

  
  

  
# Percentage mentioned in the Explanatory Statement are rounded off. 

Notes: 

1. The percentage above is based on the consolidated turnover of FY 2023-24 and the actual percentage of annual value of RPTs shall 

depend upon consolidated turnover of the Company for the immediately preceding financial year. 

2. The percentage above is based on the Subsidiary's standalone turnover of FY 2023-24 and the actual percentage of annual value of 

RPTs shall depend upon standalone turnover of the Company's Subsidiary for the immediately preceding financial year. 

3. MX Africa Limited is a holding company for the African region. It is not involved significantly in trading or manufacturing activity and 

thus "Percentage of the listed entity's Subsidiary annual standalone turnover, for the immediately preceding financial year, that is 

represented by the value of the proposed Transaction”, is not specified herewith. 

Members may note that said Related Party Transactions, placed for members’ approval, shall, at all times, be subject to 

prior approval of the Audit Committee of the Company and shall continue to be in the ordinary course of business and 

at arm's length and have a significant role in the Company's operations. Any subsequent material modifications in the 

proposed transactions, as may be defined by the Audit Committee as a part of Company's Policy on Related Party 

Transactions, shall be placed before the members for approval, in terms of Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations. 

Pursuant to Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, members may also note that no related party shall vote to 

approve Item No. 3, whether the entity is a related party to the particular transaction or not. 

In view of the above, the Board of Directors recommends passing the resolution stated in the accompanying Notice as a 

Special Resolution. 

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives is deemed to be 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolutions except to the extent of their shareholding and 

common directorships, if any. 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 13.08.2024 

Annual Reports 2023-24 

By Order of the Board 

For Optimus Finance Limited 

SD/- 

Krati Gupta 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
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Annexure 

Details of Directors seeking Appointment/Re-appointment 

at the Annual General Meeting of the Company 

(Under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (‘SS-2').) 

  

Name of the Director Mr. Dipak Raval 
  

Director Identification Number 01292764 
  

Date of Birth and Age 19th August 1959 (65 years) 
  

Educational Qualification B.Com, LL.B, CAIIB, FCS 
  

He is enriched with more than 45 years of experience with industries, stock exchange & Bank in 

the field of Company Law, Secretarial matters & compliance, Corporate Laws, Securities Laws, 

Banking & Finance, Administration etc. He worked in senior level positions as Managing 

Director & CEO with Vadodara Stock Exchange and as GM & Company Secretary with Listed 

Companies. He was in overall charge of the Exchange to run the day-to-day administration 

including all Managerial, Operational and other incidental matters. 

Experience (including expertise in 

specific functional area) 

/Brief Resume 

  

Terms and Conditions of 
Re- int tin t f Section 152(6) of the Act. ret e-appointment in terms of Section (6) of the Ac 

  

Remuneration last drawn 
: : —_ . Rs. 2,35,000 per month (w.e.f 1st August 2022) 

(including sitting fees, if any) 

  

Remuneration proposed to be al Rs. 2,65,000 per month (w.e.f 1st August 2023) 

Rs. 3,00,000 per month (w.e.f 1st June 2024) 

  

Date of first appointment on the 

Board 

Nature of expertise in specific 

bie eC rE Le -s-1) 

Effective from 10th August 2015. 

  

Finance » Law * Management « Administration * Corporate Governance related 

to the Company's business « Strategy 

  

Shareholding in the Company as on 

date of notice. 

Comey ware tes 

  

  

NIL 
Eo ii) NIL 

(b) For other persons on a beneficial 

basis 

Relationship with other Directors None 

and Key Managerial Personnel 

Number of Meetings of the Board 6 (Sin) 

attended during the 

Financial Year (FY 2023-24)     
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Directorships held in other 

redial ee Tal Cy 

Name of the entity in which the 

Director holds committee 

memberships & chairpersonship 

Listed entities from which the 

Peace mirc Mette litem 

ee eae ule) Led 

  

* Resigned as Director wef. 10.03.2014 

** Under Liquidation 

Annual Reports 2023-24 

Financial Statements 

e¢ Maximus International Limited 

e  Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 

e  Additol Lubricants Limited* 

* Hydrocarbon Development Co Private limited** 

e¢ Maximus Infra Ventures Limited 
  

Maximus International Limited 

« Member - Audit Committee 

* Member - Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

  

Wardwizard Innovations & Mobility Limited — Resigned as a 

Non-Executive Non-Whole time Independent Director w.e.f 3rd June 2020.     
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Board's Report 

To, 

Dear Members, 

Statutory Reports Financial Statements 

The Directors are pleased to present to you the 33rd Annual Report of your Company Optimus Finance Limited, (“the 

Company”) on business and operations of Company along with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial 

Statements for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2024. 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

The financial performance of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2024, on a Standalone and Consolidated 

basis, is summarized below: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

(® in Lakh) 

: Standalone Basis eR) E Letom ric) 

aon 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 
Revenue from Operations 127.87 63.38 10,987.34 10,028.72 

Total Revenue From Operations 127.87 63.38 10,987.34 10,028.72 

Other Income 0.18 0.06 430.75 153.15 

Total Income 128.05 63.44 11,418.08 10,181.87 

Finance Cost 2.84 6.89 208.09 162.01 

Fees and Commission Expense - - - - 

Cost of Material Consumed - - 6793.95 6,515.36 

Purchase Of Stock in trade - - 2255.08 1662.10 

Purchase Of Shares - - - - 

ee nee [ear | cars 
Employee benefits expenses 33.25 30.38 457.35 459.17 

Depreciation, amortization and impairment - - 135.53 126.91 

Other expenses 16.88 15.53 617.77 534.07 

Total expenses 52.97 52.80 10,500.03 9380.85 

Exceptional items 260.09 - - - 

Profit /(Loss) before Tax 335.17 10.65 918.05 801.03 

Less: Tax Expenses 

Current Tax 43.18 1.93 83.67 66.91 

Deferred Tax 8.18 (1.62) 11.54 0.76 

Income Tax Earlier Years - - - - 

Excess or short provision of earlier years - - 0.51 (5.75) 

Profit after tax for the Period 283.81 10.34 822.33 739.10 

Total Other Comprehensive income - - 65.61 49.71 

Total Comprehensive income / (loss) for the Period 283.81 10.34 887.94 788.81               
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2. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND THE STATE OF 

COMPANY'S AFFAIRS: 

Operational Highlights: 

The Company is engaged in the business of Loans and 

Investments. Its subsidiary, namely Maximus 

International Limited (‘MIL’) is engaged in the 

business of importing and exporting lubricant oils 

and different types of base oils. The Company acts as 

a Merchant Exporter and Sourcing Company with a 

niche focus on lubricants & base oils. 

MIL has two Wholly Owned Subsidiaries - Maximus 

Global FZE (‘MGF') and MX Africa Limited (‘MXAL'). 

MGF is located at United Arab Emirates (UAE) and 

registered with Hamriyah Free Zone Authority, 

Sharjah. MGF is engaged in Marketing and Export of 

specialty, industrial and automotive lubricants. 

MXAL is located at Nairobi, Kenya. MXAL is a 

Marketing and Distribution entity for specialty, 

industrial and automotive lubricants, specialty 

chemicals and other value-added products, 

Maximus Lubricants LLC (‘MLL’) is a subsidiary of MGF 

and Step-down Subsidiary of MIL. MLL is a state-of- 

the-art manufacturing unit for specialty, industrial 

and automotive lubricants, specialty chemicals and 

other value-added products in Ras Al Khaimah, UAE. 

MLL has a highly trained professional team and a 

robust distribution network. 

Quantum Lubricants (E.A.) Limited (‘QLL’) is a Wholly 

Owned Subsidiary of MXAL and Wholly Owned Step- 

down subsidiary of MIL. QLL has a manufacturing 

facility for specialty, industrial and automotive 

lubricants, specialty chemicals and other value-added 

products. 

Standalone Financial Performance: 

Total revenue from operations on a standalone 

basis for the current year is 7127.87 Lakhs as 

against = 63.38 Lakhs in the previous year. 

Net profit for the current year is 283.81 Lakhs as 

against the net profit of 10.34 Lakhs in the 

previous year. 

Earnings per share stood at %0.74 before 
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exceptional items and at %3.80 after exceptional 

items on Face Value of 10 each. 

Consolidated Financial Performance: 

Total revenue from operations on a consolidated 

basis for the current year is $10,987.34 Lakhs as 

against 710,028.72 Lakhs in the previous year. 

Net Profit for the current year is 822.33 Lakhs as 

against 739.10 Lakhs in the previous year. 

Earnings per share stood at % 7.03 on Face Value of 

10 each. 

3. INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS: 

The Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st 

March 2024 have been prepared in accordance with 

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 

2015, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and other recognized accounting 

practices and policies to the extent applicable. 

4. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of your 

Company and its subsidiaries are prepared in 

accordance with Section 133 and other applicable 

provisions of the Act as well as SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015  (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) 

together with Auditors' Report thereon form part of 

this Annual Report. 

5. DIVIDEND: 

Your Directors have been planning to conserve the 

profits and continued investment in the business of 

the company, reason being no. dividend is 

recommended for the Financial Year 2023-24. 

6. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

The Company during the year under review, in 

accordance with Section 45-IC(1) of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934 has transferred = 56.76 Lakhs to 

Reserve of the Company. 

7.SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES/ JOINT VENTURE/ 

ASSOCIATES: 

As on 31st March 2024, your Company has following 
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Subsidiary(ies)/Step-down subsidiaries: 

i. Maximus International Limited - Subsidiary 

Company 

ii. Maximus Global FZE — Step-down Subsidiary - 

in Sharjah - UAE (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of 

Maximus International Limited) 

iii. MX Africa Limited — Step-down Subsidiary - in 

Nairobi - Kenya (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of 

Maximus International Limited) 

iv. Maximus Lubricants LLC - Step-down 

Subsidiary - in RAK - UAE (Subsidiary of 

Maximus Global FZE) 

v. Quantum Lubricants (E.A.) Limited - Wholly 

Owned Step-down Subsidiary - in Nairobi - 

Kenya (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of MX Africa 

Limited) 

During the Financial Year, your Board of Directors 

reviewed the affairs of the Subsidiaries/Step-Down 

subsidiaries. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 

129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act'), a 

statement containing salient features of financial 

performance of Subsidiaries/Step-Down subsidiaries 

in Form AOC-1 is furnished in ANNEXURE-1 and 

attached to this Report. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, 

the Financial Statements of the Company, 

Consolidated Financial Statements along with 

relevant documents and separate audited financial 

statements in respect of each Subsidiaries/Step- 

down subsidiary are available on the website of the 

Company www.optimusfinance.in 

The Company does not have any Joint Venture or 

Associate Companies during the year or at any time 

after the closure of the year and till the date of the 

report. 

The Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries of 

the Company, as approved by the Board, has been 

provided on the Company's’ website at 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2024/05/6.-Policy-for- 

Determining-Material-Subsidiaries.pdf. 

8. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY 

THE REGULATORS OR COURTS: 

No significant and material orders were passed by the 

Regulators or Courts or Tribunals, which impact the 
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going concern status and Company's operations in 

future. 

9. REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Para C of 

Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the 

Corporate Governance Report of the Company for 

the year under review and the Practicing Company 

Secretaries Certificate regarding compliance of 

conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to 

this report as ANNEXURE-2. 

In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 17 

of the SEBI Listing Regulations, a Certificate from the 

Whole time Director and Chief Financial Officer of the 

Company, who are responsible for the finance 

function, was placed before the Board. 

All the Board Members and Senior Management 

Personnel of the Company had affirmed compliance 

with the Code of Conduct for Board and Senior 

Management Personnel. A declaration to this effect 

duly signed by the Whole time Director is annexed as 

a part of the Corporate Governance Report. 

10. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILTY 

REPORT: 

The Board of Directors of the Company hereby 

confirms that according to the provisions of 

Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 

the Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report 

is not mandatorily applicable to the Company for the 

year under review ended on 31st March 2024, hence 

not annexed with Annual Report. 

11. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

I. Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 

of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment 

and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, along 

with Schedule IV to the Act and the SEBI Listing 

Regulations, Mr. Vinay Pandya (DIN: 08368828), 

Independent Director, was appointed at the 28th 

AGM of the members held on 30th September 

2019, to hold office for a term of 5 (five) 

consecutive years with effect from 20th February 

2019 to 19th February 2024, not liable to retire by 

rotation, on the Board of your Company. Thus, the 

current term of Mr. Vinay Pandya as an 

Independent Director of the Company ends on 
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19th February 2024. 

Considering his skills, background, experience, 

integrity, knowledge, expertise, and contributions 

made over last four years as an Independent 

Director of the Company and based on his 

performance evaluation, the Board believes that 

his continued association as an Independent 

Director would be of immense benefit to the 

Company. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of 

the Company based on the recommendation of 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

and approval received from Members in their 

meeting held on Saturday, 30th September 2023, 

re-appointed Mr. Vinay Pandya as an Independent 

Director of the Company for the second 

consecutive term of 5 (five) years, i.e., from 20th 

February 2024 to 19th February 2029 (both days 

inclusive). 

II. Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 

198 and 203 read with Schedule V and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act") and Rules made thereunder 

including the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014, and the Regulation 17(1C) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as amended (including any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, 

for the time being in force), the relevant provisions 

of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 

Dipak Raval (DIN: 01292764), Whole time Director 

of the Company, was appointed at the 29th AGM 

of the members held on 30th September 2020, to 

hold office for a period of 3 (three) years effective 

from 10th August 2020 to 9th August 2023. Thus, 

the current term of Mr. Dipak Raval as an Wole 

time Director of the Company ends on 9th August 

2023. 

Considering the growth of business, 

responsibilities of the Whole time Director are also 

correspondingly growing. Thus, the involvement 

of Mr. Dipak Raval in critical business matters 

requiring him to continue to shoulder larger 

responsibilities and devote more time and energy 

for achieving desired results, it was proposed to 

re-appoint Mr. Dipak Raval (DIN: 01292764) as 

Whole time Director of the Company for a period 

of 3 years effective from 10th August 2023 to 9th 
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August 2026 on such terms and conditions 

including remuneration as mentioned in draft 

agreement. 

Ill. Ms. Divya Prajapati resigned from the post of 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the 

Company with effect from 31st January 2024. 

IV. Ms. Krati Gupta was appointed as Company 

Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company 

with effect from 18th March 2024, The Board of 

Directors, on the basis of recommendation of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its 

meeting held on 18th March 2024 respectively 

approved the appointment of Ms. Krati Gupta as 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the 

Company. In the opinion of the Board, she 

possesses the requisite qualification, expertise 

and experience. 

Key Managerial Personnel: 

In terms of Section 203 of the Act, the following 

are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

as on 31st March 2024: 

¢ Mr. Dipak Raval -Whole-Time Director 

¢ Mr. Milind Joshi - Chief Financial Officer 

« Ms. Krati Gupta - Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer 

12. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND 

COMMITTEES: 

The Board met 6 (six) times during the Financial Year 

2023-24, the details of which are given in the 

Corporate Governance Report forming part of the 

Annual Report. The maximum interval between any 

two meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed 

in the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

Information on the Audit Committee, Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee and meetings of the 

respective Committees held during the year is given 

in the Corporate Governance Report. 

13. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

The Company has received necessary declarations 

from all the Independent Directors of the Company in 

accordance with Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act 

30



14. 

15. 

2013, that they meet the criteria of independence as 

laid out in Section 149(6) of the said Act and 

Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI 

Listing Regulations”). There has been no change in 

the circumstances affecting their status as an 

Independent Director during the year. 

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that 

they have complied with Schedule IV of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Company's Code of 

Conduct. 

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that all the 

Independent Directors possess requisite 

qualifications, experience and expertise in industry 

knowledge and corporate governance, and they hold 

highest standards of integrity. 

None of the Independent Directors hold any equity 

shares of your Company during the Financial Year 

ended 31st March 2024. 

None of the Directors have any relationships inter se. 

All the Independent Directors of your Company have 

confirmed their registration/renewal of registration 

on Independent Directors' Databank. 

BOARD EVALUATION: 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act and 

the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out 

an annual performance evaluation of its own 

performance, the directors individually as well as the 

evaluation of the working of its Audit Committee, 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee and 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The manner in 

which the evaluation has been carried out has been 

explained in the Corporate Governance Report. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Based on the framework of Internal Financial Controls 

and compliance systems established and maintained 

by the Company, the work performed by the Internal 

Auditors, Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors, 

including the Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

financial reporting by the Statutory Auditors and the 

reviews performed by Management and the relevant 

Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, 

the Board is of the opinion that the Company's 
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internal financial controls were adequate and 

effective during Financial Year 2023-24. 

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the 

Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and 

ability, confirm that: 

i.in the preparation of the Annual Financial 

Statements for the Financial Year ended 31st 

March 2024, the applicable accounting 

standards have been followed along with proper 

explanation relating to material departures, if 

any. 

ii, they have selected such accounting policies and 

applied them consistently and judgments and 

estimates have been made that are reasonable 

and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st 

March 2024, and of the profit of the Company 

for the period ended on that date. 

proper and sufficient care has been taken for 

the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company 

and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities. 

iv. the annual accounts have been prepared on a 

going concern basis. 

v. proper internal financial controls were in place 

and that the financial controls were adequate 

and were operating effectively. 

vi. systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws were devised 

and in place and were adequate and operating 

effectively. 

16. POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND 

REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) 

has been mandated to oversee and develop 

competency requirements for the Board based on the 

industry requirements and business strategy of the 

Company. The NRC reviews and evaluates the profiles 

of potential candidates for appointment of Directors 

and meets them prior to making recommendations 

for their nomination to the Board. Specific 
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requirements for the position, including expert 

knowledge expected, are communicated to the 

appointee. 

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel and all other employees is 

in accordance with the Remuneration Policy of the 

Company. The Company's policy on Directors’ 

appointment and remuneration and other matters 

provided in Section 178(3) of the Act is available on 

the website of the Company at 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2024/05/4.-Nomination-and- 

Remuneration-Policy.pdf. 

17. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

The Company has a mechanism in place to identify, 

assess, monitor, and mitigate various risks to key 

business objectives. Major risks identified by the 

businesses and functions are systematically 

addressed through mitigating actions on a 

continuing basis. 

18. ANNUAL RETURN: 

In compliance with Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the 

Act, Annual Return in Form MGT-7 is available on 

Company's website and can be accessed at 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/annual-return/. 

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

During the year under review, no transaction with 

related parties was in conflict with the interests of the 

Company. All Related Party Transactions are placed 

on a quarterly basis before the Audit Committee and 

before the Board for the noting and approval. Prior 

omnibus approval of the Audit Committee and the 

Board is obtained for the transactions which are of a 

foreseeable and repetitive in nature. 

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved 

by the Board can be accessed on the Company's 

website at = https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2024/05/5.-Policy-on-Related- 

Party-Transactions.pdf. 

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with 

related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of 

Section 188 of the Act in Form AOC-2 is annexed 

herewith as ANNEXURE-3 to this Report. 
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20. 

21. 

22. 

23. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The details of the composition of the Audit 

Committee, their terms of reference, details etc. are 

provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which 

forms part of this Report. 

During the year there were no cases where the Board 

had not accepted any recommendation of the Audit 

Committee. 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY: 

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations, your 

Company has in place a Nomination and 

Remuneration Policy which lays down a framework in 

relation to criteria and qualification for nomination & 

appointment of Directors, positive attributes and 

independence of a director, remuneration of 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 

employees of the Company. 

The policy also lays down criteria for selection and 

appointment of Board members. The said policy has 

been posted on the website of the Company and the 

web link thereto is: https://www.optimusfinance.in/ 

wp-content/uploads/2024/05/4.-Nomination-and- 

Remuneration-Policy.pdf. 

REPORTING OF FRAUD(S): 

During the year under review, neither the statutory 

auditors nor the secretarial auditor has reported to 

the Audit Committee, under Section 143(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud 

committed against the Company by its officers or 

employees, the details of which would need to be 

mentioned in the Board's Report, which forms part of 

this Annual Report. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS: 

There have been no material changes and 

commitments affecting the financial position of your 

Company between the end of the financial year to 

which the financial statement relates and date of this 

Report, which could have an impact on your 

Company's operation in the future or its status as a 

“Going Concern”. 
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24. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

There has been no change in the nature of business of 

your Company. 

25. DEPOSITS: 

During the year, your Company has not accepted any 

deposits within the meaning of Section 73 and 74 of 

the Act read together with the Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and hence there 

were no outstanding deposits and no amount 

remaining unclaimed with the Company as on 31st 

March 2024. 

26. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 

INVESTMENTS: 

Details of loans, guarantees and investments covered 

under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 are as set out in the notes to the 

accompanying financial statements provided in this 

Integrated Annual Report. 

27. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY 

PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY 

AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016: 

During the year under review, neither any application 

was made, nor any proceedings were pending under 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

28. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN 

AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME 

OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION 

DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS 

OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE 

REASONS THEREOF: 

There was no one-time settlement entered into with 

any Bank or Financial Institutions in respect of any 

loan taken by the Company. 

29. AUDITORS: 

29.1. STATUTORY AUDITORS 

The present Statutory Auditors, M/s. Shah Mehta 

and Bakshi, Chartered Accountants (Firm 

Registration. No. 103824W) were appointed at the 

30th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the 

Company held on 30th September 2021 for a term 
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of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion of 

the 30th AGM till the conclusion of the 35th AGM 

of the Company to be held in relation to the 

Financial Year ending on 31st March 2026. 

The Auditors have confirmed that they are not 

disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the 

Company. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS' REPORT 

The observations made by the Statutory Auditors 

in their Report read with the relevant notes as 

given in the Notes to the Financial Statement for 

the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2024 are 

self- explanatory and are devoid of any 

reservation, qualification or adverse remarks, 

29.2. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

In terms of provisions of Section 204 of the Act, 

read with the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 and Regulation 24A of SEBI Listing 

Regulations, the Board, at its Meeting held on 

25th May 2023 had appointed Mr. Hemang 

Mehta, Proprietor of M/s. H. M. Mehta & 

Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (COP 

No. 2554), to conduct Secretarial Audit for the 

Financial Year 2023-24. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

The report of the Secretarial Auditor in the 

prescribed Form MR-3 is annexed herewith as 

ANNEXURE-4. The Secretarial Auditors' Report 

for Financial Year 2023-24 does not contain any 

qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

The Company has undertaken an audit for the 

Financial Year 2023-24 for all the applicable 

compliances as per SEBI Regulations and 

Circulars/Guidelines issued thereunder and the 

same was obtained from Mr. Hemang Mehta, 

Proprietor of M/s. H. M. Mehta & Associates, 

Practicing Company Secretaries, Vadodara, 

Gujarat. 

The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for 
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Financial Year 2023-24 was submitted to the Stock 

Exchange in accordance with the timelines 

prescribed under Listing Regulations. 

29.3. INTERNAL AUDITOR 

M/s. DVG & Associates, Chartered Accountants, 

Vadodara (Firm Registration No: 130882W) has 

been appointed as Internal Auditors for Financial 

Year 2023-24 under Section 138 of the Act read 

with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014. 

30. COST AUDIT: 

31. 

Your Company is not required to maintain cost 

accounting records as specified under Section 148(1) 

of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and 

Audit) Rules, 2014. 

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism and 

adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy for its Directors 

and Employees in order to ensure that the activities of 

the Company and its employees are conducted in a 

fair and transparent manner by adoption of highest 

standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and 

ethical behavior. 

This policy is posted on the website of Company at 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp-content/ 

uploads/2024/05/3.-Vigil-Mechanism.pdf. 

32. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR 

ADEQUACY: 

The Company has a formal system of internal control 

testing which examines both the design effectiveness 

and operational effectiveness to ensure reliability of 

financial and operational information and_ all 

statutory/regulatory compliances. The Company has 

a strong monitoring and reporting process resulting 

in financial discipline and accountability. 

33. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL: 

As on 31st March 2024, the Authorised Share Capital 

of the Company was & 7,50,00,000/- comprising of 

75,00,000 Equity Shares of = 10/- each. 

During the year under review, there was no change in 
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Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share 

Capital of the Company. During the year under review, 

your Company has neither issued any shares with 

differential voting rights nor has granted any stock 

options or sweat equity. 

34. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 

Provisions of Section 135 of the Act relating to the 

Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives are not 

applicable to the Company. 

35. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND 

SHARES TO INVESTORS EDUCTION AND 

PROTECTION FUND (IEPF): 

Since no dividend has been declared by the 

Company, there was no unpaid/unclaimed dividend 

and accordingly no amount transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund, and the 

provisions of Section 125 of the Act do not apply. 

36. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED 

DISCLOSURES: 

The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) 

read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 are provided in ANNEXURE-S5 of the Annual 

Report. 

The Company has not appointed any employee(s) in 

receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits 

specified under Rule 5(2) of Companies 

(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

37. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual 

harassment at workplace and has adopted Policy on 

Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace in line 

with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. 

The Policy aims to provide protection to employees at 

workplace and prevent and redress complaints of 

sexual harassment and for matters connected or 

incidental thereto, with the objective of providing a 

safe working environment, where employees feel 
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secure. 

Following are the details of the complaints received 

by your Company during Financial Year 2023-24: 

  

  

To CMe Tate Tiler 

01 No. of complaints received 

during the year NIL 

02 No. of complaints disposed 

off during the year NA 

03 No. of cases pending for 

more than 90 days during the year NIL 
A conveitheacss i able onth           Pax id. nolicvwic ayal ay audahcita af 

CVPyY WT Ut SOMA RPYVTtSy TS CVO. ViTirit ¥ STU VT 

the Company at https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2022/01/Policy-on-Prevention-of- 

Sexual-Harassment-at-Workplace.pdf. 

38.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 

ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 

AND OUTGO: 

Since the Company is not a manufacturing company, 

the information pertaining to conservation of energy, 

technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings 

and outgo as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable 

to the Company. 

The Company has neither earned nor used any 

foreign exchange during the year under review. 

39. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

REPORT: 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the 

year under review as stipulated under Regulation 

34(2)(e) of the SEBI Listing Regulations is presented in 

ANNEXURE-6 and the same is forming part of this 

Report. 

40. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

Your company has devised proper systems to ensure 

compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India and approved by the 

Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Act 

from time to time and that such systems are found to 

be adequate and operating effectively. 
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41. LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES: 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the 

BSE Limited (BSE). 

42. GREEN INITIATIVES: 

In commitment to keep in line with the green 

initiatives and going beyond it, electronic copy of the 

Notice of 33rd Annual General Meeting of the 

Company including the Annual Report for Financial 

Year 2023-24 are being sent to all Members whose e- 

mail addresses are registered with the Company/ 

Depository Participant(s). 

43. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

Your Directors express their gratitude to all other 

external agencies for the assistance, co-operation 

and guidance received. Your Directors place on 

record their deep sense of appreciation for the 

dedicated services rendered by the workforce of the 

Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

For Optimus Finance Limited 

SD/- 

Dipak Raval 

Chairman & Whole time Director 

DIN: 01292764 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 13.08.2024 
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ventures 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs, Lakhs) 

* Particulars 

Financial Statements 

Form AOC-1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint 

Maximus 

International Limited 
Maximus 

Global FZE 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

Maximus 
Global FZE 

Maximus 

Lubricants LLC 

QO 

ANNEXURE-1 

Quantum Lubricants 
(E.A.) Limited* 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

                

1 | Reporting period for the subsidiary 

concerned, if different from the N.A NA N.A N.A N.A 

holding company’s reporting period 

2 | Reporting currency and Exchange Arab Emirates Kenyan shilling Arab Emirates Kenyan shilling 
Dirhams (AED) (KSH) 1 KSH= Dirhams (AED) 1 _ 

rate as on the last date of the NA 1 AED = & 22.5438| & 0.5684 for | AED = & 22.5438 for | (KSH) 1 KSH= € 0.5684 
relevant Financial year in the case for P&L 22.7022 | Pal 0.6326 P&L 22.7022 for B/s 
of foreign subsidiaries for B/s for B/s for B/s 

3 | Share capital 1257.20 476.75 69.59 68.11 862.55 

4 | Reserves & surplus 246.32 2105.50 (64.56) 337.90 73.38 

5 | Total assets 2,618.27 3424.35 650.07 2211.49 2348.83 

6 | Total Liabilities 1,114.76 842.10 645.04 1648.32 1412.90 

7 | Investments 447.45 157.85 347460 frre wenn 

8 | Turnover 817.86 4732.39 | ne 5893.17 3093.20 

9 | Profit before taxation 7.84 164.57 (28.35) 616.51 82.41 

10 | Provision for taxation (0.15) eee 275 | wee 41.76 

11 | Profit after taxation 7.99 164.57 (31.10) 616.51 40.65 

12|Proposed Dividend fe fee eee 

13 | % of shareholding 62.31% 100% 100% | wee fee     

Notes: 

1. Financial numbers presented above are prepared under IND-AS. Balance sheet and income statement are translated 

using closing foreign exchange rate as at 31st March 2024 respectively. 

2. | Maximus Global FZE and MX Africa Limited are wholly owned subsidiaries of Maximus International Limited 

respectively. 

3. | Maximus Lubricants LLC is a subsidiary of Maximus Global FZE and Quantum Lubricants (E.A.) Limited is a Wholly 

owned subsidiary of MX Africa Limited. 

4. Part B of the Annexure is not applicable as there are no Associate Companies / Joint ventures of the Company as on 

31st March 2024. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

For Optimus Finance Limited 

SD/- 

Dipak Raval 

Chairman & Whole time Director 

DIN: 01292764 

Date: 13.08.2024 

Place: Vadodara 
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ANNEXURE-2 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
Corporate governance is about promoting fairness, transparency, accountability, commitment to values, ethical business 

conduct and considering all stakeholders’ interests while conducting business. 

In accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

amendments thereto, (the 'SEBI Listing Regulations’), below are the corporate governance policies and practices of 

Optimus Finance Limited (the 'Company’). 

This report outlines compliance with requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the ‘Act’), the SEBI Listing 

Regulations and Reserve Bank of India’s (‘RBI’) Regulations for Non-Banking Financial Companies (the 'RBI Regulations’), as 

applicable to the Company. The Company's corporate governance practices and disclosures go well beyond complying 

with the statutory and regulatory requirements. 

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE: 

The Company believes in good corporate governance, the essential elements of which are fairness, transparency, 

accountability and responsibility. The Company has initiated significant measures for compliance with corporate 

governance. Your Company believes that adherence to good corporate practice leads to transparency in its operations 

and improvement in the quality of its relationship with all its stakeholders. The Company's policy and practices are 

aimed at efficient conduct of business and effectively meeting its obligation to its stakeholders. 

Good corporate governance practices enhances long term shareholders value by assisting the top management in 

taking sound business decisions and prudent financial management and achieving transparency and professionalism 

in all decisions and activities of the Company. 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

The Board of Directors (‘Board’) and its Committees play a significant role in upholding and furthering the principles of 

good governance, which translates into ethical business practices, transparency, and accountability, creating long term 

stakeholder value. 

In line with the commitment to integrity and transparency in business operations, the Company's policy is to have an 

appropriate blend of Independent and Non-Independent Directors to maintain the Board's independence and 

separate the functions of Governance and Management. 

The responsibilities of the Board, inter alia, includes formulation of overall strategy for the Company, reviewing major 

plan of actions, setting performance objectives, laying down the Code of Conduct for all members of the Board and the 

Senior Management team, formulating policies, conducting performance reviews, ensuring compliance with 

applicable laws, reviewing and approving the financial results, enhancing corporate governance practices and ensuring 

the best interest of the shareholders, the community, environment and its various stakeholders. 

The Board has constituted several sub-Committees. The remit of these Committees are governed by the regulations, 

business exigencies and matters warranting special and expert attention. The Company has a review calendar 

delineating the roles and responsibilities, terms of reference and frequency of review by the Committees. 

In terms of the Company's Corporate Governance Policy, all statutory and other significant and material information is 

placed before the Board to enable it to discharge its responsibility of strategic supervision of Company as trustees of the 

shareholders. 
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a) Composition: 

The Company strives to attain a balanced Board with an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive 

Directors, including independent professionals who provide independent judgment on issues of strategy and 

performance. The Company's Board of Directors currently comprises of four members, three of whom are Non- 

Executive Independent Directors and one Executive Director i.e. Whole-Time Director. The Non-Executive 

Directors are eminent professionals with vast experience of industry, finance and law. The Board is headed by an 

Executive Chairman. According to provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, if the Chairperson of the Board is nota 

regular Non-Executive Chairperson, at least half of the Board shall comprise of Independent Directors. All 

Independent Directors are eminent people bringing a wide range of expertise and experience, ensuring the best 

interests of stakeholders and the Company. Except for Independent Directors, all Directors are liable to retire by 

rotation. 

The composition of Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. All Independent Directors satisfy 

the criteria of independence as defined under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015). 

None of the Directors on the Company's Board are members of more than 10 (ten) committees or chairperson of 

more than 5 (five) committees (being Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee) across all the 

companies in which they are Directors. All Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding committee 

positions held by them in other companies and do not hold directorships in more than 20 (twenty) companies or 

10 (ten) public companies, whether listed or not. None of the Directors of the Company hold the position of 

Independent Director in more than 7 (seven) listed companies, Necessary disclosures regarding directorship 

positions in other Companies as on 31st March 2024 have been made by the Directors. 

All the Directors take an active part in Board and Committee meetings, adding value to the decision-making 

process. 

Composition of the Board as on 31st March 2024: 

Director Identification 
Name of Directors earn ty Preeite lire L ated ay Category 

  

  

  

    

01 | Mr. Dipak Raval 01292764 Chairman & Executive Director 
Whole - Time Director 

02 | Mr. Vinay Pandya 08368828 Direct Non’ Executive 
, y ¥ rector Independent Director 

. . Non-Executive 
. 429881 i . 04 Ms. Divya Zalani 0942988 Director Independent Director 

. . Non-Executive 
05 Mr. Rahil Thaker 07907715 Director . 

Independent Director             

b) Number of Board Meetings held & Dates: 

Regular meetings of the Board are held at least once a quarter, inter-alia, to review the quarterly results of the 

Company. Additional Board Meetings are convened, as and when required, to discuss various business policies, 

strategies and other businesses. The Board meetings are held at Registered Office of the Company. 

All the meetings were convened as per the provisions of the Act. The necessary quorum was present for all the 
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meetings. The gap between any two Board Meetings did not exceed 120 days as mandated under Section 173 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(2) of the Listing Regulations. The conduct of Board Meetings is in 

compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards on Meetings of 

the Board of Directors issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India. 

Details of the Board Meeting held during the Financial Year 2023-24: 

  

  

  

  

  

Sr.No. Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

01 25.05.2023 4 4 

02 12.07.2023 4 4 

03 14.08.2023 4 4 

04 08.11.2023 4 4 

05 13.02.2024 4 4 

06 18.03.2024 4 4             

c) Details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings and at the last year's Annual General Meeting: 

  

  

  

  

Name of the _ Designation RUC Ce Bo AGM 
Director 25.05.2023 12.07.2023 14.08.2023 08.11.2023 13.02.2024 18.03.2024 30.09.2023 

Mr. Dipak Raval Whole Time Director Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

. Independent, 
Mr. Vinay Pandya Non-Executive Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

. : Independent, 
Ms. Di Zal ‘ 

s. mivya falan! Non-Executive Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Independent, Mr. Rahil Thaker Penden Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 
Non-Executive                       

Y- Attended, A - Absent, N.A. - Not Applicable. 

d) Directorships and Committee Memberships in other companies: 

ET teem) Number of Number of Committees Positions Directorship in other listed 

  

  

  

  

Director Directorships in in other Public Companies** entity (Category of 
other Public - ree 
ery eh Member Chairperson Deeded 3D) 

Mr. Dipak Raval 1 2 Maximus International Limited 

fr Vipak hava “ (Managing Director) 

Mr. Vi Pand 1 2 Maximus International Limited (Non 

Vinay ranaya “ -Executive Independent Director) 

Ms. Divya Zalani 1 2 3 Maximus International Limited (Non 

5. Lilvya Zalani -Executive Independent Director) 

. 1 1 Maximus International Limited (Non 

Mr. Rahil Thaker - -Executive Independent Director)               

*Number of Directorships do not include Directorships of Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, 

Companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

**Only Audit Committee & Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee have been considered. 

e) Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se: 
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None of the Directors of the Company are related to each other. 

f) Number of Shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors: 

The Company does not have any convertible instruments and none of the Non-Executive Directors hold any shares 

of the Company. 

g) Matrixsetting out the skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Directors: 

The Board has a right blend of dynamism with each of the Directors having several years of vast experience and 

knowledge in various diversified functions. The Board is suitably equipped to understand the ever-changing 

business dynamics of NBFCs in which the Company operates and ensures that appropriate strategies are 

articulated, benefitting the Company in the long run. The Independent Directors provide their inputs and 

guidance at the Meetings of the Board which have been of immense help to the Company in pursuing strategic 

goals. The skills, expertise and competencies of the Directors which are essential for the functioning of the 

Company in an effective manner are given below: 

Name of Director Skills/expertise/competencies 

Mr. Dipak Raval Finance, Law, Management, Administration, Corporate Governance & Strategy. 
  

Mr. Vinay Pandya Law and Compliance. 
  

Direct Taxation, Indirect Taxation, Audit and assurance, Financial Management, 
Ms. Divya Zalani . . . . . . 

vy Advisory services, Secretarial services, Bookkeeping services. 
  

Performance evaluation, Records management, Onboarding, Training programs, 

Mr. Rahil Thaker Payroll coordination, Benefit administration, Work force improvements 

and recruitment strategies.         

h) Board Procedure: 

The annual tentative calendar of Board Meetings is circulated to the members of the Board, well in advance. The 

agendais circulated well in advance to the Board members, along with comprehensive background information on 

the items in the agenda to enable the Board members to take informed decisions. 

The Company Secretary tracks and monitors Board and Committee proceedings to ensure that the Terms of 

Reference are adhered to, decisions are properly recorded in the minutes and actions on the decisions are tracked. 

The Terms of Reference are amended and updated from time to time in order to keep the functions and role of the 

Board and Committees at par with the changing statutes. Meeting effectiveness is ensured through clear agenda, 

circulation of material in advance, detailed presentations at the meetings and tracking of action taken reports at 

every meeting. 

The Board plays a critical role in the strategic development of the Company. Mr. Dipak Raval, Chairman & Whole 

Time Director apprises the Board of the overall performance of the Company every quarter including the 

performance of the Subsidiary and overseas Step-down Subsidiaries. 

The Board periodically reviews the strategy, annual business plan, business performance of the Company and its 

Subsidiary and Step-down Subsidiaries. The Board also reviews the Compliance Reports of the laws applicable to 

the Company, Internal Financial Controls and Financial Reporting Systems, Minutes of the Meeting of the 

Subsidiary Companies, adoption of Quarterly and Annual Results and Minutes of Committees of the Board. 

The Board also reviews the declarations made by Mr. Dipak Raval, Chairman & Whole Time Director of the 

Company regarding compliance with all applicable laws and reviews the related compliance reports, on a quarterly 

basis. 

The information required under Part A of Schedule II to the SEBI Listing Regulations is also made available to the 
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Board, wherever applicable, for their consideration. 

i) Codeof Conduct: 

The Board of Directors of the Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board Members and Senior 

Management Personnel of the Company. The Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have 

affirmed compliance with the code for the year 2023-24. The said Code of Conduct has been posted on the website 

of the Company at the web link: https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Code-of- 

Conduct-for-Directors-and-Senior-Management-Personnel.pdf. A declaration to this effect is annexed and forms 

part of this Report. 

Apart from receiving remuneration that they are entitled to under the Act as Non-Executive Directors and 

reimbursement of expenses incurred in the discharge of their duties, none of the Non-Executive Directors has any 

other material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, its Promoters or Directors, its Senior 

Management, or its Subsidiaries. 

The Senior Management of the Company has made disclosures to the Board confirming that there is no material 

financial and/or commercial transactions between them and the Company that could have potential conflict of 

interest with the Company at large. 

j) Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading & Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices: 

In order to regulate trading in securities of the Company by the Designated Persons, your Company has adopted a 

Code of Conduct for Prohibition and Prevention of Insider Trading and the Code of Practices and Procedures for 

Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (‘The Code’) in accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of 

Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 which, inter alia, regulates, monitor and report trading by Designated Persons 

and prohibits the trading in shares by an ‘insider’ when in possession of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. 

The Code prevents misuse of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, and it also lays down guidelines and 

procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing with Equity Shares of the Company and 

obtaining pre-clearance for trading in securities of your Company by the Designated Persons. 

All the Directors and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct / Ethics as 

approved and adopted by the Board of Directors. The policy is available on our website at the web 

link:https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/Code-of-Conduct-for-Prevetion-of-Insider- 

Trading.pdf. 

Besides, as per the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors of the 

organization of every person required to handle Unpublished Price Sensitive Information shall ensure that a 

Structured Digital Database is maintained containing the nature of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and 

the names of such persons who have shared the information and with whom the information is shared under this 

regulation along with the Permanent Account Number (PAN) or any other identifier authorised by law where PAN 

is not available. Such database shall not be outsourced and shall be maintained internally with adequate internal 

controls and checks such as time stamping and audit trails to ensure non-tampering of the database. With regard 

to the same, the Company has initiated the maintenance of the Structured Digital Database (SDD) module 

internally and the necessary quarterly SDD Compliance Certificates and disclosures were intimated to the Stock 

Exchange within the prescribed timelines. 

k) Independent Directors: 

The Company has complied with the definition of Independence as per section 149 read with the provisions of 

Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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The Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed in terms of the requirements of the Act and the 

SEBI Listing Regulations. 

The Company has received a declaration from the Independent Directors in accordance with the Section 149(7) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 

149(6) of the Act read with Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances 

or situations which exist or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge 

their duties. 

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the Act and the SEBI 

Listing Regulations and that they are independent of the management. 

Further, pursuant to the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014, as amended, the 

Independent Directors have also furnished a declaration to the effect that they have included their names in the 

Database maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. 

During the year under review, Mr. Vinay Pandya (DIN: 08368828) was re-appointed as Independent Director of the 

company for the second term by passing a Special Resolution at Annual General Meeting held on 30th September 

2023. 

(i) Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors: 

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 08th November 2023, without the attendance 

of Non-Independent Directors and members of the Management for: 

¢ Reviewing the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 

e Reviewing the performance of Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of the Executive 

Directors and Non-Executive Directors; 

° Assessing the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management 

and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction on the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the 

Board as a whole. The Independent Directors were also satisfied with the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 

information between the Company management and the Board. 

(ii) Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors: 

Onan ongoing basis, the Company endeavors to keep the Board including Independent Directors abreast with 

matters relating to the industry in which the Company operates, its business model, risk metrics, mitigation and 

management, changes in regulatory landscape and preparedness of the Company, governing regulations, 

information technology including cyber security, their roles, rights and responsibilities and major 

developments and updates on the Company and group, etc. These include an orientation programme upon 

the induction of a new Director as well as other initiatives to update the Directors on an ongoing basis. 

The Board is also regularly apprised on the major developments in the Company between two meetings. The 

independent directors of the Company are made aware of their roles and responsibilities at the time of their 

appointment through a formal letter of appointment, which also stipulates various terms and conditions of 

their engagement. 

Further, the Company also makes periodic presentations at the meetings of the Board of Directors on various 
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aspects of the Company's operations including on Health and Safety, Sustainability, Business Strategy and 

Internal Control. 

The details of the Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors are disclosed on the Company's 

website at the web link: https://wwwoptimusfinance.in/wp-content/uploads/2024/05/7.-Details-of- 

Familiarization-Programs-for-Independent-Directors.pdf. 

(iii) Maximum tenure of Independent Directors: 

In terms of the Act, Independent Directors shall hold office for a term of up to five consecutive years on the 

Board of a Company but shall be eligible for re-appointment upon passing of a Special Resolution by the 

Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's Report. 

The tenure of the Independent Directors is in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

(iv) Formal letter of appointment to Independent Directors: 

The Company has issued a formal letter of appointment/re-appointment to Independent Directors in the 

manner provided in the Act. As per Regulation 46(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the terms and conditions of 

appointment/re-appointment of Independent Directors are placed on the Company's website and can be 

accessed at https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp-content/uploads/2024/05/1.-Appointment-Letter- 

Independent-Director.pdf. 

3. Committees of the Board: 

Pursuant to Listing Regulations, 2015 and provisions of the Act, the Board of Directors have constituted various 

Committees of Directors with adequate delegation of powers to properly discharge businesses of the Company. 

These Committees are: 

e Audit Committee 

* Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

* Stakeholders‘ Relationship Committee 

The details of these Committees are as follows: 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (“the Audit Committee”) its composition, quorum, powers, role and 

scope are in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule 

II of the Listing Regulations. The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to exercise effective control and 

supervision over financial reporting in order to ensure accurate, timely and proper disclosure of the financials of the 

company. 

(a) Terms of Reference: 

The terms of reference of Audit Committee include matters mandated in SEBI Listing Regulations and the Act 

respectively. The Audit Committee reviews the audit reports submitted by the Internal Auditors and Statutory 

Auditors and to meet them to discuss their findings, suggestions and other related matters, financial results, 

effectiveness of internal audit processes, Company's risk management strategy and Company's established systems 

and procedures. The Audit Committee also reviews the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism. Besides 

having access to all the required information from within the Company, the Committee may obtain external 
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professionals’ advice, whenever required. The Committee acts as a link between the Statutory and the Internal 

Auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company. 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are given below: 

1) Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 

ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

2) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company; 

3) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

4) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before 

submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 

* matters required to be included in the director's responsibility statement to be included in the board's 

report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act; 

¢ changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 

¢ major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management; 

* significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 

* compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; 

¢ disclosure of any related party transactions; 

¢ modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report. 

5) Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval; 

6) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 

those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 

agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 

recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter; 

7) Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 

process; 

8) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 

9) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

10)Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary; 

11) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

12)Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 

internal control systems; 

13)Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 

and frequency of internal audit; 

14) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

15)Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
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suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 

the matter to the board; 

16)Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 

well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

17)To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

18)To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 

19)Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate; 

20)Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the 

subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower 

including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this 

provision; 

21)Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, 

amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders; 

22)To review management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

23)To review management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

24)To review internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; 

25)To review the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the head of the internal auditor; 

26)To review statement of deviations of quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring 

agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of the Listing 

Regulations; 

27)To review statement of deviations of annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those 

stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of the Listing Regulations; 

28)To examine financial statement and the auditors' report thereon; 

29)Undertake such other functions as may be entrusted to it by the Board or prescribed under applicable 

statutory / regulatory requirements from time to time. 

Detailed terms of reference of the Committee can be accessed at https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2024/05/2.-Composition-of-Committees.pdf 

(b) The Composition of the Audit Committee as at 31st March 2024 and details of the Members participation at 

the Meetings of the Committee are as under: 

As on 31st March 2024 the Audit Committee consisted of 4 (four) Directors. Ms. Divya Zalani being the Chairperson 

of the Audit Committee. 
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Name of Category erste liebe Nace rie elm wee eel tac) 

Members Mee lias) Meetings held on 

25.05.2023 14.08.2023 08.11.2023 13.02.2024 

  

  

  

  

  

Ms. Diva Zalani Non-Executive Chai 

s. Vivya Zalani Independent Director airperson Y Y Y Y 

Mr. Dipak Raval Executive Director Member Y Y Y Y 

. Non-Executive 
Mr. Vi Pi . 

r. Vinay Pandya Independent Director Member Y Y Y Y 

. Non-Executive 
Mr. Rahil Thaker Independent Director Member Y Y Y Y                 

Y - Attended, A - Absent, N.A. - Not Applicable, 

During FY 2024, the Board had accepted all recommendations of the Committee. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

T 

1 
he Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 

9 read with Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(a) Terms of Reference: 

T 

e
w
 

he terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows: 

To formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director 

and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial 

personnel and other employees; 

For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall 

evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, 

prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The person recommended 

to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such 

description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may; 

e use the services of an external agencies, if required; 

* consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and 

¢ consider the time commitments of the candidates. 

To formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors; 

To devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 

To identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management 

in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and 

removal; 

To extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of 

performance evaluation of independent directors; 

To recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management; 

Any other terms of reference as laid down under Section 178 and other applicable provisions of the Act and 

Listing Regulations, as well as any other applicable legislation that may be in force or modified/implemented 

from time to time. 

(b) The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as at 31st March 2024 and details of 

the Members participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under: 
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As on 31st March 2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisted of 3 (three) Directors, all of 

whom are Non-Executive Directors. Ms. Divya Zalani being the Chairperson of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee. 

  

  

  

Name of be Te Cola rT eC Attendance at the Nomination and 

inlet oe Tom Remuneration Committee Meetings held on 

Committee 
25.05.2023 12.07.2023 14.08.2023 18.03.2024 

. lani Non-Executive hai 
Ms. Divya Zalani Independent Director Chairperson Y Y Y Y 

. Non-Executive 

Mr. Vinay Pandya Independent Director Member Y . Y Y 

Non-Executive 
Mr. Rahil Thaker Independent Director Member Y Y Y Y                   

Y- Attended, A - Absent, N.A. - Not Applicable. 

(c) Performance Evaluation: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Part D(A) of the Schedule II (Regulation 19(4) of SEBI Listing 

Regulations), the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of Board, the Directors including 

Independent Directors, individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its committees. A structured 

questionnaire was prepared, covering various aspects of the Board's functioning such as adequacy of the 

composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, 

obligations, and governance. 

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance 

evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. 

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

(d) Remuneration Policy: 

The Company's philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other employees is 

based on the commitment of fostering a culture of leadership with trust. The Company has adopted a Policy for 

remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, which is aligned to this philosophy. 

The key factors considered in formulating the Policy are as under: 

¢ — The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 

Directors to run the Company successfully; 

¢ — Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; 

and 

e Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management takes into consideration 

the performance of the Company and certain parameters, such as condition of the industry, achievement of 

budgeted targets, growth & diversification, remuneration in other companies of comparable size and 

complexity, performance of the directors at meetings of the Board and of the Board Committees etc. 

The Company's Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Board of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 

Senior Management Personnel is also accessible on Company's website: https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2024/05/4.-Nomination-and-Remuneration-Policy.pdf. 

The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme. 
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Detailed terms of reference of the Committee can be accessed at https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2024/05/2.-Composition-of-Committees.pdf 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 20 of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations read with Section 178 of the Act. 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee constituted as a mandatory Committee of the Board, comprises of 

two Non-executive & Independent Directors and one Executive Director of the Company and is headed by Ms. 

Divya Zalani. 

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as the Secretary to the Committee. 

(a) Terms of Reference: 

The Committee addresses all grievances of Shareholders/Investors and its terms of reference include the 

following: 

1) To resolve the grievances of the security holders of the company including complaints related to transfer/ 

transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of 

new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.; 

2) To review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders; 

3) To review of adherence to the service standards in respect of various services being rendered by the 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent; 

4) To review various measures and initiatives for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring 

timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company; 

and 

5) To undertake or perform such other role as required by law or as may be directed by the Board, from time 

to time. 

Detailed terms of reference of the Committee can be accessed at https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2024/05/2.-Composition-of-Committees.pdf 

(b) The Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as at 31st March 2024 and details of the 

Members participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under: 

As on 31st March 2024, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprised of 3 (three) Directors. Ms. Divya 

Zalani being the Chairperson of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

WET el Category 

un syeled es 

Designation Attendance at the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee Meetings held on 

ee ae Pan ede) 08.11.2023 

  

  

              

. . Non-Executive . 
Ms. Divya Zalani Independent Director Chairperson Y Y 

Mr. Dipak Raval Executive Director Member Y Y 
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Non-Executive 

Mr. Vinay Pandya Independent Director Member Y Y 
              

Y- Attended, A - Absent, N.A. - Not Applicable. 

(c) Details of Compliance Officer: 
  

ET T=] Ms. Divya Prajapati (till 31st January 2024) Ms. Krati Gupta (w.e.f. 18th March 2024) 
  

rE ee L eel Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
  

504A, OZONE, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, 

Vadi-Wadi, Vadodara-390003. 

504A, OZONE, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, 

Vadi-Wadi, Vadodara-390003. 
Xs (ele -eey 

  

Tel No. +91 — 265 — 232 5321 +91 — 265 — 232 5321 
  

  

    Email Id info@optimusfinance.in info@optimusfinance.in 
  

(d) Shareholder and Investor Complaints received and redressed during the Financial Year 2023-24: 

The details of complaints received/solved/pending during the Financial Year 2023-24 are as under: 
  

  

  

          

No. of Shareholders’ Complaints received during the Financial Year 2023-24 1 

No. of Complaints solved to the satisfaction of shareholder 1 

No. of Complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholder NA 

No. of pending complaints NIL 

4. SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has identified 

group of Senior Management Personnel(s), in accordance with Regulation 16(1)(d) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

Details of Senior Management Personnel(s) as on 31st March 2024 and changes therein during FY 2024 pursuant to 

provisions of Schedule V(C)(5B) of the SEBI Listing Regulations are as follows: 

  

  

Tom ee Name of Senior Management Personnel(s) Designation 

01 Mr. Milind Joshi Chief Financial Officer 

02 Ms. Divya Prajapati*1 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

03 Ms. Krati Gupta*2 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer           

*1—Resigned as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f 31st January 2024. 

*2—Appointed as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f 18th March 2024. 

There were no other changes except as stated above in Senior Management since the close of the previous Financial 

Year. 

5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 

(a) Pecuniary relationship/transaction with Non-Executive Directors: 

During the year under review, there was no pecuniary relationship or transactions between the Company and any of 

its Non-Executive Directors apart from sitting fees. 

(b) Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors: 
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Non-Executive Directors of the Company play a crucial role in the independent functioning of the Board. They bring 

in an external perspective to decision-making and provide leadership and strategic guidance while maintaining 

objective judgment. They also oversee the corporate governance framework of the Company.The criteria of making 

payments to Non-Executive Directors is placed on the Company's website and can be accessed at 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp-content/uploads/2024/05/4.-Nomination-and-Remuneration-Policy.pdf 

(c) Non-Executive Directors' Compensation and disclosures: 

The Non-Executive Directors are paid Sitting fees Rs. 3,000/- for attending every meeting of the Board of Directors. 

(d) Remuneration to Executive Directors: 

The Company pays remuneration to its Whole Time Director by way of salary and allowances as per the Company's 

rules. The salaries and other perquisites are approved by the Board of Directors on recommendations of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the salary is paid within the overall limits approved by the members 

of the Company. The Board, on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee approves 

the annual increment. 

(e) Stock options: 

The Company has not granted Stock Option to any of its Directors. 

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

(a) Annual General Meeting (AGM): 

Details of the last 3 (three) Annual General Meetings are given below: 

  

Details of Special Resolution Financial Year Date & Time 

2022-23 30th September Through Video 1. Re-appointment of Mr. Deepak Raval (DIN: 01292764) as a Whole 
2023 at 04.30 PM. Conferencing("VC") time Director of the Company. 

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Vinay Pandya (DIN: 08368828) as an 

Independent Director for the second term. 

3. Approval for Material Related Party Transaction(s) for Financial Year 

  

2024-25. 

2021-22 30th September Through Video 1. Appointment of Ms. Divya Zalani (DIN: 09429881) as an 

2022 at 04.00 PM. Conferencing ("VC") Independent Director of the Company. 
2. Appointment of Mr. Rahil Thaker (DIN: 07907715) as an 

Independent Director of the Company. 

3. Alteration of the Main Objects clause of the Memorandum of 

Association of the Company. 

4. Adoption of new set of Memorandum of Association of the 

Company. 

5. Adoption of newset of Articles of Association of the Company. 

6. Issue of Convertible Equity Warrants on Preferential Basis. 

7. Approval for Material Related Party Transaction(s) for Financial Year 

2023-24. 
  

2020-21 30th September Through Video ff 

2021 at 03.00 PM. Conferencing ("VC")             

(b) Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM): 

No Extraordinary General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company was held during the year under review. 
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(c) Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot — details of voting pattern: 

No special resolutions were passed during Financial Year 2023-24 through postal ballot. 

(d) Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise: 

Not Applicable 

(e) Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot: 

At present there is no proposal to pass any special resolution through postal ballot. 

(f) Procedure for postal ballot: 

Does notarise. 

7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

Annual Reports, notice of the meetings and other communications to the members are sent through e-mail, post or 

courier as the case may be. 

The circulars on conduct of General Meeting by VC/OAVM exempt companies from the requirement of sending hard 

copies of Annual Reports to members. Hence, the Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 is being 

sent only through electronic mode to the members whose email addresses are registered with the 

Company/Depositories. If any member wishes to get a printed copy of the Annual Report, the Company will send the 

same, free of cost, upon receipt of request from the member. 

In accordance with Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, 2015, the Company has maintained a functional website i.e. 

www.optimusfinance.in containing information about the Company viz. the details of its business, financial 

information, shareholding pattern, compliance with corporate governance norms, contact information of the 

designated officials of the Company who are responsible for assisting and handling investor grievances, etc. The 

contents of the said website are updated from time to time. 

(a) Quarterly Results: 

As a part of compliance with Regulation 10, 33 and 47 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company furnishes its 

Quarterly and Annual Financial Results to the Stock Exchange where its shares have been listed, followed by 

publication in the newspapers in accordance with the said Regulations. 

(b) Newspapers in which the results were published: 

Quarter ended Date of Publication Name of the newspapers carrying the publication 

  

  

  

            

June 30, 2023. 15th August 2023. Business Standard-Ahmedabad Edition (English) and Vadodara Samachar (Gujarati — 
Vernacular language). 

September 30, 9th November 2023. Financial Express-Ahmedabad Edition (English) and Loksatta Jansatta (Gujarati — 
2023. Vernacular language). 

December 31, 14th February 2024. Business Standard-Ahmedabad Edition (English) and Loksatta Jansatta (Gujarati — 
2023. Vernacular language). 

March 31, 2024. 31st May 2024. Financial Express-Ahmedabad Edition (English) and Financial Express (Gujarati — 

Vernacular language). 
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(c)Any website, where displayed: 

The Financial Results and the Shareholding Pattern of the Company are made available on the Company's website at 

www.optimusfinance.in and also on the website of BSE as part of corporate filing made by the Company from time to 

time with the said Stock Exchange. 

(d) Press Release: 

During the year under review, no press release was issued. 

(e) Institutional Investors/Financial Analysts Presentation: 

During the year under review, no presentation was made to Institutional Investors/Financial Analysts. 

8. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

(a) 33rd Annual General Meeting (AGM): 

Date: Monday, 30th September 2024 

Time: 04:00 P.M. 

Venue: Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing/Other Audio-Visual Means (VC/OAVM facility) 

Deemed Venue for Meeting: 

Registered Office: 504A, OZONE, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, Vadi-Wadi, Vadodara-390 003. 

(b) Financial Year: 

1st April to 31st March 

Tentative Financial Calendar for Results 2024-25: 

  

First Quarter Results June 2024) On or before 14th August, 2024 
  

Second Quarter Results (September 2024) On or before 14th November, 2024 
  

Third Quarter Results (December 2024) On or before 14th February, 2025 
  

Fourth Quarter Results and Annual (2024-25) On or before 30th May, 2025         

(c) Dividend Payment date: Not applicable 

(d) Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges and Stock Code: 

  

j. Name & Address of the Stock Exchanges and a BSE Limited (BSE) 

confirmation about payment of annual listing Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400 001. 

fee to each of such stock exchange(s) The Company has paid Listing Fees to BSE Limited, where the 

equity shares of the Company are listed. 
  

ii. Stock Code/Scrip Code 531254 
    iii. ISIN Number INE031G01014 

(e) Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company: L65910GJ1991PLC015044 

      

(f) Market Price Data: 

High/low market price of the Company's equity shares traded on stock exchange(s) where the shares of the 

Company are listed during the last Financial Year are as follows: 
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Month High Rey Close 

April 2023 92.00 57.50 89.42 

May 2023 99.00 78.20 84.58 

June 2023 90.00 67.49 76.51 

July 2023 82.84 69.50 77.10 

August 2023 87.95 70.00 82.00 

September 2023 84.00 73.50 81.32 

October 2023 90.00 72.90 81.54 

November 2023 91.31 5 82.20 

December 2023 109.40 75.00 88.83 

January 2024 98.50 84.50 92.90 

February 2024 144 86.90 118.02 

March 2024 122.95 87.15 90.25             

Statutory Reports 

(g) Stock Performance in comparison to Broad-based indices BSE Sensex: 

Monthly Comparison Chart of the Share Prices (in 2) with the BSE SENSEX along with the number of Shares traded 

during the period from 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

              

Financial Statements 

Month BSE SENSEX (Close) Share Price (Close) (®) No of Shares Traded 

April 2023 61112.44 89.42 565 

May 2023 62622.24 84.58 680 

June 2023 64718.56 76.51 406 

July 2023 66527.67 77.70 241 

August 2023 64831.41 82.00 294 

September 2023 65828.41 81.32 226 

October 2023 63874,93 81.54 407 

November 2023 66988.44 82.20 404 

December 2023 72240.26 88.83 1939 

January 2024 71752.11 92.90 714 

February 2024 72500.3 118.02 2175 

March 2024 73651.35 90.25 960 

(h) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA): 

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. Branch Office: 

C 101, Embassy 247, L.B.S.Marg, Vikhroli (West), 

Mumbai — 400 083 

Phone: +91 22 49186270 | Fax: +91 22 49186060; 

Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in; 

Website: www.linkintime.co.in 
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Geetakunj, 1, Bhakti Nagar Society, Behind ABS 

Tower, Old Padra Road, Vadodara — 390015 

Phone: 0265 - 3566 768 

Email: vadodara@linkintime.co.in. 
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(i) ShareTransfer System: 
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Share transfers and related operations for the Company are processed by the Company's RTA viz., Link Intime India Private 
Limited, Share transfer is normally affected within the maximum period of 15 days from the date of receipt, ifallthe required 
documentation is submitted. 

SEBI vide its notification dated o8th June 2018 has notified SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth 

Amendment) Regulations, 2018 (Listing Regulations) and SEBI (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018 (RTA Regulations) and amendment to Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and 
Clause 5(c) of Schedule Ill ofthe RTA Regulations. 

These amendments have mandated that the transfer of securities would be carried out only in dematerialized form. Thus, 
the Company encourages the holding of shares in dematerialized form. 

Accordingly, attention of all the shareholders holding shares in physical form is brought to the following: 

INFORMATION FOR PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDERS: 

With reference to SEBI Circular dated 3rd November 2021 read with SEBI Circulars dated 14th December, 2021, 25th January 

2022, 16th March 2023 and 17th November 2023 on Common and Simplified Norms for processing Investor's Service, 

shareholders holding shares in physical form, to furnish the following documents mandatorily to Company / our Registrar & 
Share Transfer Agent (RTA) to lodge grievance or avail service request from the RTA and further shall not be eligible for 
receipt of dividend in physical mode w.e.f. astApril, 2024. 

P
W
N
 

Pp 

Declaration for opting-out of Nomination (Form ISR- 3). 

Valid PAN including of all Joint Shareholders duly linked with Aadhaar and KYC details (Form ISR-1) 

BankAccount details (Bank Name, Branch, BankAccount No, IFSC Code and MICR code) (FormISR-1) 

Address with Pin code, Email id and Mobile Number (Form ISR-1) 

Specimen Signature (Form |SR-2) 

Registration of Nominee (Form No. SH-33) or 

Details of the above forms are available on the website of the Company as well as website of the Registrar and Share transfer 
agent of the Company. Necessary communication through letters have been sent to all the physical shareholders in this 
regard in the month of May 2023 and July 2024. Intimation to Stock Exchange is timely made pertaining to the issuance of 
Reminder Letter(s) sent to shareholders. 

(j) Distribution of shareholding by Size as on 31st March 2024: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

                

No. of Shares No. of Shareholders % of Shareholders No.of Sharesheld % of shareholding 

1-500 2790 93.8130 3,30,681 443 

501-1,000 76 2.5555 63,909 0.86 

1,001-2,000 43 1.4459 67,291 0.90 

2,001-3,000 12 0.4035 29,448 0.39 

3,001-4,000 6 0.2017 22,037 0.29 

4,001-5,000 4 0.1345 18,932 0.25 

5,001-10,000 16 0.5380 1,13,593 1.52 

10,001 and above 27 0.9079 68,26,409 91.36 

Total 2974 100.0000 74,72,300 100.00 
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(k) Category wise Shareholding pattern as on 31st March 2024: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

            
  

  

  

  

Category of shareholders No. of Shares held EL miele | 

Bodies Corporate (Promoter) 40,27,103 53.8938 

Body Corporate — Limited Liability Partnership 3,70,000 4.9516 

Other Bodies Corporate 9,32,791 12.4833 

Hindu Undivided Family 3,21,497 4.3025 

Non-Resident Indians 16,517 0.2210 

Non- Resident Indians (Non Repatriable) 6,936 0.0928 

Public 17,97,456 24.0549 

Total 74,72,300 100.00 

(I) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: 

atta Ley CoM Tie) Percentage (%) 

Physical Segment 2,67,170 3.58 

Demat Segment: 

1) CDSL 39,65,531 53.07 

2) NSDL 32,39,599 43.35 

Total 74,72,300 100           
(m) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on 

equity: 

The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversation date 

Convertible Instruments as on 31st March 2024. 

(n) Commodity price risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging activities: 

The Company is not dealing in commodities and hence disclosure relating to commodity price risks and commodity 

hedging activities is not applicable. 

(o) Plant Locations: 

The Company is NBFC, and it does not have any plant/manufacturing unit. 

(p) Address for Correspondence: 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent Branch Office: Registered Office: 

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. Geetakunj, 1, Bhakti Nagar Society, Optimus Finance Limited 

C101, Embassy 247, L.B.S.Marg, Vikhroli Behind Abs Tower, Old Padra Road, 504A, OZONE, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai 

(West), Mumbai-—400 083 Vadodara-— 390015 Marg, 

Phone: +91 22 49186270 | Fax: +91 22 Phone: 0265 - 3566 768 Vadi-Wadi, Vadodara-390003, Gujarat. 

49186060; Email: vadodara@linkintime.co.in. Phone: +91 - 265 - 232 5321 

Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in; Email: info@optimusfinance.in 

Website: www.linkintime.co.in Website: www.optimusfinance.in 

(q) List of credit ratings obtained: 

Company is not required to obtain credit rating from the Credit Rating Agency during the Financial Year 2023-24. 
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9. OTHER DISCLOSURES 

(a) Disclosures on materially significant Related Party Transactions that may have potential conflict with the 

interests of listed entity at large: 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, there was no materially significant Related Party Transaction that may have 

potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. Transactions with Related Parties are given in the notes 

to the Financial Statements. 

The Company has policy on Related Party Transactions and the said policy is available on the Company's website at 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp-content/uploads/2024/05/5.-Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf 

(b) Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures: 

The Company has continued to comply with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI, RBI and other statutory 

authorities on all relevant matters. There were no cases of penalties or strictures imposed on the Company by any 

Stock Exchange, SEBI, RBI or any other statutory authorities for any violation related to capital market/any other 

related matter or relating to conditions of licensing by the RBI, during the last three years. 

(c) Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy: 

Pursuant to Section 177(9) and 10 of the Act and Regulation 22 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has 

formulated Whistle Blower Policy for Directors and Employees to report to the management instances of unethical 

behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company's code of conduct or ethical policy. The Policy ensures 

that strict confidentiality is maintained whilst dealing with concerns and also that no discrimination will be meted 

out to any person for a genuinely raised concern. 

None of the personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

The Policy has been posted on the website of the Company at https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2024/05/3.-Vigil-Mechanism.pdf 

(d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements: 

Mandatory: 

The Board of Directors periodically reviews the compliance of all applicable laws. The Company has complied with all 

the mandatory requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations including but not limited to the provisions of 

Regulations 17 to 27 and 46(2)(b) to (i) of the said Regulations. 

Discretionary: 

The following non-mandatory requirements as prescribed under Part E of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations 

to the extent they have been adopted are mentioned below: 

1. The Board: 

The requirement relating to maintenance of office and reimbursement of expenses of Non-Executive Chairman is 

not applicable to the Company since the Chairman of the Company is an Executive Director. 

2. Shareholders’ Rights: 
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The quarterly financial performance is published in the newspapers and are also posted on the Company's website. 

3. Modified opinion(s) in audit report: 

The Company's Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 do not contain any modified audit opinion. 

4. Separate posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer: 

The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director. 

(e) List of key policies of Optimus Finance Limited: 

Sr. No. 

01 

ET teem eli Cag 

Policy on Preservation of Documents 

Website URL 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp 

content/uploads/2023/05/Policy-on-Preservation-of- 

Documents.pdf 

  

02 Archival Policy 
https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2023/02/Archival-Policy.pdf 

  

03 
Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior 

Management Personnel 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2023/02/Code-of-Conduct-for-Directors- 

and-Senior-Management-Personnel.pdf 
  

04 
Code of Conduct for Prevention of 

Insider Trading 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2022/01/Code-of-Conduct-for-Prevetion-of- 

Insider-Trading.pdf 
  

05 Fair Practice Code 
https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2022/01/Fair-Practice-Code.pdf 

  

06 Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2024/05/4.-Nomination-and-Remuneration- 

Policy.pdf 
  

07 Policy for Determining Material Subsidiaries 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2024/05/6.-Policy-for-Determining- 

Material-Subsidiaries.pdf 
  

038 
Policy on Determination of Materiality of 

Events or Information 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp 

content/uploads/2024/05/11.-OFL-POLICY-ON 

DETERMINATION-OF-MATERIALITY-OF-EVENTS-V3. pdf 

  

09 
Policy on familiarization programmes for 

independent directors 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2024/05/7.-Details-of-Familiarization- 

Programs-for-Independent-Directors.pdf 

  

10 
Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment 

at Workplace 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2022/01/Policy-on-Prevention-of-Sexual- 

Harassment-at-Workplace.pdf 
  

11 Policy on Related Party Transactions 

https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- 

content/uploads/2024/05/5.-Policy-on-Related-Party- 

Transactions.pdf 
  

12     Vigil Mechanism   https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp- content/uploads/2024/05/3.-Vigil-Mechanism.pdf     
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(f) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: 

The Company does not deal in commodities and hence the disclosure pursuant to SEBI Circular dated November 15, 

2018, is not required to be given. 

(g) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement as 

specified under Regulation 32 (7A).: 

The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or Qualified Institutional Placement as 

specified under Regulation 32 (7A). 

(h) A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the Company 

have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 

Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority: 

The Company has obtained a Certificate from Mr. Hemang Mehta, Proprietor of M/s. H. M. Mehta & Associates, 

Practicing Company Secretaries, Vadodara, Gujarat to the effect that none of the directors on the Board of the 

company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 

Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

(i) Where the Board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board, which is 

mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year.: 

During the year under review, there have been no instances whereby the Board of Directors of the Company has not 

accepted the recommendations made by any Committee of the Board on any matter which is mandatorily required. 

(j) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory 

auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part. 

Details relating to fees paid to the Statutory Auditors are given in Note 21 to the Standalone Financial Statements 

and Note 33 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

(k) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013: 

The disclosure as required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 is given below: 
  

  

  

      

Number of complaints filed during FY2024 NIL 

Number of complaints disposed off during FY2024 N.A 

Number of complaints pending at the end of FY2024 NIL 
  

(I) Compliance with Accounting Standard: 

In the preparation of the Financial Statements, the Company has followed the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules thereunder. The Significant Accounting Policies which 

are consistently applied have been set out in the notes to the financial statements. 

(m) Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account: 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Part F of the SEBI Listing Regulations, there are no shares lying in the 

suspense account as on 31st March 2024. Further, no pledge has been created over the equity shares held by the 

promoters. 
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(n) Disclosure by the Company and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 

firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount. 

The disclosure relating to loans and advances as on 31st March 2024 made by the Company and its subsidiaries to 

firms/companies in which directors are interested, are set out in the Financial Statements for Financial Year 2023-24. 

(0) Details of material subsidiaries as on 31st March 2024: 

Name of Material Maximus Maximus Global Maximus Quantum Lubricants 

  

  

  

  

Subsidiaries International Limited FZE Lubricants LLC (E.A.) Limited* 

Date of Incorporation 22nd December, 2015 2nd April, 2017 26th February, 2018 1st December, 2019 

/ Acquisition 

Place of Vadodara, Sharjah — UAE RAK - UAE Nairobi - Kenya 

Incorporation Gujarat — India 

Name of Statutory Shah Mehta and Bakshi Hussain Alsayegh** Hussain Alsayegh** Moore JVB LLP 

Auditors 

Date of appointment 30th September, 2023 28th June, 2022 28th June, 2022 14th March, 2022 

of Statutory Auditor               
*Quantum Lubricants (E.A.) Limited is Wholly Owned Subsidiary of MX Africa limited (WOS of MIL). 

** Restructuring: Name of CNK Hussain Alsayegh has been changed to Hussain Alsayegh effecting from 7th 

February 2024. 

A Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS) of Optimus Finance Limited in the name of ‘Maximus Infra Ventures Limited’ is 

incorporated on 11th July 2024 which shall enable to capitalize on growth opportunities in the dynamic real estate, 

infrastructure and construction sector. This strategic move will enhance the Company's agility and strengthen its 

customer-centric approach, positioning it for sustained success in these markets. 

10. Non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report of sub-paras (2) to (10) above, with 

reasons thereof shall be disclosed: 

NIL 

11. Extent to which the discretionary requirements specified in Part E of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations have 

been adopted: 

Given in 9(d) 

12. Disclosures of the Compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and 

clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46: 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) 

of sub- regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

13. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES: 

The Company has Material Subsidiaries as defined under Regulation 16 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, accordingly, the 

Corporate Governance requirements applicable with respect to Material Unlisted Subsidiary has been complied with. 

The Company's Audit Committee reviews the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as well as the 
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Financial Statements of the Subsidiaries, including the investments made by the Subsidiaries. The Minutes of the Board 

Meetings, along with a report of the significant transactions and arrangements of the unlisted subsidiaries of the 

Company, as applicable, are placed before the Board of Directors of the Company. 

The Company has formulated a policy for determining Material Subsidiaries and the Policy is disclosed on the 

Company's website at: https://www.optimusfinance.in/wp-content/uploads/2024/05/6.-Policy-for-Determining- 

Material-Subsidiaries.pdf 

14. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION: 

Mr. Dipak Raval, Chairman & Whole-Time Director and Mr. Milind Joshi, Chief Financial Officer have issued certificate 

pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, certifying that the Financial Statements 

do not contain any materially untrue statement, and these statements represent a true and fair view of the Company's 

affairs. The said certificate is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report. 

15. CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

A Compliance Certificate from Mr. Hemang Mehta, Proprietor of M/s. H. M. Mehta & Associates, Practicing Company 

Secretaries, Vadodara, Gujarat pursuant to Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations regarding compliance of 

conditions of Corporate Governance is attached. 

DECLARATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE V PART D OF THE SEBI 

(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

I, Dipak Raval, Chairman & Whole-Time Director of Optimus Finance Limited hereby declare that all the members of the 

Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct 

of the Company as laid down by the Company for the year ended 31st March 2024. 

Date: 13.08.2024 For Optimus Finance Limited 

Place: Vadodara 

SD/- 

Dipak Raval 

Chairman & Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 01292764 
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
(Under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

Optimus Finance Limited 

We, Mr. Dipak Raval, “Chairman & Whole time Director” and Mr. Milind Joshi, “Chief Financial Officer” of Optimus Finance 

Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that: 

a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2024 and: 

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 

that might be misleading; 

ii. | these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with 

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by Company during the year 31st March 

2024 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed Company's code of conduct. 

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 

evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have 

disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if 

any, of which we are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee 

i. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

ii. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to 

the financial statements; and 

iii. instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial 

reporting. 

For Optimus Finance Limited 

Date: 29.05.2024 SD/- a oO 
Place: Vadodara Dipak Raval Milind Joshi 

. Chairman & Whole-Time Director Chief Financial Officer 

DIN: 01292764 

Annual Reports 2023-24 61 

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements Q 

Certificate of Non-disqualification of Directors 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule-V Para-C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

To, 

The Members of Optimus Finance Limited 

504A, Ozone, 

Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, 

Vadi-wadi, 

Vadodara-390003, 

Gujarat, India 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Optimus 

Finance Limited having CIN: L65910GJ1991PLC015044 and having registered office at 504A, Ozone, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai 

Marg, Vadi-wadi, Vadodara-390003, Gujarat, India (hereinafter referred to as “the Company’), produced before me/us by 

the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C 

Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, as amended from time to time. 

In my opinion and to the best of my / our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 

Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 

Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the 

Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi 

(MCA) or any such other Statutory Authority/ies. 

Name of Director Date of appointment Date of cessation 

  

  

  

    

01 Mr. Dipak Vrajlal Raval 01292764 10.08.2015 — 

02 Mr. Vinay Shrikrishna Pandya 08368828 20.02.2019 _— 

03 Mr. Rahil Thaker 07907715 31.12.2021 — 

04 Ms. Divya Chirayu Zalani 09429881 31.12.2021 _—             

  
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate 

is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For H. M. Mehta & Associates 

Company Secretaries 
Date: 13.08.2024 

Place: Vadodara 

SD/- 

Hemang Mehta 

Proprietor 

FCS No.: 4965 

C. P. No.: 2554 

Peer Review No.: 1184/2021 

UDIN: F004965F000970457 
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

REQUIREMENTS UNDER SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

To 

The Members, 

Optimus Finance Limited 

504A, Ozone, 

Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, 

Vadi-wadi, 

Vadodara-390003, 

Gujarat, India 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Optimus Finance Limited (“the Company’) 

for the year ended on 31st March, 2024 as stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company's Management. Our 

examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the 

Compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the 

financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and representations made 

by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 

Governance as stipulated in the provisions as specified in Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For H. M. Mehta & Associates 

Company Secretaries 
Date: 13.08.2024 

Place: Vadodara 

SD/- 

Hemang Mehta 

Proprietor 

FCS No.: 4965 

C. P. No.: 2554 

Peer Review No.: 1184/2021 

UDIN: F004965F000970776 
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ANNEXURE-3 

Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 

referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions 

under third proviso is given below: 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: 
  

Name(s) of the Related Party Maximus International Limited 
  

Nature of relationship Subsidiary Company 
  

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions Sub Lease Agreement 
  

Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions From 01.09.2023 to 31.08.2026 
  

Occupying office space of the Maximus International Limited 

admeasuring about 200 square feet situated at 504A, Ozone, 

Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, Vadi-Wadi, Vadodara-390003 as Registered 

Office. 

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transactions including the value, if any 

Receiving Lease Rent of Rs. 10,000/- per month till 30.09.2023 and 

thereafter Rs. 13,000/- per month w.e.f. 01.10.2023. 

  

Justification for entering into such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions 

Being holding-subsidiary relationship, 

administrative/commercial ease 

Date(s) of approval by the Board 14.08.2023 

Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL 

  

  

  

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general 

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188 NA         

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Not Applicable 

(b) Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions: Not Applicable 

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions: Not Applicable 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Not Applicable 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: Not Applicable 

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable 

Date: 13.08.2024 

Place: Vadodara 

For and on behalf of the Board 

For Optimus Finance Limited 

SD/- 

Dipak Raval 

Chairman & Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 01292764 
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ANNEXURE-4 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
For the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

Optimus Finance Limited 

504A, Ozone, 

Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, 

Vadi-wadi, 

Vadodara-390003, 

Gujarat, India 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by Optimus Finance Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in 

a manner that provided me / us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and 

expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company, the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 

during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the 

Management, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year 

ended on 31st March, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 

Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 

hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; - Not Applicable 

during the Audit Period 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBI Act’): 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, as amended from time to time; 
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b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018; - Not Applicable during the audit period 

c. | The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Snares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; - Not Applicable 

during the audit period 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefitsand Sweat Equity) Regulations, 

2021; - Not Applicable during the review period 

f. | The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 

2021; - Not Applicable during the audit period 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; - Not Applicable 

during the audit period 

h. | The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

i. | The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

je. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996 / 2018; 

(vi)The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and RBI Directions, Rules and Guidelines as applicable to the NBFCs. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i. Secretarial Standards under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India. 

ii, | TheListing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited (BSE). 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 

the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 

sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 

on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 

meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be. 
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OPTIMUS OPTIMUS 
FIN AN CE FIN AN CE 

We further report that To, 

The Members, 
There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Optimus Finance Limited 

Company to monitor and ensure compliance with other applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 504A, Ozone, 

Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, 
During the audit period the Company has undertaken following events / actions having a major bearing on the Vadi-wadi, 

Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, acts, rules, regulations, circulars, notifications, directions, Vadodara-390003, 

guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above:. Gujarat, India 

1. On 30th September, 2023, the members at the Annual General Meeting (AGM), inter-alia approved: 

a. Re-appointment of Mr. Deepak Raval (DIN: 01292764) as a Whole time Director of the Company, for a period of 

three years; 1. 

b. | Re-appointment of Mr. Vinay Pandya (DIN: 08368828) as an Independent Director for the second term; and 

c. Approval for Material Related Party Transaction(s) for Financial Year 2024-25. 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the random test basis to ensure 

that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide 

a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

We further report that 

During the year under review, Mr. Deepak Raval resigned from the position of Company Secretary with effect from 

25.05.2023 and Ms. Divya Prajapati has been appointed as Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 

26.05.2023. Accordingly, a comment mentioned in our report, issued for the last financial year ended on 31st March, 3 
We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Compan 

2023, for holding dual positions by Mr. Deepak Raval has been fully dispensed with. Prep Pany 
since the same have been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals. 

Note: This Report is to be read with our Letter of even date which is annexed and forms an integral part of this report. . . . . 
P gra'P P 4. | Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc. 
Date: 13.08.2024 For H. M. Mehta & Associates 

Place: Vadodara Company Secretaries 5. | The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

SD/ responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random test basis. 

Hemang Mehta 6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficiency or 
Proprietor . . . . 

FCS No.: 4965 effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

C. P. No.: 2554 

Peer Review No.: 1184/2021 

DIN:F004965F' 7 
U 004965F000970380 Date: 13.08.2024 For H. M. Mehta & Associates 

Place: Vadodara Company Secretaries 

SD/- 

Hemang Mehta 

Proprietor 

FCS No.: 4965 

C. P. No.: 2554 

Peer Review No.: 1184/2021 

UDIN:F004965F000970380 

Annual Reports 2023-24 67 Annual Reports 2023-24 68  



Q Corporate Overview Statutory Reports — Financial Statements 

ANNEXURE-5 
[Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

i. ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for 

the Financial Year 2023-24: 

ii, |The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, 

Company Secretary for the Financial Year 2023-24: Rupees in Lakhs 

NTC MLC mele ieee Mes ehicedi 
Name of Directors/KMP of Director/ each Director/ to Median during the Financial 

42 remuneration of employees Year 2023-24 

  

Independent Directors 
  

  

  

Mr. Vinay Pandya* NIL N.A NA 

Ms. Divya Zalani* NIL NA NA 

Mr. Rahil Thaker* NIL NA NA 
  

Whole time Director 
  

Mr. Dipak Raval 29.61 8.06: 1 6.71 
  

Chief Financial Officer 
  

  

  

  

Mr. Milind Joshi1 NIL NA NA 

Company Secretary 

Ms. Divya Prajapati* 2.54 NA NA 

Ms. Krati Gupta’ 0.17 NA NA           
  

*Entitled for sitting fees 

Notes: 

1. Mr. Milind Joshi, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company who is also acting as CFO of Maximus International 

Limited i.e Subsidiary Company and is on the payroll of Maximus International Limited. 

2. Ms. Divya Prajapati, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company resigned on 31st January 2024, 

Remuneration figure provided as above is till resignation date. 

3. Ms. Krati Gupta is appointed Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company is appointed w.e.f 18th 

March 2024. Remuneration figure provided above is from the date of appointment. 

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 

Except for Mr. Dipak Raval, Chairman & Whole time Director of the Company, there has been no increase in 

remuneration of employees during the year under review. 

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 02 (two) 

(v) The average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than managerial 
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personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 

remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 

increase in the managerial remuneration: 

The percentage increase in the salaries of employees other than Managerial Personnel has not considered as 

except for Mr. Dipak Raval, Chairman & Whole time Director of the Company, there has been no increase in 

remuneration of employees during the year under review. 

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 

Remuneration paid to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees is as per the remuneration policy 

of the Company. 

Date: 13.08.2024 

Place: Vadodara 

For and on behalf of the Board 

For Optimus Finance Limited 

SD/- 

Dipak Raval 

Chairman & Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 01292764 
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ANNEXURE-6 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

Indian economy has grown with better pace with more participation of the domestic players in expanding industries and 

accelerating service sector. 

The Government's initiatives with political stability are giving better fruits enabling us to reach out to various sections of 

society and business. 

Global Economic Conditions & Outlook 

Global growth is projected to be in line with the April 2024 World Economic Outlook (WEO) forecast, at 3.2 percent in 2024 

and 3.3 percent in 2025. 

Services inflation is holding up progress on disinflation, which is complicating monetary policy normalization. Upside risks 

to inflation have thus increased, raising the prospect of higher for even longer interest rates, in the context of escalating 

trade tensions and increased policy uncertainty. The policy mix should thus be sequenced carefully to achieve price stability 

and replenish diminished buffers. 

(Courtesy —IMF) 

Outlook 

India's Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth for the first quarter of the current financial year 2024-25 is expected to have 

slowed to around 7%, less than the 7.8% growth seen in the March quarter. Economists expect that the Indian economy's 

growth would have tapered due to a slowdown in government spending on the back of the Lok Sabha polls. 

India will retain the tag of being the world’s fastest growing major economy, say experts. Ahead of the GDP data for April- 

June 2024 quarter, Moody's has revised upwards its GDP growth forecast for India. According to Moody's Ratings India's 

GDP will grow at 7.2% in the calendar year 2024 and 6.6% in the 2025 calendar year. The ratings agency sees a strong broad- 

based growth for the Indian economy. EY has also predicted that India's real GDP growth for FY25 will range between 7% 

and 7.2%. 

# Reported by IMF/WB/Deloitte 

NBFC-Present & Future 

In the current decade, we have observed that the NBFCs have undergone a significant transformation to become inevitable 

part of India's financial system by contributing in the development of infrastructure, transport and employment generation 

couples with the changes with the time. NBFCs are already offering the right financial products to consumers and small 

businesses in a customized manner. The use of technology to optimize business processes also keeps cost overheads to a 

minimum, enabling credit to be availed at highly competitive interest rates. The success of NBFCs can be clearly attributed 

to their better product lines, lower cost, wider and effective reach, strong risk management capabilities to check and 

control bad debts, with a better understanding of their customer segments. 

Review Of Operations 

Your Company has earned total revenue of = 127.87 Lakhs with a net profit of = 335.17 Lakhs during the Financial Year 2023- 

24. 
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Your Company's performance during the Financial Year 2023-24 is as follows: 

Revenue from 

Total Revenue From Operations 

Other Income 

Total Income 

Finance Cost 

Fees and Commission 

Cost of Material Consumed 

Purchase Of Stock in trade 

Purchase Of Shares 

in inventories to finished stock in trade and Work-i ress 

benefits 

amortization and 

Other 

Total 

Items 

Profit before Tax 

Less: Tax 

Current Tax 

Deferred Tax 

Income Tax Earlier Years 

Profit after tax for the Period 

Total Other income 

Total income for the Period   
Opportunities & Threats: 

Opportunities 

Non-banking finance companies (NBFCs) play a significant role in the financial sector and they have tremendous 

opportunities in the retail sector. 

Non-banking finance companies’ higher level of customer orientation, fewer pre- and post-sanction requirements, simple 

and speedy tailor-made services and higher rate of return on small savings have assured them a loyal clientele despite 

higher costs. 

Non-banking finance companies have been instrumental in providing funds and small savings avenues to various sectors. 

These companies constitute an important link between banks and customers in look out for more services. They have 

become an accepted and integral part of the Indian financial services in view of their complementary as well as competitive 

role. 

Tremendous opportunities are unfolding for NBFCs in the retail lending business consequent to a cultural change 

sweeping across the country. 

Threats 

e« — NBFCs act as a perfect substitute for banks for facilitating the poor and underprivileged who could not get access 

to banks. Thus, banks could be termed as competitors. 

e The unorganized money lenders have a strong presence in the rural markets. They pose a big threat to the NBFCs 

in the rural areas. 

e The bargaining power of suppliers/depositors is quite high since they have many alternatives at their disposal to 
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¢ invest their money depending on their risk appetite. 

e  Theservice offerings by NBFCs are almost the same. Thus, there is a low level of service differentiation. 

¢ Due to the increased rivalry among the NBFCs, there has been use of aggressive selling & intensive marketing 

strategies by the companies to gain the market share. 

Internal Control Systems And Their Adequacy 

The Company has an adequate internal control system commensurate with its size and the nature of its business in order to 

achieve efficiency in operation and optimum utilization of resources. These controls ensure safeguarding of assets, 

reduction and detection of fraud and error, adequacy and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation 

of reliable financial information. Internal audits are conducted in the Company on regular basis. 

Risks And Concerns 

Every business has both Risk and Return and they are inseparable. As a responsible management, the Company's principal 

endeavor is to maximize returns. The Company continues to take all steps necessary to minimize its expenses through 

detailed studies and interaction with experts. Our senior management identifies and monitors the risk on regular basis and 

evolves process and system to control and minimize it. With regular check and evaluation business risk can be forecasted to 

the maximum extent and thus corrective measures can be taken in time. 

Human Resources 

Human resources are valuable assets for any organization. The employees of the Company have extended a very 

productive cooperation in the efforts of the management to carry the Company to greater heights. The Company is giving 

emphasis to upgrade the skills of its human resources and continuous training down the line is a normal feature in the 

Company to upgrade the skills and knowledge of the employees of the Company. 

Cautionary Statement 

Statement in this Report describing the Companies objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be 

“forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results may differ 

materially from those either expressed or implied. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the members of Optimus Finance Limited 

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Optimus Finance Limited (“the Company’), which 

comprise the standalone balance sheet as of 31st March 2024, the standalone statement of Profit and Loss (including other 

comprehensive income), standalone statement of cash flows, standalone statement of changes in equity for the year then 

ended and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other 

explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as “Standalone financial statements’). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and 

give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read 

with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, its profit and other comprehensive 

income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 

the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 

with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 

that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 

Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion on the standalone financial statement. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 

standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 

on these matters. We have determined following key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

Na 

No. 
Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 

  

4 |The Company has a substantial exposure in loan] How the matter was addressed in our audit: 
given to various parties: 

e We have evaluated the relevant agreements 

The company has given loan in form of corporate} entered into by the company with the various 
deposit of Rs. 1426.52 Lakhs. The above exposure in parties for the corporate deposit given. 
corporate deposit forms a substantial portion of the|* We have also evaluated the relevant terms 

          

net worth of the company. and conditions agreed between the parties. 
Refer Note no. 5 and 30 of the standalone financial] * The purpose for which the loan was given. 
statement. 
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Board's Report including annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Governance 

and shareholders information but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

The above-referred information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

When we read the information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 

communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions necessitated by the 

circumstances & the applicable laws and regulations. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true 

and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity & 

cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 

accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true 

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 

of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so; 

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 
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¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)() of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls; 

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by management; 

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 

doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 

required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if 

such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 

agoing concern; 

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation; 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements 

may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 

and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone 

financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 

audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 

describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 

when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India 

in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the 
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matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a)We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b)In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 

our examination of those books. 

(c)The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, 

standalone changes in equity and the Standalone Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 

with the books of account; 

(d)In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, 

(e)On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the 

Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in 

terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

(f)With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B". 

(g)In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration 

paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197(16) of the Act, 

as amended. 

(h)With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor‘s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us: 

i. The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position. 

ii, The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material 

foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 

iii. As per information and explanation given to us, there is no amount that required to be transferred to Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv.a) The Management has represented, to the best of its knowledge and belief that, no funds have been advanced or 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 

Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 

("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The Management has represented, to the best of its knowledge and belief that, no funds have been received by the 

company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 

or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 
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c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub- 

clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided contain any material misstatement. 

v. There is no dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company and hence provisions of section 123 of the 

companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 

vi, Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software for maintaining 

its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we 

did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi 

Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 103824W) 

SD/- 

(Prashant Upadhyay) 

Partner 

M No. 121218 

UDIN: 24121218BKCSSI8770 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 29-05-2024 
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Annexure-A to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Annexure-A, referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone 

financial statements for the year ended 3 1st March 2024, we report that, 
  

I(a)(A) | The company does not have any property plant and accordingly the reporting under clause no i(a)(A) is not 
applicable to the company. 

i (a)(B) | The company does not have any intangible asset and accordingly the reporting under clause no. I (a)(B) of 

the order, relating Intangible asset is not applicable to the company; 

i(b) | According to the information and the explanation given to us, the company does not have any property plant 

and equipment and accordingly the reporting under clause no. i(b) of the order is not applicable to the 

company. 

1() According to the information and the explanation given to us, the company does not have any immovable 

property and accordingly the reporting under clause no. i (c) of the order, relating to the title deeds of the 

immovable property is not applicable to the company. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have 

i(d) | any Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the year and accordingly the reporting 

under clause no. i(d) of the order is not applicable to the company. 

As disclosed in note no. 36 (i) of the standalone financial statement and as verified by us, no proceedings 

i (e) have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any Benami property under the Benami 

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder; 

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the company does not hold 

ii(a) | any physical inventories, hence the reporting under clause ii (a) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company; 

ii(b) | In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the company does not have 

sanctioned any working capital limit during the year under consideration based on security of current assets, 

and accordingly the reporting under clause no. ii (b) of the order is not applicable to the company. 

iii {aJThe Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, and its principal business is to give loans. 

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b)In respect of the loans and advances granted in nature of loans, the terms & conditions of the loans and 

advances are not prejudicial to the interest of the company. 

(c)With respect to loans & advances granted in nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal 

and the payment of interest has been stipulated and the same is regular. 

(d)In respect of loans & advances granted in nature of loan, there is no amount overdue for more than 90 

days. 

(e)The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, and its principal business is to give loans. 

Accordingly, reporting under clause (iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(f})The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand 

or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under 

clause (iii)(f) is not applicable to the company. 

Other than that, mentioned above, the company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any 

other advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 

Partnership or any other parties.           Annual Reports 2023-24 79
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vi 

vii (a) 

vil (b) 

viii 

ix (a) 

ix (b) 

ix (c) 

ix (d) 

ix (e) 

ix (f) 

Xx (a)     

Based on our verification of the documents provided to us and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, the Company has 

complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the company has not 

accepted deposits from the public. However, the provisions of section 73 to 76 are not applicable to the 

company being registered under section 45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934 i.e., NBFC. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has 

not prescribed the maintenance of cost records by the company under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 

2013; 

In our opinion, the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods 

and Service tax, income-tax, and other statutory dues as applicable to the appropriate authorities. There 

were no undisputed amounts payable with respect to above statutory dues in arrears as of March 31, 2024, 

for a period of six months from the date they became payable; 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues of 

referred in sub-clause (a) that has not been deposited on account of disputes; 

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation provided to us, as disclosed in note no. 

36(vii) of the standalone financial statement, there were no transactions which were not recorded in the 

books of account, that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments 

under the Income Tax Act, 1961; 

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation provided to us, the company has not 

defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender; 

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation provided to us, as disclosed in note no. 

36 (ix) of the standalone financial statement, the company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or 

financial institution or other lender; 

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the term loans were applied 

for the purpose for which the said were obtained. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall examination 

of the standalone financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term basis 

have not been utilized for long term purposes. 

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us & on overall examination of 

the financial statement, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to 

meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the company has not raised 

loans during the year on the pledge of the securities held in its subsidiaries and accordingly the reporting 

under clause ix (f) is not applicable to the company. 

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the Company has not raised 

moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and 

accordingly the reporting under clause no. x(a) of the order is not applicable;     
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X (b) 

xi (a) 

xi (b) 

xi (c) 

xii 

xiii 

xiv (a) 

& (b) 

xviii 

xix     

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the books and records of the 

Company examined by us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 

shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the 

requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, we have neither came across any incidence of fraud on or by the Company 

noticed or reported during the year, nor we have been informed of any such case by the management; 

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 

during the year and up to the date of this report. 

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company 

during the year. 

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the Company is not a 

Nidhi company and accordingly the reporting under clause xii (a) to (c) of the order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, all the transactions with the 

related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable 

and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable 

accounting standards; 

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of this audit report, for the period under audit 

have been considered by us, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and accordingly the 

compliance under the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable; 

(a) The Company is registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial activity without a valid certificate of 

Registration from Reserve Bank of India as per Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

(c) The company is a not Core Investment Company (CIC); accordingly, the reporting under the clause (c) 

of the order does not applicable to the company. 

The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current financial year or in the immediately 

preceding financial year. 

There is no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and hence the reporting requirement 

under clause xviii of the order is not applicable to the company. 

Based on our examination financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, 

knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, there is no material uncertainty exists as on       Annual Reports 2023-24 81
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the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 

balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that 

our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 

any assurance that all liabilities if any falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 

get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due; 

xx(a) In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the provisions of Corporate 

& Social Responsibility (CSR) are not applicable to the company accordingly the reporting under clause xx (a) 

xx(b) and (b) of the order is not applicable to the company.         

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi 

Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 103824W) 

SD/- 

(Prashant Upadhyay) 

Partner 

M No. 121218 

UDIN: 24121218BKCSSI8770 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 29th May 2024 

Annexure-B: Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub section 3 of section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Optimus Finance Limited (“the Company”) as of 

31st of March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended 

on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the guidance note on audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 

our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
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Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 

a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 

the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

onthe Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 

assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 

be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 

are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, 

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi 

Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 103824W) 

SD/- 

(Prashant Upadhyay) 

Partner 

M No. 121218 Place: Vadodara 

UDIN: 24121218BKCSSI8770 Date: 29th May 2024 

Annual Reports 2023-24 83



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

                            

  

Q Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements Q 

OPTIMUS OPTIMUS 
FIN AN CE FIN AN CE 

st e 

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2024 Standalone Statement Of Profit And Loss 
All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated F Th Vy E d d 3 1 M h 2 02 4 ee ee or Ihe Year Ende st March, 

id A Note son 31st s on 31st . . 
ea ELE All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated 

No. No March, 2024 March, 2023 
qi elm (Leite re rela it (re ice} 

ASSETS ieee cag pelo rs) 31st March, 2023 
Re f i 01 Financial Assets evenue from operations 

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 15.36 8.99 (i) | Interest Income 7 127.87 63.38 
(b) Loans 5 1,426.52 1,105.80 I Total revenue from operations 127.87 63.38 

(c) Investments 6 651.16 665.02 
(d) Other financial assets - - 0 Other Income 18 0.18 0.06 

i Total Income 128.05 63.44 

02 | Non-financial Assets Expenses 
(a) Inventories - - Finance Costs a 19 2.84 6.89 

(b) Current tax assets 7 11.30 15.70 Fees and commission expense - - 
(c) Deferred tax assets (Net) 8 0.76 8.94 Purchase of Shares - - 
(d) Property, plant and equipment - - Changes in Inventories of finished goods, stock-in - - 

(e) Other non-financial assets - - trade and work-in progress 
Employee Benefits Expenses 20 33.25 30.38 

Total Assets 2,105.11 1,804.46 Depreciation and amortization expense - - 

Others expenses 21 16.88 15.53 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY IV Total Expenses 52.97 52.80 

LIABILITIES Vv Profit / (loss) before exceptional items 75.08 10.65 

01 Financial Liabilities and tax (III-IV) 

(a) Payables VI | Exceptional items 31 260.09 - 

() Trade Payables vil | Profit before t 335.17 10.65 
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 0.05 0.67 roriy berore tax : . 

and small enterprises VIII | Tax Expenses: 

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other 9 0.32 0.26 (1) Current Tax 43.18 1.93 
than micro enterprises and small enterprises (2) Deferred Tax 23 8.18 (1.62) 

(b) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 10 19.87 34.72 (3) Income tax earlier years - - 

(c) Other Financial liabilities 11 2.13 1.68 IX | Profit for the period 283.81 10.34 

02 | Non-Financial Liabilities x Other Comprehensive Income 

(a) Current tax liabilities (Net) 14 31.51 - (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - - 

(b) Provisions 12 5.03 4.31 (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be - - 

(c) Other non-financial liabilities 13 0.66 1.09 reclassified to profit or loss 

Total Other Comprehensive Income - - 

03 | EQUITY x Total C hensive I for th iod 283.81 10.34 
(a) Equity share capital 15 747.23 747.23 ° omprenensive income rorme perio - - 
(b) Other equity 16 1,298.31 1,014.50 Earnings per equity share 

Total Liabilities and Equity 2,105.11 1,804.46 Basic and Diluted before Exceptional items (Rs.) 24 0.74 0.17 

Basic and Diluted after Exceptional items (Rs.) 3.80 0.17 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements. For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements. For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
As per Our report of even date SD/- SD/- 

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi Dipak Raval Milind Joshi As per Our report of even date SD/- SD/- 
Chartered Accountants (Whole Time Director) (Chief Financial Officer) For Shah Mehta & Bakshi Dipak Raval Milind Joshi 
Firm Registration No. : 103824W DIN: 01292764 Chartered Accountants (Whole Time Director) (Chief Financial Officer) 

Firm Registration No. : 103824W DIN: 01292764 

SD/- sp/- sp/- SD/- SD/- SD/- 
Prashant Upadhyay Vinay P andya Krati Gupta Prashant Upadhyay Vinay Pandya Krati Gupta 

Partner (independent Director) (Company Secretary) Partner (Independent Director) (Company Secretary) i DIN: 08368828 y y Membership No. 121218 Membership No. 121218 DIN: 08368828 
Place: Vadodara Place: Vadodara Place: Vadodara Place: Vadodara 

Date: 29th May, 2024 Date: 29th May, 2024 Date: 29th May, 2024 Date: 29th May, 2024 

Annual Reports 2023-24 84 Annual Reports 2023-24 85  



Q Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements 

Standalone Statement Of Changes In Equity 
For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024 

All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated 

a. Equity Share Capital: 

Changes in Equity Restated balance Changesinequity Balance as at 

Balance as at 1st April, 2023 Share Capital due as at share capital during 31st March, 

to prior period errors 1st April, 2023 tema Ls 2024 

747.23 - 747.23 - 747.23 

  

  

Changes in Equity Restated balance Changesinequity Balance as at 

Balance as at 1st April, 2022 Share Capital due to Fw share capital during 31st March, 

prior period errors aS Veli | rd 77 Teas 2023 

557.23 - 557.23 190.00 747.23 

  

  

b. Other Equity: 

era ete eye) (UC 

Reserve Fund 
Particulars Security Retained U/S 45-IC (1) Of 

Premium earnings Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 

  

  

  

Balance as at 1st April, 2023 1,194.10 | (232.56) 52.95 1,01.50 
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors 7 7 7 - 

Restated balance as at 1st April, 2023 (A) 1,194.10 | (232.56) 52.95 1,01.50 
(Loss)/Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss - 283.81 - 283.81 

Additions during the year - - - - 

Less :Transaction cost - - - - 

Other Comprehensive Income - - - - 

Transfer to retained earnings of FVOCI equity investments, net of tax - - - - 

  

  

Transfer to Statutory Reserve created u/s 45IC of RBI Act - (56.76) 56.76 - 

Total Comprehensive Income (B) - 227.05 56.76 283.81 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024 (A+B) 1,194.10 (5.51) 109.72 1,298.31 
                

Reserves and Surplus 

Reserve Fund 
Particulars Security Retained U/s 45-IC (1) of 

Premium earnings Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 

  

  

  

  

              

Balance as at 1st April, 2022 573.33 | (240.83) 50.89 383.39 

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors = = = = 

Restated balance as at 1st April, 2022 (A) 573.33 | (240.83) 50.89 383.39 

(Loss)/Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss - 10.34 - 10.34 

Additions during the year 627.00 - - 627.00 

Less :Transaction cost (6.23) - - (6.23) 

Other Comprehensive Income - - - - 

Transfer to retained earnings of FVOCI equity investments, net of tax - - - - 

Transfer to Statutory Reserve created u/s 451C of RBI Act - (2.07) 2.07 - 
Total Comprehensive Income (B) 620.77 8.27 2.07 631.11 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023 (A+B) 1,194.10 | (232.56) 52.95 1,014.50 
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Nature and purpose of reserves: 

i. Securities premium: 

Securities Premium is used to recognise the premium received on the issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act 2013. 

ii. Retained Earnings: 

Retained earnings comprises of accumulated balance of profits/(losses) of current and prior years including transfers 

made to / from other reserves from time to time. The reserve can be utilized or distributed by the Company in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

iii. Reserve Fund U/S 45-IC (1) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934: 

As required by section 45-IC of the RBI Act 1934, the company maintains a reserve fund and transfers there in a sum not 

less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is 

declared. The company cannot appropriate any sum from the reserve fund except for the purpose specified by Reserve 

Bank of India from time to time. Till date RBI has not specified any purpose for appropriation of Reserve fund 

maintained under section 45-IC of RBI Act,1934. The company has transferred a twenty per cent of net profit in reserve 

fund As required by section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements. For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

SD/- SD/- 
As per Our report of even date Dipak Raval Milind Joshi 

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi (Whole Time Director) (Chief Financial Officer) 
Chartered Accountants DIN: 01292764 
Firm Registration No. : 103824W 

SD/- SD/- SD/- 
Prashant Upadhyay Vinay Pandya Krati Gupta 

Partner (Independent Director) (Company Secretary) 

Membership No. 121218 DIN: 08368828 

Place: Vadodara Place: Vadodara 
Date: 29th May, 2024 Date: 29th May, 2024 
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement 
For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024 

All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated 

J 
For th 13 

as Particulars 
‘or the year Ended on 

Financial Statements 

elm Blairs Cre el) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

              

Cd EMR a tee ergy) 31st March, 2023 

A | Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit before income tax 335.17 10.65 

Adjustments for : 

Depreciation and amortization expense - - 

(Profit)/Loss on discarded assets - 0.04 

Finance Cost 2.84 6.89 

Provision for standard assets 0.80 171 

Profit on Sale of Investment (260.09) - 

Net Adjustments (256.46) 8.64 

Operating profit before working capital changes 78.72 19.28 

Adjustments for Net (Increase) / Decrease in Operating Assets:- 

(Increase) / Decrease in loans (320.72) (685.36) 

(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets - 1.20 

(Increase) / Decrease in other non financial assets 441 - 

(Increase) / Decrease in inventory - - 

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (0.56) (1.28) 

Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities & provisions (0.07) (0.59) 

Cash generated from operations (238.22) (666.74) 

Direct taxes paid 11.67 6.15 

Net cash from operating activities (A) (249.89) (672.89) 

B | Cash flows from investing activities 
(Increase)/ Decrease in loans given - - 

Proceeds/(purchase) from sale of Investment 273.95 - 

Net cash (used) in Investing activities (B) 273.95 . 

C | Cash flow from financing activities : 

Borrowings (other than debt securities) (14.85) (129.91) 

Cash Proceeds from issuing equity shares net of transactional cost - 810.77 

Finance Cost (2.84) (6.89) 

Net cash (used) in financing activities (C } (17.68) 673.98 

Net Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents [(a) + (b) + (c)] 6.38 1.09 

Cash And Cash Equivalents At The Beginning Of 8.99 7.90 

The Year As Per Note 4 

Cash And Cash Equivalents At The End Of The Year As Per Note 4 15.36 8.99 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements. For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

Note: 1. Figures in the brackets represents cash outflow. 
SD/- SD/- 

As per Our report of even date Dipak Raval Milind Joshi 

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi (Whole Time Director) (Chief Financial Officer) 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. : 103824W 
DIN: 01292764 

SD/- SD/- 

Prashant Upadhyay Vinay Pandya 

Partner (Independent Director) 

Membership No. 121218 DIN: 08368828 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 29th May, 2024 

Annual Reports 2023-24 

SD/- 

Krati Gupta 

(Company Secretary) 
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Standalone Notes forming part of the financial statements 
All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated 

1. Corporate Information 

The Company was incorporated on 11.02.1991 and a Fresh Certificate of Registration was obtained from Reserve Bank 

of India on 20.05.2004 as Non-Banking Finance Company (Not Accepting Public Deposits). It is at Registrar of 

Companies, Ahmedabad. The registered address of the Company is 504A, 5th Floor ,Ozone, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, 

Vadiwadi, Vadodara-390003. 

At present the company is engaged in Non-Banking Finance activity consisting of Investment in Shares and Securities 

and other investment and financing activities. 

2. Basis of Preparation 

i. Statement of Compliance 

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") notified under 

section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”), to be read with Rule 3 of the Companies (indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time. 

ii. Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared ona historical cost basis, except the following: 

¢ Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 

iii, Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency, and all values 

are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except otherwise indicated. 

iv. Composition of Financial Statements 

The financial statements are accordance with Ind AS presentation. The financial statements comprise: 

- Balance Sheet 

- Statement of Profit and Loss 

- Statement of Changes in Equity 

- Statement of Cash Flow 

- Notes to Financial Statements 

3. Material Accounting Policy Information and Other Explanatory Notes 

3.1 Material Accounting Policies 

A. Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. 

An asset is treated as current when itis: 

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
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- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading 

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash 

and cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current / 

noncurrent classification of assets and liabilities. 

B. Property, Plant and Equipment: 

Recognition and measurement: 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated 

depreciation, and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes purchase price, including non-refundable duties and taxes, 

expenditure that is directly attributable to bring the assets to the location and condition necessary for its intended use 

and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, if any. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for, as 

separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gains or losses on their disposal, determined 

by comparing sales proceeds with carrying amount, are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Subsequent Expenditure: 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the 

expenditure will flow to the Company. 

De-Recognition: 

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 

expected to arise from its use. Any gain or loss arising from its de-recognition is measured as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the 

asset is de-recognized. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value: 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided based on straight line method and in the manner 

prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if 

appropriate. 

Capital Work-in-Progress: 

Plant and properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, 

less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying asset, borrowing costs 

capitalized in accordance with the Company's accounting policies. Such plant and Properties are classified and 

capitalized to the appropriate categories of Property, Plant and Equipment when completed and ready for intended 

use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the asset are ready for 

their intended use. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is 

classified as capital advances under “Other Non-Current Assets” and the cost of assets not put to use before such date 

are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. 

C. Impairment of Non financial assets: 
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At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine 

whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the 

recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it 

is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable 

amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of 

allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the 

smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. 

The Company’‘s corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate 

asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs. 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is 

allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying 

amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis. Moreover, when an impairment loss 

subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that 

this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated 

amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an 

impairment loss is recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss immediately. 

D. Inventories: 

The company is a Non Banking Financial Company primarily engaged in investing & credit related activities to which the 

“IND AS 2- Inventories” is not applicable. The same has been valued as per "IND AS 109 - Financial instruments. 

E. Financial Instruments: 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity. 

Financial Assets: 

Initial recognition, classification and measurement: 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 

through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade 

receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price, 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories: 

- Financials Assets at Amortised Cost: 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to 

hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

- Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to 

hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

- Financial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 

Financial assets which are not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or 
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loss. 

Equity Instruments 

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company's management has 

elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair 

value gains and losses to Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividends from such investments are recognized in Statement of 

Profit and Loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payment is established. 

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are recognized in other gain/losses in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at 

FVOClare not reported separately from other changes in fair value. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial assets) is 

primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when: 

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 

received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either 

(a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

(b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 

transferred control of the asset. 

Impairment of financial assets: 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition 

of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

a) Financial assets that are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance 

b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset. 

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The 

allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce 

impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

Financial Liabilities: 

Initial recognition and Measurement: 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings. Financial liabilities are 

classified, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit and loss or as those measured at amortised cost. 

Subsequent measurement: 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

- Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit and Loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include financial liabilities held for trading. The Company has not 

designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition at fair value through profit and loss. 

- Financial liabilities measured at Amortised Cost 

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest rate method except for those designated in an effective hedging relationship. 
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Loans and borrowings: 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 

EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the 

EIR amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 

Integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition: 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

Off-setting of financial instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to 

realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

F. Provision for standard/ non - performing assets and doubtful debts 

The company provide an allowance for loan receivable in the nature of advance based on the prudential norms issued 

by the RBI relating to income recognition, asset classification and provisioning for non performing assets. 

G. Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an 

original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

H. Cash Flow 

Cash flows are reported using the Indirect Method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions 

of anon-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income 

or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing 

activities are segregated. 

I. Cash dividend: 

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorized and 

the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is 

authorized when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity. 

J. Foreign Currency Translation: 

Initial Recognition: 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency amount the 

exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

Conversion: 

Foreign currency monetary items, which are unsettled are reported using the closing rate. Differences arising on 

settlement or conversion of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit & loss. Non-monetary items 

which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at 

the date of the transaction and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation 

denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were 

determined. 
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K. Revenue Recognition: 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the 

customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 

those goods or services. The Company assesses promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to 

which a portion of transaction price is allocated. 

Trading in Shares and Securities 

The Revenue from actual delivery based sales of shares and securities are recognized as actual sale of shares and 

securities in the stock exchange. In case of intra day sale purchase of shares and securities, which are settled otherwise 

than actual delivery or transfer, the net difference is only considered in statement of Profit and Losses. 

Income on Loan Transactions 

Income on loan transactions is accounted for by using the internal rate of return method. Consequently, a constant rate 

of return on net out standing amount is accrued over the period of the contract, except that no income is recognized on 

non - performing assets as per prudential norms for income is recognized on non- performing assets as per the 

prudential norms for income recognized issued by the RBI for NBFCs. Interest income on such assets is recognized on 

receipt basis. Upfront / Processing fees collected from the customer for processing loans are primarily towards 

documentation charges. This is accounted as income when the amount becomes due provided recovery thereof is 

certain. 

Other Interest income: 

Other Interest income is accounted on accrual basis. 

Dividends: 

Dividend income is recognized when the unconditional right to receive the income is established. 

L. Other Income: 

Other income is accounted for an accrual basis for except where the receipt of income is uncertain in which case it is 

accounted for on receipt basis. 

M. Employee benefits: 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term 

employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, allowances, etc are recognised as actual amounts due in 

period in which the employee renders the related services. 

Short-term Employee Benefits: 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 

months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of 

employee's services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when 

the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 

N. Borrowing costs: 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 

capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. 

Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
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Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 

qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. 

O. Income taxes: 

The tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax. 

Current income tax: 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 

taxation authorities. Current Income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in 

accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are 

those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions 

taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 

establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax: 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the 

carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation 

carry-forwards and tax credits. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against 

which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits 

could be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ 

reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the 

asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 

by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 

authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

P. Provisions and Contingent liabilities and contingent assets : 

a) Provisions: 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 

are liable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision 

to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but 

only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of 

profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, 

when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 

passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

b) Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets: 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company ora 

present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 

settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be 

recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but 

Annual Reports 2023-24 95



Q Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements 

discloses its existence in the financial statements. 

A contingent assets is not recognized unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. 

When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements. 

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date 

Q. Earnings per Share: 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares 

are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a 

fully paid equity share during the reporting period. 

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the 

company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and 

also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 

potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity 

shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive 

potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive 

potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. 

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented 

for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial 

statements by the Board of Directors. 

R. Lease: 

Company asa lessee 

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 

time in exchange for consideration. 

Lease Liability 

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that 

are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using incremental borrowing rate. 

Right-of-use assets 

Initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 

made ator prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. 

Subsequent measurement 

Lease Liability 

Company measure the lease liability by (a) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (b) 

reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (c) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect 

any reassessment or lease modifications. 

Right-of-use assets 

Subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are 

depreciated from the commencement date on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of 

the underlying asset. 
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Impairment 

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 

carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the 

higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset 

does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable 

amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

Short term Lease: 

Short term lease is that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or less. A lease that contains a 

purchase option is not a short-term lease. If the company elected to apply short term lease, the lessee shall recognise 

the lease payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term or 

another systematic basis. The lessee shall apply another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the 

pattern of the lessee's benefit. 

Company asa lessor 

Leases for which the company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease 

transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All 

other leases are classified as operating leases. The lease income from operating leases is recognised on either a 

straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis. The lessor shall apply another systematic basis if that 

basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefit from the use of the underlying asset is diminished . 

S. Segment reporting: 

Based on "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, evaluates the Company's 

performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance. The analysis of geographical 

segments is based on the geographical location of the customers wherever required. 

Unallocable items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business 

segment. 

Segment Policies: 

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and 

presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment 

onan appropriate basis. 

3.2 Use of Judgments, Estimates And Assumptions: 

The preparation of the Company's separate financial statements requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 

disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 

in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

Estimates and assumptions: 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that 

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 

financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when 

the separate financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, 

however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. 

Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

a. Taxes: 

There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate 

tax determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts initially 
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recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the tax 

determination is made. The assessment of probability involves estimation of a number of factors including future 

taxable income. 

b. Fair value measurement of financial instruments: 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based 

on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models 

are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in 

establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financials instruments. 

c. Impairment of financial assets: 

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model on trade receivables and other 

financial assets. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade 

receivables and other financial assets. The provision matrix is developed based on its historically observed default rates 

if any, over the expected life of the trade receivable and other financial asset. At every reporting date, the historical 

observed default rates if any, are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed. 

d. Impairment of non-financial assets: 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 

indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's 

recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its 

value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 

independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 

recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value 

in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre- tax discount rate that reflects 

current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. In determining fair value less 

cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an 

appropriate valuation model is used. 

These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share price for publicly traded subsidiaries or other 

available fair value indicators. 

e. Other Provisions: 

Significant estimates are involved in the determination of provisions. Legal proceedings often involve complex legal 

issues and are subject to substantial uncertainties. Accordingly, considerable judgment is part of determining whether 

itis probable that there is a present obligation as a result of a past event at the end of the reporting period, whether it is 

probable that such a Legal Proceeding will result in an outflow of resources and whether the amount of the obligation 

can be reliably estimated. 

3.3 Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31st March 2024, MCA 

has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company. 
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4. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Financial Statements 

  

            

  

  

rato Lay As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

Cash on hand 0.21 0.49 

Balances with banks 

In current account 15.15 8.50 

Total 15.36 8.99 

5. Loans 

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

At Amortized Cost 

Unsecured 

Inter corporate deposits (Refer note 30)* 1,426.52 1,105.80 

Total 1,426.52 1,105.80 

In India 1,426.52 1,105.80 

Outside India - -           

* The above intercorporate deposits includes loan to related parties amounting to Rs. 586.52 lakhs (Previous year - Rs. 377.65 lakhs ) 

6. Investments 

  

Particulars 

Instrument valued at deemed cost 

Quoted Equity Shares (fully paid up) 

As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

  

  

  

        

in Subsidiary Company 

Maximus International Limited (F.Y. 2023-24 : 7,83,32, 651.16 665.02 

880 equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid up & FY. 

2022-23: 79,999,880 equity shares of Rs. 1 each 

fully paid up) 

Total 651.16 665.02 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments 651.16 665.02 

Aggregate market value of quoted investments 15,141.75 9,791.99 

In India 651.16 665.02 
Outside India - -     

7. Current tax assets (Net) 

  

  

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 PCP eae ale estes] 

Taxes paid in advance (Net of Provision) 11.30 15.70 

Total 11.30 15.70           

8. Deferred tax Assets (Net) 

Particulars 

  

(a) Deferred tax liabilities 

PCW eRe Melo rates OTe ewe wel ers ees 

        

-Related to Other temporary differences 0.32 - 

(b) 'Deferred tax assets 

- Unused tax credit (MAT credit) ~ 8.03 

-Related to Other temporary differences 1.08 0.91 

Total 0.76 8.94     
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9. Trade Payables 

Particulars Pea elses te As on 31st March, 2023 

Total outstanding due to Micro and Small Enterprises 0.05 0.67 

(Refer note no 29) 

Total outstanding due to other than Micro and 0.32 0.26 

Small Enterprises 

Total 0.37 0.93 
          
  

Trade Payable Ageing 

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of Invoice 
Particulars 

EEL re Pale rR 

  

As at 31 March 2024 

(i) MSME* 0.25 - - 

(ii)Others 0.12 - - 

(iii)Disputed dues-MSME 

(iv)Disputed dues-Others 

As at 31 March 2023 

(i) MSME* 0.77 - - 

(ii)Others 0.16 - - 

(iii)Disputed dues-MSME - - - 

(iv)Disputed dues-Others - - -           

iClear: Lp 

  

Total 

0.25 

0.12 

0.77 

0.16   
  

*Out of the above, the amount pertaining to Medium Enterprise is 0.197 Lakhs in current year & 0.10 Lakhs in previous year. 

10. Borrowings (other than debt securities) 

  

  

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

At Amortized Cost 

Unsecured loan 

Loan from Holding company* - 13.88 

Loan from Mangalam Industrial Finance ** 19.87 20.84 

Total 19.87 34.72 

In India 19.87 34.72 

Outside India - -         
  

* The above loan is bearing Interest rate of 8.5% and the said loan is repaid during the year. 

** The above loan is bearing Interest rate of 8.5% and is payable after 1 year from the reporting date. 

11. Other Financial Liabilities 

  

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

Payable for Employee Benefits 2.13 1.68 

Total 2.13 1.68         
  

12. Provisions 

As on 31st March, 2024 Particulars As on 31st March, 2023 

  

Provision for Employee Benefits 

        

Bonus payable 0.74 0.75 

Other Provisions 

Provisions for Expenses 0.72 0.79 

Contingent Provision for Standard Asset 3.57 2.76 

(Refer note 28) 

Total 5.03 4.31   
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Details of Contingent Provision for Standard Asset 

  

Opening Balance 2.76 

Current Year 0.80 

Closing Balance 3.57 

As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

1.05 

1.71 

2.76 
  

13. Other Non Financial Liabilities 

  

  

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

Statutory Dues Payable 0.66 1.09 

Total 0.66 1.09         
  

14, Current tax Liability 

  

earl Ley As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance Tax) 31.51 - 

Total 31.51 -         
  

15. Share Capital 

Authorized Equity Share Capital 

Particulars No. of Shares (Absolute Numbers) 

  

At 31 March 2022 

Increase /(decreased) during the year 

At 31 March 2023 

Increase /(decreased) during the year 

At 31 March 2024 

Amount 

75,00,000 750.00 

75,00,000 750.00 

75,00,000 750.00 

  

Issued Equity Share Capital 

Particulars oR MT Tecem ee Verse UCM ell el-te9) 

  

At 31 March 2022 

Increase /(decreased) during the year 

At 31 March 2023 

Increase /(decreased) during the year 

At 31 March 2024 

Amount 

55,72,300 557.23 

19,00,000 190.00 

74,72,300 747.23 

74,72,300 747.23 

  

Terms & Rights attached to each class of shares; 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is 

entitled to one vote per share. In the event of the liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be 

entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 

shares held by the shareholders. 

Shares held by shareholders each holding more than 5% of the shares 

Titles) me mar] aoc 
Shareholders 

  

As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023 

Equity shares with voting rights 

  

Sukruti Infratech Private Limited.-Holding Company 40,27,103 40,27,103 

Percentage % 53.89% 53.89% 

Annual Reports 2023-24 101



Shareholding of Promoters as on 31st March,2024 

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports 

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

Promoter name 

  

Sukruti Infratech Private Limited.-Holding Company 

I TeM maT Tet) 

40,27,103 

% of total 

Financial Statements 

bm Tile [-) 
ole) 

Pre Te 

53.89% - 
  

Shareholding of Promoters as on 31st March,2023 

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

Promoter name 

  

Sukruti Infratech Private Limited.-Holding Company 

eM mT Leet 

40,27,103 

% Change 
Tile) 

CCU OME CRTs 

53.89% - 
  

16. Other Equity 

Particulars 
As at 31 March As at 31 March, 

  

    

, 2024 2023 

Securities Premium 1,194.10 1,194.10 

Reserve Fund U/S 45-IC (1) Of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 109.72 52.95 

Retained Earnings (5.51) (232.56) 

Total 1,298.31 1,014.50       

Particulars 

Securities Premium 

As per last Balance Sheet 

Additions during the year 

Less: Transaction cost 

Add : Transfer during the year 

Opening Surplus   
Reserve Fund U/S 45-IC (1) Of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

Opening balance ( Statutory Reserve Created under section 45IC of RBI Act) 

Add : Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss 

Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve created u/s 45IC of RBI Act 

As at 31 March Cae wl ce 

  

  

  

  

        

, 2024 2023 

1,194.10 573.33 

- 627.00 

- 6.23 

1,194.10 1,194.10 

52.95 50.89 

56.76 2.07 

109.72 52.95 

(232.56) (240.83) 

283.81 10.34 

56.76 2.07 

(5.51) (232.56) 
  

17. Interest Income 

Corporate Overview 

18. Other Income 

Statutory Reports Financial Statements 

elm Mla ates mel ola Tle tice re ol) 

  

inal clic ESR er aay EMO rr Mee) 

Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.18 - 

Other Income* 0.00 0.06 

Total 0.18 0.06           

* The said amount is less than 1,000/- 

19. Finance Cost 

Particulars 
For the year Ended on For the year Ended on 

  

At Amortized Cost 

EWS Ele rater 31st March, 2023 

        
Interest on borrowings 1.72 6.89 

Other Interest Expense 1.11 - 

Total 2.84 6.89     

20. Employee Benefits Expenses 

Particulars 
For the year Ended on For the year Ended on 

  

      

Ee Ele erste) Ee aE go merle] 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 33.25 30.38 

Total 33.25 30.38     

21. Other Expenses 

For the year Ended on red me uC ates el 

  

  

ohio Ea Earle ETE EMPL’: 

Advertisement expenses 1.20 1.14 

Share trading expenses 1.42 0.01 

Insurance expenses 0.06 0.06 

Payment to Auditors (Refer below note ) 0.96 0.83 

Legal and Professional charges 9.94 9.24 

Telephone Expenses 0.20 0.16 

Loss of sale investment - - 

Printing and Stationery 0.21 0.12 

Rent (Refer note 26) 1.38 1.20 

Miscellaneous expenses 1.51 2.78 

Total 16.88 15.53           

Note: Payment to Auditors 

Particulars 
For the year Ended on 

EW Ele rare 
Particulars 

For the year Ended on For the year Ended on 

  

  

ERR El erste ERE a Ele er) 

At Amortized Cost 

Interest on inter company loans 127.87 63.38 

Total 127.87 63.38         
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For Statutory Audit including Limited review audit fees 0.93 0.83 

For Certification Charges & Other Services 0.04 - 

Total 0.96 0.83     
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OPTIMUS OPTIMUS 
FIN AN CE FIN AN CE 

22. Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments C) Current tax (liabilities)/assets 

ene Year Ended b(La sure (1° | : =< _ 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 : 
Opening balance 15.70 

(a) Contingent Liabilities : - - Income tax paid 11.67 

(b) Capital Commitments - - : - - 

(c) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts: - - Current income tax payable for the period / year (43.18) 
Written back of income tax provision of earlier years (4.41) 

Total - - Net current income tax asset/ (liability) at the end (20.21) 

23. Taxes Reconciliation Current income Tax assets at the End 11.30 

Current income Tax liability at the End 31.51 

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended ; 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 24. Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by 

(a) Income tax expense the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 
Current Tax Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the 
Current Tax Expense 43.18 1.93 . . . . 

43.18 193 weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Deferred tax : . . . 
Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets* 7.86 (1.62) Basic and Diluted before Exceptional items (Rs.) 

    
            

  

  

(Decrease) / increase in deferred tax liabilities 0.32 - i. Profit attributable to Equity holders of Company 

Total Deferred tax expenses (Income) 8.18 (1.62) Particulars Year Ended Year Ended 

Total Income Tax Expense 51.36 0.31 EME alder eS ce) 

The Applicable Indian Statutory Tax Rate for year ended 31st March 2024 is 25.17%. (RY. 2022-23 - 15.6%) and the Profit after Tax available for equity shareholders before Exceptional 55.35 10.34 

Company was under the MAT Provision of India Income Tax Act in the year ended 31st March 2023. items (Rs. In Lakhs) 

* includes adjustment of Minimum Alternate Tax Credit. Total Nos of Weighted Average Equity shares outstanding during the year 74,72,300 60,09,560 

Par value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate Basic/Diluted earnings per share 0.74 0.17 

Year Ended Year Ended Basic and Diluted after Exceptional items (Rs.) 

Tara De 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 i. Profit attributable to Equity holders of Company 

Year Ended Year Ended 
Profit before income tax expense 335.17 10.65 Peale Ley 
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.17% (PY. 2022-23 - 15.6%) 84.36 1.66 ees abbrelly COS) | eto Lal itchy See 

  

  

Profit after Tax available for equity shareholders before Exceptional 283.81 10.34 

items (Rs. In Lakhs) 
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / (taxable) in calculating 

taxable income: 

  

          
. . . Total Nos of Weighted Average Equity shares outstanding during the year 74,72,300 60,09,560 

Non-deductible tax expenses (Disallowances u/s 14A, 43B, Capital 0.84 0.27 Par value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00 

Expenditure etc.) Basic/Diluted earnings per share 3.80 0.17 

Income taxed at Different Rates (including Tax on Gain on Sale of (42.02) - 25. Segment Information 

Investment in Subsidiary Company) . , . . . . 
MAT Credit Adjustment 8.03 - The Segment information is presented under the notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as 
Others 0.15 (1.62) required under Ind AS -108 on “Operating Segment” 

Income Tax Expense 51.36 0.31 
  26. Operating Leases 

The Company has taken office premise under operating lease. The Lease agreements have no sub leases. These Lease 

are generally non-cancellable and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms. There are no 

restrictions imposed by lease agreements. The lease payment recognized in the statement of profit & loss during the 

yearis Rs. 1.38 lakhs (PY. 1.20 lakhs). 
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27. Related party Disclosures: 
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A. Names of the related parties and description of relationship 
I) List of Related Parties 

Name of Related Party Nature of Relation 

Sukruti Infratech Private Limited Holding Company 
  

Maximus International Limited Subsidiary Company 
  

Maximus Global FZE 
  

MX Africa Limited 

Subsidiary of Maximus International Limited 

  

Quantum Lubricants (E.A.) Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary of MX Africa Limited 

  

Maximus Lubricants LLC (Formerly known as 

Pacific Lubricants LLC) 

Subsidiary of Maximus Global FZE 

(from 01.01.2020) 
  

Dipak Raval Whole time director 
  

Milind Joshi Chief Financial Officer (from 01.06.2021) 
  

Divya Prajapati Company secretary (From 26.05.2023 To 31.01.2024) 
  

  

  

    Krati Gupta Company secretary (From 18.03.2024) 

Vinay Pandya Independent Director 

Divya Zalani Independent Director(from 31.12.2021) 

Rahil Thaker Independent Director(from 31.12.2021)       

B. Particulars of Transactions with Related Parties 

Particulars 

  

Salary & Bonus to KMP 

-Dipak Raval 

-Krati Gupta 

-Divya Prajapati 

Interest Income 

-Maximus International Limited 

-Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 

Interest expenses 

-Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 

Rent expenses 

- Maximus International Limited 

Director sitting fees 

- Vinay Pandya 

-Divya Zalani 

- Rahil Thaker 

Loan given during the year 

- Maximus International Limited 

-Sukruti Infratech Private Limited   
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Year Ended Year Ended 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

29.61 27.75 
0.17 - 
2.54 - 

23.20 9.71 
11.87 - 

0.03 4.93 

1.38 1.20 

0.18 0.21 
0.18 0.21 
0.18 0.18 

427.90 480.40 

331.73 - 
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Loan given received back during the year 

- Maximus International Limited 513.20 122.97 

-Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 37.56 - 

Loan taken during the year 

-Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 3.00 163.25 

Loan repaid during the year 

-Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 16.88 197.91 

Outstanding Balances at the end of the year 

Loan Payable (including Interest, if any) 

-Sukruti Infratech Private Limited - 13.88 

Loan Receivable (including Interest, if any) 

-Maximus International Limited 292.35 377.65 

-Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 294.17 - 

Director Sitting Fees 

- Vinay Pandya 0.03 - 

- Divya Zalani 0.03 - 

- Rahil Thaker 0.03 - 

Remunertion Payable (Gross): 

-Dipak Raval 3.06 2.29 

-Krati Gupta 0.31 - 

-Divya Prajapati - -           
28. Disclosures related to asset classification and provision on assets in terms of Non-Banking Financial Company — 

Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 

The management after taking into account degree of well-defined credit weaknesses and extent of dependence on 

collateral security for realization, has classified all its lease, loans and advances and any other forms of credit as 

standard asset. Accordingly provision of 0.25% as required has been made on all the above standard assets. 

29. Disclosure related to Micro and Small Enterprises 

On the basis of confirmation obtained from the supplier who have registered themselves under the Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006), details are as below. 

Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 

rE As at 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

a. the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 0.05 0.67 

supplier at the end of each accounting year. 

b. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small 

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the 

amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during 

each accounting year. 

c. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 

payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) - - 

but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each - - 

accounting year. 

e. Theamountof further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 

years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small - - 

enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under 

section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

Particulars 
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30. Disclosure as per section 186 (4) of companies Act,2013 

The company has given deposits to following parties and the outstanding balances are as under: 

  

Name of par (OER HSER ead ESC ec Mey Mee etre Ply dc} 

To Related Parties 586.52 377.65 

To Other than Related Parties 840.00 728.15         
  

The above loan has been given to above entities for meeting their working capital requirements. 

31. Exceptional Items 

  

eee As at PCE 

nel EIA ECM S MR ELI 

Profit on sale of investments in subsidiary (refer note below) 260.09 - 

Total 260.09 -         
  

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has partially sold its stake (being 1.32% stake approx.) 

represented by 16,67,000 equity shares in Maximus International Limited for total consideration of Rs. 273.95 Lakhs, 

which resulted in profit of ¥ 260.09 lakhs. 

32. Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company 

(as required in terms of paragraph 19 of Non-Banking Financial Company — Non-Systemically Important Non- 

Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

e 4 e 

01] Loans and advances availed by the non banking financial company inclusive of interest accrued thereon 

but not 

(a) Debentures: Secured Nil 

: Unsecured Nil 

(other than falling within the meaning of public 

(b) Deferred Credits Nil 

(c) Term Loans Nil 

(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 19.87 

(e) Commercial Paper Nil 

Other Loans ( nature) - Overd against Shares held as stock in trade Nil 

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in 

a) Secured Nil 

Unsecured 1,426.52 

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities: 

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors : 

(a) Financial lease 

) Operating 

on hire ng hire 

(a) Assets on hire 

ns counting towa 

a) a   
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OPTIMUS 
FIN AN CE 

04 | Break-up of Investments : 

Current Investments : 

1. Quoted : 

(JD Shares : (a) Equ 

(b) Preference 

(ii) Debentures and Bonds 

(iii) Units of mutual funds 

(iv) Government Securities 

(v) Others (please 

2.U 

Shares : 

Preference 

Debentures and Bonds 

(iii) Units of mutual funds 

Government Securities 

(v) Others 

Term investments : 

(i) Shares : (a) 

(b) Preference 

(ii) Debentures and Bonds 

(iii) Units of mutual funds 

(iv) Government Securities 

(v) Others 

2.U : 

(i) Shares : (a) 

(b) Preference 

(ii) Debentures and Bonds 

(ii) Units of mutual funds 

(iv) Government Securities 

(v) Others 

05 | Borrower classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above : 

1. Related Parties 

Subsidiaries Nil 292.35] 292.35 

Companies in the same grou Nil 294.17| 294.17 

Other related Nil Nil Nil 

2. Other than related parties Nil 840.00} 840.00 

Total Nil 1,426.52 |1,426.52 

06 | Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both 

quoted and unquoted): 

1. Related Parties 

Subsidiaries 15,141.75 

Companies in the same grou Nil 

c) Other related parties Nil 

Nil 

2. Other than related parties 

Total 15,141.75 
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07 | Other information 

(i) | Gross Non-Performing Assets 

(a) Related parties 

(b) Other than related 

(ii) | Net Non-Performing Assets 

(a) Related parties 

(b) Other than related 

(iii) | Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt 

  

33. Fair Value Measurements 

Financial instruments by category 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Tattle T ey 
- 

Ai TM (oe eae ro iain 
eo rere 

  

  

  

  

  

Financial Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 15.36 - - 8.99 

Loan - - 1,426.52 - - 1,105.80 

Investments 

- Equity Instruments (At Cost) - - 651.16 - - 665.02 

Other financial assets - - - - - - 

Total Financial Assets - - 2,093.05 - - 1,779.81 

Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings - - 19.87 - - 34.72 

Trade payables - - 0.37 - - 0.93 

Other financial liabilities - - 2.13 - - 1.68 

Total Financial Liabilities - - 22.37 - - 37.33                   

(D) Fair value hierarchy 

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments 

that are recognized and measured at fair value and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To 

provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its 

financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the Indian accounting standard. An explanation of each 

level follows underneath the table. 

Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements 

yy: ote 

Financial Investments at FVTPL 

Total Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 

Total Financial Liabilities 

  

Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements 

‘ oe 

Financial Assets 

Financial Investments at FVTPL 

Total Financial Assets - - - - 

Financial Liabilities - - . . 

Total Financial Liabilities - - - - 

  

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity 

instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is 
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valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation 

techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific 

estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in 

level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in 

level 3. 

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year. 

The Company's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the 

reporting period. 

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value 

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include: 

- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments 

- the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted analysis. 

The carrying amount of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loan, trade payables, borrowings and other 

financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair value, due to their short - term nature. 

34. Financial Risk Management 

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk 

management framework. 

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set 

appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly 

to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. 

(A) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if customers or counter party to a financial instruments fails to meet 

its contractual obligations and arises principally from the company's receivables from the loan extended to the 

customers. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the 

credit worthiness of customers to which the company grants the loans. The Company has a comprehensive framework 

for monitoring credit quality of its loans primarily based on days past due monitoring at period end. Repayment by 

loans and customer portfolio is tracked regularly and required steps for recovery are taken through follow ups and legal 

recourse. 

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a customer failing to 

engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company 

continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these 

are recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss. 

(B) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The responsibility for liquidity risk management 

rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the 

management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management 

requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve 

borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles 
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of financial assets and liabilities. 

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities 

The tables herewith analyze the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their 

contractual maturities for: 

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal 

their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 

As at March 31, 2024 

Non-derivatives 

Borrowi 

Trade bles - 

Other financial liabilities - 

Total Non-derivative liabilities 19.87 

As at March 31, 2023 

Non-derivatives 

Borrowi 13.88 

Trade bles - 

Other financial liabilities - 

Total Non-derivative liabilities 13.88 

  

(C) Market Risk 

(i) Price Risk 

The company is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investments in equity instrument. The price risk arises due to 

uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. The above instruments risk are arises due to 

uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. 

Management Policy 

The company maintains its portfolio in accordance with the framework set by the Risk management Policies. Any new 

investment or divestment must be approved by the board of directors. 

(ii) Currency Risk 

Currency Risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 

Foreign Currency risk arise majorly on account of export sales, import purchase, and foreign loan given. The company's 

foreign currency exposures are managed in accordance with its foreign exchange risk management policy and are 

regularly reviewed by the company. 

35. Capital Management 

Risk management 

For the purpose of the company's capital management, equity includes equity share capital and all other equity 

reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The Company manages its capital to optimize returns to the 

shareholders and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements. The 

Company's objectives are to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to 

support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth and maximize the 

shareholders value. The Company funds its operation through internal accruals. The management and Board of 

Directors monitor the return on capital. 
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36. Other Statutory informations 

() The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 

company for holding any Benami property. 

(ii) The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off. 

(iii) The company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory 

period. 

(iv) The company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period/year. 

(v) The company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(vi) The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 

with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

(vii)The company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey 

or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). 

(viii) The company does not hold any immovable property during the year. 

(ix) The company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. 

(x) The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement during the year. 

(xi) The company has only one subsidiary in India. Therefore section 2(87) of the Companies Act read with Companies 

(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable to the company. 

37. Mandatory Accounting Ratios 

As at 31st March,2024 

  

  

A , Current Previous +) RUM ele 
Particulars Numerator Denominator , A , 5 

Period Period Melita: ETT ET Ta) 

(a) Capital to Risk - Tier I Capital + Risk Weighted 71.16% 80.32% -11.40% 

weighted asset Tier I capital Asset ” 

Ratio 

(b) Tier I Capital Paid up capital+ Risk Weighted 70.91% 80.07% -11.43% 7 

Security Premium+ Asset 

statutory Reserve + 

Disclosed free 

reserve-Accumulated 

Loss-Investment in 

Shares of 

Subsidiaries-Loans 

to Subsidiaries 

  

(c ) Tier II Capital Undisclosed Reserve Risk Weighted 0.25% 0.25% 0.00% 

+ General loss Asset - 

reserve + Hybrid 

debt capital 

instrument and 

subordinated debts                   
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OPTIMUS 
FoIoN N CE 

(d) Liquidity High quality liquid Total Net cash 2.85 0.00% The company 

coverage Ratio asset amount outflows over has net cash 

the next inflow in next 

30 days 30 days from 

            
the reporting 

date. 

      

38. The Reserve Bank of India had issued the Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A Revised Regulatory Framework for 

NBFCs (the framework) vide circular RBI/2021-22/112 DOR.CRE.REC.No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 on October 22, 

2021. The framework categorises NBFCs in Base Layer (NBFC-BL), Middle Layer (NBFC-ML), Upper Layer (NBFC- 

UL) and Top Layer (NBFC-TL). The Reserve Bank of India vide press release 2022-2023/975 dated September 30, 

2022 has placed the Company in the Base Layer. 

39. Disclosure of details as required by RBI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.No.20/21.04.018/2022-23 - Disclosures in 

Financial Statements Notes to Accounts of NBFCs dated April 19, 2022 

A) Exposure 

(1) Exposure to capital market 

Category 

  

1. Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, 

convertible debentures and units of equity oriented mutual 

funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate 

debt 

Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities 

oron clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including 

IPOs / ESOPs),convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and 

units of equity oriented mutual funds 

Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible 

bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented 

mutual funds are taken as primary security 

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the 

collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible 

debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the 

primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / 

convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 

does not fully cover the advances 

Secured and unsecured advances to stock brokers and 

guarantees issued on behalf of stock brokers and market makers 

Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / 

bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for 

meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies 

in anticipation of raising resources 

Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues 

Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of 

primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible 

debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds 
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Current Year 

651.16 

Amount Rs. in Lakhs 

  

Previous Year 

665.02 

  
114   

Corporate Overview 

(i) Category] 

(ii) Category I 

(iii) Category I 
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9. Financing to stock brokers for margin trading 

10. Allexposures to Alternative Investment Funds: 

    Total Exposure to Capital Market       665.02 
  

(2) Sectoral Exposure 

Sectors 

1. Agriculture and Allied Activities 

2. Industry 

i. Micro and small 

ii. Medium 

iii. Large 

iv. Others 

Total of Industry (i+ii+...+ Others) 

3. Services 

i... 

ii... 

Others 

Total of Services (i+ii+...+ Others) 

4. Personal Loans 

i... 

ii... 

Others 

Total of Personal Loans 

(i+ii+...+ Others) 

5. Others, if any (please specify)     

Current Year 

Total Exposure Gross 

(ira (if: Crired a] 

Eta a1 9A 

roy aisle Tar-) 

Pitta 4 

exposure) 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

1,134.17 

1,426.52 

  

cy 

(Rs. In 

Lakhs) 

  

Percentage 

of Gross 

Ey. 

to total 

exposure 

Titel 

Py -To4 Co] g 

  

Amount Rs. in Lakhs 

Previous Year 

Total Exposure 

(includes on 

balance sheet/ 

ey ig el-ETa re) 

tet 4 

exposure) 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

377.65 

170.00 

558.15 

1,105.80 

cho Mn cette |) 

NPAs_ of Gross 

(Rs. In NPAs 

Lakhs) to total 

exposure 

Tmt 

sector 

  
        

(3) Intra Group Exposures 

Particulars 

(i) Total amount of Intra group exposures 

(ii) Total amount of top 20 intra group exposures 

(iil) Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the 

NBFC on borrowers/customers 

2023-2024 

586.52 

586.52 

41.12% 

Amount Rs. in Lakhs 

PAI Peed a} 

  

377.65 

377.65 

34.15% 

  

Annual Reports 2023-24 115



Q Corporate Overview Statutory Reports 

(4) There were no foreign currency transactions during the year under consideration. 

B) Related Part glosure 

Financial Statements 
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C) Disclosure of Complaints 

1) Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of 

Ombudsman 

There is no complaint received by NBFC from the customers or from the office of the Ombudsman. 

40. The standalone financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the 

Board of Directors on 29th May, 2024. The financial statements as approved by the Board of Directors are 

subject to final approval by its Shareholders. 

41. The figures of previous year have been re-arranged, disclosed and regrouped wherever necessary to make 

them comparable with those of the current year. 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

SD/- SD/- 
As per Our report of even date Dipak Raval Milind Joshi 

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi (Whole Time Director) (Chief Financial Officer) 
Chartered Accountants DIN: 01292764 

Firm Registration No. : 103824W 

SD/- SD/- SD/- 

Prashant Upadhyay Vinay Pandya Krati Gupta 
Partner (Independent Director) (Company Secretary) 

Membership No. 121218 DIN: 08368828 

Place: Vadodara Place: Vadodara 
Date: 29th May, 2024 Date: 29th May, 2024 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the members of Optimus Finance Limited 

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Optimus Finance Limited (“the Company’) and its 

subsidiary (herein after referred to as a“Group"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of 31st March 2024, the 

consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, (including consolidated other comprehensive income), consolidated statement 

of cash flows, consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial 

statements, including asummary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated 

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and 

give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read 

with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, its profit and other comprehensive 

income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 

the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statement. 

Emphasis of matter 

We draw your attention to the note no-45 of consolidated financial statement, being Emphasis of Matter of the 

Consolidated financial statements of Maximus Global FZE, a subsidiary company of the Maximus International Limited, 

issued by an independent firm of Chartered Accountants vide its Report dated 10th May 2024 reproduced by us as under: 

“We draw your attention to Note No. 3.11 of the consolidated financial statements, where in management discloses a gross 

receivable of AED 14,148,498 from Neo lubritech FZ-LLC which the Company has offset against payable of AED 9,142,802 

owed to Neo lubritech FZ-LLC, resulting in a net receivable of AED 5,005,696 from Neo lubritech FZ-LLC. This offset is based 

on a tripartite agreement dated March 25, 2024, among Maximus Global FZE, Maximus Lubricant LLC, and Neo lubritech 

FZ-LLC.” 

Our opinion on this matter is unmodified. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these matters. We have determined the following key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 
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Sr. No. Laem elie 

1 The Holding Company has a substantial exposure in | How the matter was addressed in our audit: 
loan given to various parties: 

Auditor's Response 

* We have evaluated the relevant agreements 

The Holding Company has given loan in form of Inter- entered into by the holding company with the 
corporate deposit of Rs. 1134.17 Lakhs. The above various parties for the corporate deposit given. 
exposure in inter corporate deposit forms a|* We have also evaluated the relevant terms and 

substantial portion of the net worth of the Holding conditions agreed between the parties. 
company. * The purpose for which the loan was given.         Refer no. 7 of the consolidated financial statement. 
  

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including annexures to Board's Report, Corporate 

Governance and shareholder’s information but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's 

report thereon. The above-referred information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated 

financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. 

When we read the information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 

communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions necessitated by the 

circumstances & the applicable laws and regulations. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of 

the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 

also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 

the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated 

financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, respective management is responsible for assessing their respective 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless respective management either intends to liquidate the their respective company 

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so; 

That respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the respective company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
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will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls; 

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by management; 

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 

doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 

required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if 

such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 

agoing concern; 

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation; 

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 

within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 

supervision and performance of the audit of the consolidated financial statements of such entities included in the 

consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditor. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial 

statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our 

audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 

consolidated financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 

audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 

describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 

when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 
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Other Matter 

1. We did not audit the financial statement/financial information foreign subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial 

statement, whose financial statements reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. Rs. 7125.64 lakhs as at 

31 March 2024, total income (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 10562.53 Lakhs and total net profit after tax (before 

consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 790.62 Lakhs, total comprehensive income (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 

790.62 lakhs and net cash outflows of Rs 22.69 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated 

financial statement. These subsidiaries include one subsidiary located in India and others are located outside India whose 

financial statements/financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in their respective countries wherever applicable and which have been audited by other auditors generally 

accepted auditing standards available in their respective countries wherever applicable. The Company's Management has 

converted the financial statements/financial information of certain subsidiaries which are located outside India from 

accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in 

terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the 

audit reports of the other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Company. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory requirements below, is 

not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other 

auditors. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 

financial statements have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the 

reports of the other auditors; 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including consolidated other 

comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt 

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 

Section 133 of the Act 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of Holding company as on 31st March, 2024 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". 

(g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 

by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197(16) of the Act as 

amended. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us: 

i. The Group has disclosed impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its consolidated financial statements- 

Refer Note 34 of consolidated financial statements. 

ii. The Group has made provisions, as required under the applicable law or accounting standard, for material 

foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 

iiiAS per information and explanation given to us, there is no amount that required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Group. 

iv. a) The Holding Company Management has represented, to the best of its knowledge and belief that, no funds have 

been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
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funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend 

or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The Holding Company Management has represented, to the best of its knowledge and belief that, no funds have 

been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause 

(i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement. 

v. There is no dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company and hence provisions of section 123 of the 

companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, performed by us on Holding Company & subsidiary company, 

which are incorporated in India whose financial statement have been audited under the act, such holding company & 

subsidiary company, have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 

recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 

recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail 

feature being tampered with. 

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the 

“Order"/ "CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's 

report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the 

Holding Company and subsidiary company which are incorporated in India, included in the consolidated financial 

statements of the Holding Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no 

qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports. 

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi 

Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 103824W) 

SD/- 

(Prashant Upadhyay) 

Partner 

M No. 121218 Place: Vadodara 

UDIN: 24121218BKCSSI8770 Date: 29th May 2024 

Annexure-A: Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub section 3 of section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Optimus Finance Limited (“the Company”) and 

such companies incorporated in India, which are subsidiaries companies, as of 31st of March, 2024 in conjunction with our 

audit of the consolidated financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective company’s managementis responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the guidance note on audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 

and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
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financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI 

and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 

internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 

a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 

the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

onthe Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 

assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 

be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 

are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are subsidiaries companies, have, in 

all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 
For Shah Mehta & Bakshi 

Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 103824W) 

SD/- 

(Prashant Upadhyay) 

Partner 

M No. 121218 Place: Vadodara 

UDIN: 24121218BKCSSI8770 Date: 29th May 2024 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet As At 31st March, 2024 
All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated 

  

  

  

  

Particulars Note No. As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

ASSETS 

01 Financial Assets 

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 65.34 217.30 

(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 5 120.83 - 

(c) Receivables 

- Trade Receivables 6 4,383.84 4,295.51 

- Other Receivables - - 

(d) Loans 7 1,408.58 1,285.19 
(e) Investments - - 

(f) Other Financial assets 8 1,314.89 591.95 

02 Non-financial Assets 

(a) Inventories 9 649.07 677.02 

(b) Current Tax Asset 16 15.71 18.28 

(c) Deffered Tax Asset (Net) 22 - 1.43 

(d) Investment Property 10 86.84 88.39 

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment 11 628.76 587.73 

(f) Intangible Assets 1.35 1.41 

(g) Intangible Assets under Development 12 31.70 16.77 

(h) Capital work - in - progress 13 83.03 79.64 

() Goodwill 14 294.00 274.15 

(j) Other non-financial assets 15 286.47 332.38 

Total Assets 9,370.39 8,467.17 

01 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 

Financial Liabilities 

(a) Payables 

() Trade Payables 

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 7 0.96 1.23 

enterprises and small enterprises 1040.27 2094.82 

(b) Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 

(c) Other financial liabilities 18 1,492.80 973.68 
19 106.50 116.40 

02 Non-Financial Liabilities 

(a) Current tax liabilities 20 58.07 29.14 

(b) Provisions 21 89.46 73.27 

(c) Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 22 10.93 - 
(d) Other non-financial liabilities 23 244.69 413.81 

03 EQUITY 

(a) Equity Share capital 24 747.23 747.23 

(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature - - 

(c) Other Equity 25 3,143.17 2,348.77 

Non controlling interest 2,436.32 2,068.80 

Total Liabilities and Equity 9,370.39 8,467.17               

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements. 

As per Our report of even date 

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. : 103824W 

SD/- 

Prashant Upadhyay 

Partner 

Membership No. 121218 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 29th May, 2024 
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For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

SD/- 

Dipak Raval 

(Whole Time Director) 

DIN: 01292764. 

SD/- 

Vinay Pandya 

(Independent Director) 

DIN: 08368828 

SD/- 

Milind Joshi 

(Chief Financial Officer) 

SD/- 

Krati Gupta 

(Company Secretary) 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 29th May, 2024 
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Consolidated Statement Of Profit And Loss 
For The Year Ended 31st March 2024 

All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated 

lara eles 

Revenue from operations : 

Interest Income 

Sale of Product 

Net Gain on Fair Value Changes 

Other operating income 

Total revenue from Operations 

Other Income 

Total Income 

Expenses 

Finance Costs 

Fees and commission expense 

Cost of Material consumed 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 

Changes in inventories to Shares, finished goods and stock - in - trade 

Employee Benefits Expenses 

Depreciation and amortization expense 

Others expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit before tax 

Tax Expenses: 

Current Tax 

Deferred Tax 

Excess or short provision of earlier years 

Profit after tax for the period 

Other Comprehensive Income 

(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

- Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 

- Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 

(B) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

- Exchange Differences in translating the financial statement of a 

foreign operations 

Total Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 

Net Profit attributable to: 

Owners of the company 

Non Controlling Interest 

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to: 

Owners of the company 

Non Controlling Interest 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 

Owners of the company 

Non Controlling Interest 

Earnings per equity share 

Basic (Rs.) 

Diluted (Rs.)     
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements. 

As per Our report of even date 

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. : 103824W 

SD/- 

Prashant Upadhyay 

Partner 

Membership No. 121218 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 29th May, 2024 
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Note No. Bek Fie 

26 104.67 53.67 

27 10,858.21 9,522.52 

28 24.46 452.53 

10,987.34 10,028.72 

29 430.75 153.15 

11,418.08 10,181.87 

30 208.09 162.01 

31 6,793.95 6,515.36 

31 2,255.08 1,662.10 

31 32.27 (78.78) 

32 457.35 459.17 

10,11 135.53 126.91 

33 617.77 534.07 

10,500.03 9,380.85 

918.05 801.03 

83.67 66.91 

35 11.54 0.76 

0.51 (5.75) 

822.33 739.10 

65.61 49.71 

65.61 49.71 

65.61 49.71 

887.94 788.81 

525.51 452.61 

296.83 286.50 

40.18 31.63 

25.43 18.08 

565.70 484,24 

322.26 304.58 

38 7.03 7.53 

7.03 7.53 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

SD/- SD/- 

Dipak Raval Milind Joshi 

(Whole Time Director) 

DIN: 01292764 

SD/- 

Vinay Pandya 

(ndependent Director) 

DIN: 08368828 

(Chief Financial Officer) 

SD/- 

Krati Gupta 

(Company Secretary) 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 29th May, 2024 
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Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity 
For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024 

All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated 

a. Equity Share Capital: 

Changes in Equity Share Capital Restated balance as at Changes in equity share 
LET te a wt erate] 

Financial Statements 

Balance as at 

  

CW COM TiC ley Keeley 1st April, 2023 capital during the current year 31st March, 2024 

747.23 - 747.23 - 747.23 
  

Changes in Equity Share Capital Restated balance as at 

Wesel ils 
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 pS Ti ad ee 

due to prior period errors 

Ele ei § 

capital during the current year 31st March, 2023 

  

  

  
  

      

  

  

  

  

  

  

557.23 - 557.23 190.00 747.23 

b. Other Equity: 

Balance as at 1st April, 2023 1,194.10 934.00| 124.84 42.88 - 52.95 0.00 2,348.77 

Changes in accounting policy or prior period - - - - - - - - 

errors 
Restated balance as at 1st April, 2023 (A) 1,194.10 934.00| 124.84 42.88 - 52.95 0.00 2,348.77 

Profit/(Loss) for the year as per Statement of - 525.51 - - - - - 525.51 

Profit and Loss 

Transfer to Statutory Reserve created u/s 451C - (56.76) - - - - - (56.76) 
of RBI Act 34.05 

Additions during the year - - - 40.18 - 56.76 0.00 96.94 

Less :Transaction cost - - - - - - - - 

Transfer to statutory Reserve - (34.05) - - - - - (34.05) 

Adjustment to Parent Retained earnings as a - - - - - - - 

result of acquisition 

Adjustment in Parent Retained earnings as a - 228.70 - - - - - 228.70 

result of disposal of investment - 

Transfer to retained earnings of FVOCI equity - - - - - - - 

investments, net of tax - 
Total Comprehensive Income (B) - 697.45 - 40.18 34.05 56.76 0.00 794.39 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024 (A+B) 1,194.10 1,631.44] 124.84 83.06 34.05 109.72 0.00 3,143.17                       

Reserves and Surplus 

ret i) Reserve Fund ie 
it pera Ley Security Retained Capital TC a tN U/S 45-IC (1) Instru one 

UT LO Coa CUT LC Ceol eS Liab   

  

  

  

  

  

  

                        

(eT Ue] 
Leta) Act, 1934 bbe 

Balance as at 1st April, 2022 573.33 603.91 | 124.84 11.25 - 50.89 29.64 1,393.85 

Changes in accounting policy or prior period - - - - - - - - 

errors 

Restated balance as at 1st April, 2022 (A) 573.33 603.91 124.84 11.25 - 50.89 29.64 1,393.85 

Profit/(Loss) for the year as per Statement of - 452.61 - - - - - 452.61 

Profit and Loss 

Transfer to Statutory Reserve created u/s 45IC - (2.07) - - - - - (2.07) 

of RBI Act 

Additions during the year 627.00 - - 31.63 - 2.07 - 660.70 

Less :Transaction cost (6.23) - (6.23) 

Transfer to statutory Reserve - - - - - - - - 

Adjustment to Parent Retained earnings as a - | (150.09) - - - - - (150.09) 

result of acquisition 

Transfer to retained earnings of FVOCI equity - 29.64 - - - - (29.64) - 

investments, net of tax 

Total Comprehensive Income (B) 620.77 330.09 - 31.63 - 2.07 (29.64) 954.92 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024 (A+B) 1,194.10 934.00 | 124.84 42.88 - 52.95 0.00 2,348.77 
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As required by section 45-IC of the RBI Act 1934, the group maintains a reserve fund and transfers there in a sum not less 

than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is 

declared. The group cannot appropriate any sum from the reserve fund except for the purpose specified by Reserve 

Bank of India from time to time. Till date RBI has not specified any purpose for appropriation of Reserve fund 

maintained under section 45-IC of RBI Act,1934. 

Nature and purpose of reserves: 

i. Securities premium: 

Securities Premium is used to recognise the premium received on the issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act 2013. 

Retained Earnings: 

Retained earnings comprises of accumulated balance of profits/(losses) of current and prior years including transfers 

made to / from other reserves from time to time. The reserve can be utilized or distributed by the Company in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

iii. Reserve Fund U/S 45-IC (1) Of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934: 

As required by section 45-IC of the RBI Act 1934, the company maintains a reserve fund and transfers there in a sum 

not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any 

dividend is declared. The company cannot appropriate any sum from the reserve fund except for the purpose 

specified by Reserve Bank of India from time to time. Till date RBI has not specified any purpose for appropriation of 

Reserve fund maintained under section 45-IC of RBI Act,1934,. The company has transferred a twenty per cent of net 

profit in reserve fund As required by section 45-IC of the RBI Act 1934. 

iv. Capital Reserve: 

Capital reserve comprises of gains of capital nature earned by the Company and credited directly to such reserve, 

v. Foreign currency translation reserve : 

Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that, in substance, forms part of an enterprise's net investment in a 

non-integral foreign operation has been accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve in the enterprise's 

financial statements until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they should be recognised as income or as 

expenses in accordance with Ind AS. 

vi. Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income: 

™"Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income"" includes gain or loss recognised due to change in fair 

value of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in accordance with Ind AS 109 

and other relevant Ind AS.” 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements. 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

As per Our report of even date 

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi SD/- SD/- 

Chartered Accountants Dipak Raval Milind Joshi 

Firm Registration No. : 103824W (Whole Time Director) (Chief Financial Officer) 

DIN: 01292764 

SD/- SD/- SD/- 

Prashant Upadhyay Vinay Pandya Krati Gupta 

Partner (Independent Director) (Company Secretary) 

Membership No. 121218 DIN: 08368828 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 29th May, 2024 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 29th May, 2024 
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OPTIMUS OPTIMUS 
FIN AN CE FIN AN CE 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements 
For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024 All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated 

All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated 1. Corporate Information 

; re aT) TR Ta) The Company was incorporated on 11.02.1991 and a Fresh Certificate of Registration was obtained from Reserve Bank 
olla on 31st March, 2024 ESE ee ary) . . . . . . . _ 

: of India on 20.05.2004 as Non-Banking Finance Company (Not Accepting Public Deposits). It is classified as Non- 

A | Cash flow from operating activities government company and is registered at Registrar of Companies, Anmedabad. The registered address of the Company 
Profit before income tax 918.05 807.03 is 504A, 5th Floor Ozone, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg, Vadi-wadi, Vadodara-390003. 
Adjustments for : 

Depreciation and amortization expense 135.53 126.95 

Interest Income (57.85) (53.67) At present the company is engaged in Non-Banking Finance activity consisting of Investment in Shares and Securities 

Rent income (5.00) (5.00) and other investment and financing activities. 
Loss/(Profit) on sale of Investment property/ Property, plant and Equipment's (5.10) 1.97 

Exchange gain on foreign currency translations(net) 39.88 25.29 . . 

Finance Cost 231.29 162.01 2. Basis of Preparation 
Provision for standard assets 0.80 1.71 i. Compliance with Ind AS 
Provision for Expense/end of Service 15.05 26.72 

Net Adjustments 354.61 285.98 . . . . . . . 1" " +g: 
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,272.67 1,087.01 The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards ( Ind AS ) notified under 

Adjustments for Net (Increase) / Decrease in Operating Assets section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), to be read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 

(Increase) / Decrease in loans (123.38) (327.93) Standards) Rules, 2015. 
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets (722.26) (91.46) 

(Increase) / Decrease in other non financial assets 34.16 76.27 . eee . : . 7 . . . 
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivable (88.33) (1,934.29) Details of the subsidiaries considered in the consolidated financial statements is as under: 

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (1,054.82) 1,033.12 Name of the company Date of acquisition/incorporation Country of Incorporation % of shareholding 
Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities & provisions (142.00) (30.02) Maximus International Limited 22.12.2015 India 62.31% 

(Increase) / Decrease in inventory 27.96 (221.13) - Global 1009 bsidi 

Increase/(decrease) in other Financial Liability (9.91) 408.32 Maximus Global FZE (100% subsidiary Shariah, UAE 9 

Cash generated from operations : (805.90) (0.11) of Maximus International Limited) 02.04.2017 jan. 100% 

Direct taxes paid (net) 25.27 87.27 MX Africa Limited (100% subsidiary of 
B | Net cash from operating activities (A) (861.17) (87.38) Maximus In Poee ona Limi ted) y 11.05.2018 Kenya 100% 

Cash flows from investing activities - - — 

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment's (Net) (180.19) (125.32) Maximus Lubricants LLC (Subsidiary 

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipments 12.99 23.90 Maximus Global FZE) (Formerly know as 01.01.2020 Sharjah, UAE 49%* 

Purchase of Intangible asset under development (14.93) (16.77) "Pacific Lubricant LLC") 
Acquisition of shares in subsidiary from minority shareholders - (178.86) ‘ __s 

Proceeds/ (Purchase) from sale in investments 273.95 - avant Lubrican's on) ee : 01.12.2019 Kenya 100%# 

Interest Income 53.15 60.17 (Wholly Owned Subsidiary o rica) 

Rent received 5.00 5.00 E40 . . oo. 
Bank Deposit (120.83) 1.00 51% shares are held by local sponsor on behalf of Maximus Global FZE (MGF). MGF has acquired indirect control over the 

(Increase)/ Decrease in loans given - 35.62 operations of Maximus Lubricant LLC (MLL) and hence MLL is subsidiary of MGF , and consequently, step down subsidiary 
Net cash (used) in Investing activities (B) 29.14 (195.25) of Maximus International Limited. 

C | Cash flow from financing activities epee . ae 6 . . . wo 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 919.12 202.98) # MX Africa Limited has acquired remaining 49% Equity shares in Quantum Lubricant (E.A) Limited w.e.f 1st October 2022. 

Repayment of Lease Liabilities (7.78) (5.40) 

Cash Proceeds from issuing equity shares net of transactional cost - 810.77 Principles of Consolidation: 
Finance Cost (231.29) (179.46) 

Net Cash (used) In Financing Activities (c ) 680.05 422.93 . 7 : . , 
Net Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents [(a) + (b) + (1 (151.98) 14030 The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on the following basis: 

Cash And Cash Equivalents At The Beginning Of The Year As Per Note 4 217.30 77.00 

Cash And Cash Equivalents At The End Of The Year As Per Note 4 65.34 217.30 1. The Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements. For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group 
Note : 1. The statement of cash flow is prepared in accordance with the format prescribed as per Ind AS 7. balances and intra-g roup transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses. 

As per Our report of even date SD/- SD/- 

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi Dipak Raval Milind Joshi 2. Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other 
Chartered Accountants (Whole Time Director) (Chief Financial Officer) oe : ope . 
Firm Registration No. : 103824W DIN: 01292764 events in similar circumstances except where it is not practicable to do so. 

SD/- SD/- SD/- eo gue . . 

Prashant Upadhyay Vinay Pandya Krati Gupta ii. Historical cost convention 

Partner (independent Director) (Company Secretary) 

Membership No. 121218 DIN: 08368828 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except the following: 

Place: Vadodara Place: Vadodara e Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
Date: 29th May, 2024 Date: 29th May, 2024 
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iii. Functional and presentation currency 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency, 

and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except otherwise indicated. 

iv. Composition of consolidated financial statements 

The consolidated financial statements are accordance with Ind AS presentation. The consolidated financial statements 

comprise: 

- Consolidated Balance Sheet 

- Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

- Statement of Changes in Equity 

- Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 

- Notes to consolidated financial statements 

3. Material Accounting Policy Information and Other Explanatory Notes 

3.1 Material Accounting Policies 

A. Current versus non-current classification 

The group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 

Anasset is treated as current when it is: 

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle. 

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading. 

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

Aliability is current when: 

-Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle. 

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading. 

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period. 

The group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash 

and cash equivalents, the group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current / 

noncurrent classification of assets and liabilities. 

B. Property, Plant and Equipment: 

Recognition and measurement: 

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less 

accumulated depreciation, and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes purchase price, including non-refundable duties 

and taxes, expenditure that is directly attributable to bring the assets to the location and condition necessary for its 

intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, if 

any. 

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any 
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recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees, and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in 

accordance with the group's accounting policies. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of 

property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same 

basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for, as 

separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gains or losses on their disposal, determined 

by comparing sales proceeds with carrying amount, are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Subsequent Expenditure: 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the 

expenditure will flow to the group. 

De-Recognition: 

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 

expected to arise from its use. Any gain or loss arising from its de-recognition is measured as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the 

asset is de-recognized. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value: 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided based on straight line method and in the manner 

prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows: 

Office buildi 20 - 60 

Furniture and fixtures 4-10 rs 

Office i 5-8 rs 

Com ui 3-5 rs 

Vehicles 4-8 rs 

  

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if 

appropriate. 

Capital Work-in-Progress: 

Plant and properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, 

less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying asset, borrowing costs 

capitalized in accordance with the group's accounting policies. Such Plant and Properties are classified and capitalized 

to the appropriate categories of Property, Plant and Equipment when completed and ready for intended use. 

Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the asset are ready for their 

intended use. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is 

classified as capital advances under “Other Non-Current Assets” and the cost of assets not put to use before such date 

are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. 

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets if any, are stated at cost less provisions for amortisation and impairments. Intangible assets are de- 

recognised either on their disposal or where no future economic benefits are expected from their use. 

Intangible Assets under development 

Intangible assets consisting of development expenditure of certain products, are evaluated for potential impairment on 

an annual basis or when there are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

C. Investment Property: 
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Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment property. 

Recognition and measurement: 

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing 

costs. 

Subsequent Expenditure: 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic 

benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All 

other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. 

De-Recognition: 

When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value: 

Investment properties are depreciated using straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. 

D. Impairment of Non financial assets: 

At the end of each reporting period, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine 

whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the 

recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it 

is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the group estimates the recoverable amount 

of the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can 

be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest 

group of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. 

The group's corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, 

recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs. 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is 

allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying 

amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.Moreover, when a impairment loss 

subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that 

this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated 

amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an 

impairment loss is recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss immediately. 

E. Inventories: 

The Holding Company is a Non Banking Financial Company primarily engaged in investing & credit related activity to 

which the “Ind AS 2- Inventories” is not applicable. In case of subsidiaries, Raw Materials are valued at cost or net 

realizable value whichever is lower. Finished goods, traded goods and work in progress are valued at cost or net 

realizable value, whichever is lower. Cost of inventories is determined on a Weighted Average Basis, after providing for 

obsolescence and other losses as considered necessary. Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the 

inventories, reduction and conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and 

condition. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 

completion and selling expenses. 

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made onan item-by-basis. 
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F. Financial Instruments: 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity. 

Financial Assets: 

Initial recognition, classification and measurement: 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 

through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade 

receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories: 

- Financials Assets at Amortised Cost: 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to 

hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

- Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 

business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and 

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

- Financial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 

Financial assets which are not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or 

loss. 

Equity Instruments 

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the group’s management has elected to 

present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value 

gains and losses to Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividends from such investments are recognized in Statement of Profit 

and Loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payment is established. 

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are recognized in other gain/losses in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at 

FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. 

De-recognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial assets) is 

primarily de-recognized (i.e. removed from the group's balance sheet) when: 

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

- The group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 

received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either 

(a) the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

(b) the group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 

control of the asset. 

Impairment of financial assets: 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 

impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 
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a) Financial assets that are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance 

b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset. 

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The 

allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the group does not reduce 

impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

Financial Liabilities: 

Initial recognition and Measurement: 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings. Financial liabilities are 

classified, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit and loss or as those measured at amortised cost. 

Subsequent measurement: 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

- Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit and Loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include financial liabilities held for trading. The Company has 

not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition at fair value through profit and loss. 

- Financial liabilities measured at Amortised Cost 

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest rate method except for those designated in an effective hedging relationship. 

Loans and borrowings: 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 

EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the 

EIR amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 

Integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

De-recognition: 

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

Off-setting of financial instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to 

realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

G. Provision for standard/ non - performing assets and doubtful debts 

The Holding company provide an allowance for loan receivable in the nature of advance based on the prudential norms 

issued by the RBI relating to income recognition, asset classification and provisioning for non performing assets. 

H. Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an 

original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

I. Cash Flow 

Cash flows are reported using the Indirect Method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions 

of anon-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income 

or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing 
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activities are segregated. 

J. Cash dividend: 

The group recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorized and the 

distribution is no longer at the discretion of the group. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorized 

when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amountis recognized directly in equity. 

K.Foreign Currency Translation: 

Initial Recognition: 

Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the group are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date 

of the transaction or at rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of the transaction. 

Conversion: 

Foreign currency monetary items, which are unsettled are reported using the closing rate. Differences arising on 

settlement or conversion of monetary items are recongnised in the statement of profit & loss. Non-monetary items 

which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at 

the date of the transaction and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation 

denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were 

determined. 

L. Revenue Recognition: 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the 

customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the group expects to be entitled in exchange for those 

goods or services. The group assesses promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a 

portion of transaction price is allocated. 

Trading in Shares and Securities 

The Revenue from actual delivery based sales of shares and securities are recognized as sales on actual sale of shares 

and securities in the stock exchange. In case of intra day sale purchase of shares and securities, which are settled 

otherwise than actual delivery or transfer, the net difference is only considered in statement of Profit and Losses. 

Income on Loan Transactions 

Income on loan transactions is accounted for by using the internal rate of return method. Consequently, a constant rate 

of return on net out standing amount is accrued over the period of the contract, except that no income is recognized on 

non - performing assets as per prudential norms for income is recognized on non- performing assets as per the 

prudential norms for income recognized issued by the RBI for NBFCs. Interest income on such assets is recognized on 

receipt basis. Upfront / Processing fees collected from the customer for processing loans are primarily towards 

documentation charges. This is accounted as income when the amount becomes due provided recovery thereof is 

certain. 

Other interest income: 

Other Interest income is accounted on accrual basis. 

Dividends: 

Dividend income is recognized when the unconditional right to receive the income is established. 

Sale of Traded Goods: 

Sales are recognized, net of returns and trade discounts & applicable duties & taxes if any, on transfer of significant risks 

and rewards of ownership to the buyer. 

The group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to 

which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the group considers 
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the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing component and consideration payable to the 

customer like return and trade discounts. 

Export Benefits/Incentives : 

The benefits accrued under the duty drawback scheme/ Roadtap scheme as per the Import and Export Policy in respect 

of exports made under the said scheme has been included under the head ‘Other Operating Income’. 

M. Other Income: 

Other income is accounted for an accrual basis for except where the receipt of income is uncertain in which case it is 

accounted for on receipt basis. 

N. Employee benefits: 

Employee benefits includes short term employee benefits. ‘All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months 

of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, 

allowances, etc are recognised as actual amounts due in period in which the employee renders the related services. 

Short-term Employee Benefits: 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 

months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of 

employee's services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when 

the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 

Appropriate provisions and payments are made towards defined contribution schemes, defined benefit plans, and 

compensated absences, in accordance with the respective country’s law and regulation and employment contract. 

O. Borrowing costs: 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 

capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. 

Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 

qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. 

P. Income taxes : 

The tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax. 

Current income tax: 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 

taxation authorities. Current Income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in 

accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are 

those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions 

taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 

establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax: 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 

reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

Q. Provisions and Contingent liabilities and contingent assets : 

a) Provisions: 

Provisions are recognized when the group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 
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probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and are 

liable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the group expects some or all of a provision to be 

reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only 

when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit 

and loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, 

when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 

passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

b) Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets: 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the group or a 

present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 

settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be 

recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its 

existence in the financial statements. 

Acontingent assets is not recognized unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. 

When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements. 

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

R. Earnings per Share: 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares 

are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a 

fully paid equity share during the reporting period. 

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the 

company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and 

also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 

potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity 

shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive 

potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive 

potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. 

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented 

for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial 

statements by the Board of Directors. 

S. Lease: 

Group as a lessee 

Lease Liability 

At the commencement date, the group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are 

not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using incremental borrowing rate. 

Right-of-use assets 

Initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 

made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. 
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Subsequent measurement 

Lease Liability 

Group measure the lease liability by (a) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (b) 

reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (c) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect 

any reassessment or lease modifications. 

Right-of-use assets 

Subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are 

depreciated from the commencement date on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of 

the underlying asset. 

Impairment 

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 

carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the 

higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset 

does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable 

amount is determined forthe Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

Short term Lease: 

Short term lease is that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or less. A lease that contains a 

purchase option is not a short-term lease. If the group elected to apply short term lease, the lessee shall recognise the 

lease payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term or another 

systematic basis. The lessee shall apply another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the 

lessee's benefit. 

Group asa lessor: 

Leases for which the company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease 

transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All 

other leases are classified as operating leases. The lease income from operating leases is recognised on either a 

straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis. The lessor shall apply another systematic basis if that 

basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefit from the use of the underlying asset is diminished . 

T. Segment reporting: 

Based on "Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, evaluates the group's performance 

and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance. The analysis of geographical segments is 

based on the geographical location of the customers wherever required. 

Unallocable items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business 

segment. 

Segment Policies: 

The group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and 

presenting the financial statements of the group as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on 

an appropriate basis. 

3.2 Use of Judgments, Estimates And Assumptions: 

The preparation of the group's separate financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions 

that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and 

the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes 

that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 
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Estimates and assumptions: 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that 

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 

financial year, are described below. The group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the 

separate financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, 

however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the group. Such 

changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

a. Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets 

Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life prescribed in schedule II of the companies act, 2013. In cases, where the 

useful life are different from that prescribed in schedule II, they are based on technical advice, taking into account the 

nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, 

anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support. 

b. Taxes: 

There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate 

tax determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts initially 

recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the tax 

determination is made. The assessment of probability involves estimation of a number of factors including future 

taxable income. 

c. Fair value measurement of financial instruments: 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based 

on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models 

are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in 

establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financials instruments. 

d. Impairment of financial assets: 

The group assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model on trade receivables and other financial 

assets . The group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables 

and other financial assets . The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates if any, over the 

expected life of the trade receivable and other financial assets . At every reporting date, the historical observed default 

rates if any, are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed. 

e. Impairment of non-financial assets: 

The group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 

exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. 

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is 

determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of 

those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the 

asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated 

future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre- tax discount rate that reflects current market 

assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, 

recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation 

model is used. 

These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share price for publicly traded subsidiaries or other 

available fair value indicators. 

f. Other Provisions: 

Significant estimates are involved in the determination of provisions. Legal proceedings often involve complex legal 
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issues and are subject to substantial uncertainties. Accordingly, considerable judgment is part of determining whether 

itis probable that there is a present obligation as a result of a past event at the end of the reporting period, whether it is 

probable that such a Legal Proceeding will result in an outflow of resources and whether the amount of the obligation 

can be reliably estimated. 

3.3 Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31st March 2024, MCA 

has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company. 
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statement 
4. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

  

  

ea ee Fey As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

Cash on hand 8.66 11.53 

Cheque in hand 8.61 - 

Balances with banks 

In current account 48.07 205.77 

Total 65.34 217.30           

5. Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

  

eat el ey As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

In deposit account 

Margin with Bank 120.83 - 

Total 120.83 -           

*The above held as margin money with bankers against the credit facility. 

6. Trade Receivables 

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

Trade Receivables considered good - Secured - - 

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 4,403.08 4,311.58 

Trade Receivable which have significant increase in credit risk - - 

Trade Receivables credit impaired - - 

Less : Expected Credit Loss Allowance (19.25) (16.07) 

Total 4,383.84 4,295.51 
            

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of Invoice 

Particulars ee rT eM Cried ted 

  

6months  - 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year Aieell oe) 

As at 31 March, 2024 

(i)Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 4,119.21 61.80 215.64 1.32 5.12 4,403.08 

(ii)Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant - - - - - - 

increase in credit risk 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit impaired - - - - - - 

(iv)Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good - - - - - - 

(v)Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant - - - - - - 

  

  

  

  

increase 

(vi)Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit impaired - - - - - - 

Total 4,119.21 61.80 215.64 1.32 5.12 4,403.08 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) - - 13.47 0.66 5.12 19.25 

Total Trade Receivable 4,119.21 61.80 202.17 0.66 - 4,383.84 

As at 31 March, 2023 

(i)Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 3,239.64 943.23 123.66 2.31 2.74 4,311.58 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant - - - - - 

increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit impaired - - - - - 

(iv)Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good - - - - - 

(v)Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant - - - - - 

  

  

  

increase 

(vi)Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit impaired - - - - - 

Total 3,239.64 943.23 123.66 2.31 2.74 4,311.58 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) - - 12.17 1.16 2.74 16.07 

Total Trade Receivable 3,239.64 943.23 111.49 1.15 - 4,295.51                   
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OPTIMUS OPTIMUS 
FIN AN CE FIN AN CE 

7. Loans 11. Property, Plant & Equipment 

. " tlie Furniture Computer . Office Right to Use Particulars PSE Ee est As on 31st March, 2023 Ta Le PEs ame Bap er bape Vehicle Equipment Building # aac 

At Amortized Cost Gross carrying amount As at 31-03-2022 865.96 87.85 14.37 229.78 15.31 27.49 1,240.70 
Unsecured Additions 27.45 0.83 1.46 93.68 1.50 - 124.91 
Inter corporate deposits 1,409.29 1,285.19 Disposals - 0.07 - 45.36 - - 45.43 
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) (0.71) . Gross carrying amount As at 31-03-2023 893.41 88.61 15.83 278.09 16.81 27.49 1,320.22 

- - Adjustment - - - - - 0.40 0.40 
Total 1,408.58 1,285.19 Additions 371 2.54 1.29 166.42 2.84 - 176.80 
In India 1,408.58 1,285.19 Disposals - - - 24.49 - - 24.49 
Outside India - - Forex Fluctuation 34,39 (0.13) (6.49) (8.30) (0.04) 19.43 

Gross carrying amount As at 31-03-2024 931.51 91.02 10.62 411.72 19.60 27.89 1,492.36           

8. Other Financial assets Accumulated Depreciation: 

  

  

  

                                

  

  

  

  

          

            

  

  

              

  

  

  

          

  

  

3 Closing accumulated depreciation As at 31-03-2022 429.43 56.08 14.32 113.73 11.47 13.37 638.38 

Particulars lata desk lol Ache Charge for the year 81.36 7.46 0.10 30.81 0.98 446 125.17 
. Reversal of accumulated depreciation of disposal of assets - 0.03 - 31.06 - - 31.09 

Interest accrued on deposits 9.31 4.60 Closing accumulated depreciation As at 31-03-2023 510.79 63.51 14.42 113.49 12.45 17.83 732.49 
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss- ICD Interest (2.21) - Charge for the year 78.92 4.79 0.57 43.57 1.16 4.75 133.75 

10 60 Reversal of accumulated depreciation of disposal of assets - - - (16.60) - - (16.60) 

7. 4. Forex Fluctuation 19.49 474 (6.39) (0.55) (3.33) - 13.96 
Security Deposits 205.66 202.70 Closing accumulated depreciation As at 31-03-2024 609.20 73.04 8.59 139.91 10.27 22.58 863.59 

Other Receivables 1,102.12 384.65 Net carryi ; 
carrying amount: 

As at 31-03-2024 322,31 17.98 2.03 271.81 9,33 5.32 628.76 
Total 1,314.89 591.95 As at 31-03-2023 382.61 25.10 1.41 164.59 4.36 9.66 587.73 

—— * As at 31-03-2022 436.54 31.77 0.06 116.05 3.84 14.12 602.33 
9. Inventories # (Refer Note No. 39 (a) (i) 

eva atoll tLe As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 12. Intangible Assets under Development 

crventories (lower of cost and net realized value) 9455 980 eee As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 
tock In ra e . . Computer Software 31.70 16.77 
Raw Material 333.92 331.15 Total 31.70 16.77 

Packing Material 132.31 130.77 

Finished Goods 158.28 205.28 Intangible assets under development ageing schedule 

Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of 
Total 649.07 677.02 ela iCall Ley Behr) 

RR re EYL g 2-3 year More than 3 year 
10. Investment Property —. 

Projects in progress as on 31.03.24 14.93 16.77 - - 31.70 

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 Projects in progress as on 31.03.23 16.77 - - - 16.77 

Gross carrying amount: There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan. 

Gross carrying amount As at 31-03-2022 97.61 97.61 13. Capital work-in-progress 

Additions - - 

Disposal - - eat tate As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

Gross carrying amount As at 31-03-2023 97.61 97.61 Capital Work in Progress 83.03 79.64 

Additions - - Total 83.03 79.64 
Disposal - - . . 

Gross carrying amount As at 31-03-2024 97.61 97.61 Capital Work in Progress 

Accumulated Depreciation: : 5 

Closing accumulated depreciation As at 31-03-2022 7.68 7.68 a Rc hell load 

Charge for the year 1.55 1.55 eR re Brae Poe BY Cel C1 
Reversal during the year - - 

Closing accumulated depreciation As at 31-03-2023 9.23 9.23 As at 31 March 2024 
Charae for the vear 155 155 Projects in progress 2.27 9.22 15.60 55.94 83.03 

Reversi during the year ~ ~~ Projects temporarily suspended - - - - - 

Ned accumulated depreciation As at 31-03-2024 10.77 10.77 As at 31 March 2023 

As at 31 3 2024 ” 86.84 86.84 Projects in progress 9.09 15.38 23.06 32.10 79.64 

As at 31-03-2023 88.39 88.39 Projects temporarily suspended - - - - - 

As at 31-03-2022 89.94 89.94           

Also Refer Note No. 39 (b) (I) 
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14. Goodwill 

ea CL) As on 31st March, 2024 CWT MR aero mre] 

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries * 294.00 274.15 

Total 294.00 274.15 

(“Including currency translation differences) 

15. Other Non Financial Asset 

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 Cee Ca Cid myst ye 

Unsecured Considered Good 

Advance to Suppliers 151.47 267.88 

Expense paid in advance 58.31 33.20 

Balances with Government Authorities 69.84 30.40 

Export Incentive receivables 6.85 0.90 

Total 286.47 332.38         
  

16. Current tax Asset 

  

  

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

Taxes paid in advance (Net of Provision) 15.71 18.28 

Total 15.71 18.28         
  

17. Trade Payables 

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 
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18. Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 

  

  

      

Total outstanding due to Micro and Small Enterprises 0.96 1.23 

Total outstanding due to other than Micro and Small Enterprises 1,040.27 2094.82 

Total 1,041.23 2,096.05   
  

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of Invoice 

  

              
  

Particulars Total 
eR le sre rem Le 

As at 31 March 2024 

(i)MSME* 20.56 - - - 20.56 

(ii)Others 982.88 15.15 0.68 21.96 1,020.67 

(ii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - 

(iv)Disputed dues-Others - - - 

As at 31 March 2023 

(i)MSME 1.33 - - 1.33 

(ii)Others 2,040.83 48.85 4.60 0.44 2,094.72 

(iii)Disputed dues-MSME - - - - 

(iv)Disputed dues-Others - - - - 

*The amount has also include outstanding balance of Medium Enterprise. 
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Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

At Amortized Cost 

Secured Loan 

Term loan from Bank 190.00 84.70 

- For Vehicle (Refer note no. 1) 

i) Monthly installment of Rs. 0.53 Lakhs till August 2030 

ii) Monthly installment of Rs. 0.31 Lakhs till September 2029 

iii) Monthly installment of Rs. 0.35 Lakhs till December 2030 

iv) Monthly installment of Rs. 1.06 Lakhs till February 2030 

v) Monthly installment of Rs. 0.42 Lakhs till October 2030 

vi) Monthly installment of Rs. 0.57 Lakhs till August 2025 

vil) Monthly installment of Rs. 0.32 Lakhs till December 2028 

viii) Monthly installment of Rs. 0.97 Lakhs till April 2029 

ix) Monthly installment of Rs. 0.97 Lakhs till October 2027 

x) Monthly installment of Rs. 0.53 Lakhs till November 2028 

-Other loan From Banks(Refer note no. 2) 66.43 

Cash Credit Facilities from Banks (Note no. 3 & 3.1) 530.79 - 

Bill Discounting (Note no. 4) 454.61 438.60 

Current maturities of long -term debts 33.58 15.66 

Other short term borrowings 3.55 - 

Overdraft Facility (Note no. 4) 193.98 - 

Unsecured loan 

Loan from Holding company (Note no. 5) - 13.88 

Loan from Mangalam Industrial Finance (Note no. 6) 19.87 20.84 

Total 1492.80 573.68         
  

Note 1: Vehicles purchased are hypothecated with lender, Interest rate ranges from 6.53% to 14.82%. (PY.8.81% to 9.50%) 

Note 2: MIL has taken loan from Yes Bank is taken against investment property as disclosed in Note 10 which bears interest rate 

10.25% and are payable by way of monthly installment INR 0.75 Lakhs for 180 months till Dec 2038. 

Note 3: The Banking facility utilised by Maximus International Limited is cash credit taken from SBI against the primary security of 

hypothication of present and future stock & receivable of the company. Apart from the Primary security, the facilities has been also 

collateraly secured by immovable property & personal gurantee of Mr. Annirudh Gandhi & Mr. Rinki Gandhi. The ROI of the cash 

credit facility is effectively 11% p.a. 

Note 3.1 The banking facility utilized by Maximus Global FZE and Maximus Lubricant LLC amounts to INR 6.35 Cr. The company 

avails overdraft, Letter of Credit, purchase financing, and other banking instruments from ADCB Bank. Intererst rates for are EIBOR 

+ 7% (minimum 11.5% p.a.). The facility is secured by hypothecation of present and future stock & receivables. Corporate 

guarantee is provided by Maximus International Ltd, Maximus Lubricant LLC for INR 6.35 Cr, along with a personal guarantee from 

director of INR 6.35Cr. 

Note 4: The banking facility utilized by Quantum Lubricant E.A Ltd amounts to INR 6.61 Cr. The company avails bill discounting, 

vehicle loan, and overdraft facilities from Stanbic Bank. Interest rates are Stanbic Prime Rate +3.968% for bill discounting and 

+4,548% for overdraft, secured by hypothecation of present and future stock & receivables. Corporate guarantees are provided by 

Maximus International Ltd, MX Africa Ltd, and SKG Energy PTE Ltd for INR 6.77 Cr, along with a personal guarantee from director of 

INR 6.77 Cr. 

Note 5: The above loan is bearing Interest rate of 8.5% and is payable on demand 

Note 6: The above loan is bearing Interest rate of 8.5% and is payable after 1 Year from the reporting date. 
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As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

        

Lease Liability (Refer Note No. 40 (a) (i)) 8.26 16.05 

Payable for Employee Benefits 6.20 5.07 
Other Payable 92.03 95.28 

Total 106.50 116.40   
  

20. Current tax liabilities (Net) 

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

  

Provision for current tax (net of advance tax) 58.07 29.14 
  

  Total   58.07   29.14   
  

21. Provisions 

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

Provision for Employee Benefits 

        

Bonus payable 2.20 1.80 

Gratuity payable 82.97 67.92 

Other Provisions 

Contingent Provision for Standard Asset 3.57 2.76 

Provisions for Expenses 0.72 0.79 

Total 89.46 73.27   
  

Details of Contingent Provision for Standard Asset 

Opening Balance 

Current Year 

Closing Balance     
As on 31st March, 2024 

2.76 

0.80 

3.57   

  

As on 31st March, 2023 

1.05 

1.71 

2.76   
  

22. Deferred tax liability/ (Assets) (Net) 

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

  

Deferred tax Liability 

        

- Related to Property, plant & equipment's 14.82 7.78 

- Related to Other temporary differences 1.66 - 

Deferred tax assets 

- Unused tax credit - (8.03) 

- Disallowance under sec 43B of the Income Tax act, 1961 (1.10) (0.26) 

- Related to Property, plant & equipment's (1.28) - 

- Related to Other temporary differences (3.16) (0.91) 

Deferred tax (assets)/Liability 10.93 (1.43)   
  

23. Other Non Financial Liabilities 

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As on 31st March, 2023 

  

        

Advance from customers 120.57 0.60 

Statutory Dues Payable 36.32 2.26 

Other Payable 87.80 410.94 

Total 244.69 413.81   
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24. Share Capital 

Authorized Equity Share Capital 

  

Particulars No. of Shares (Absolute Numbers) 

At 31 March 2022 75,00,000 750.00 
Increase /(decreased) during the year - - 

At 31 March 2023 75,00,000 750.00 
Increase /(decreased) during the year - - 

At 31 March 2024 75,00,000 750.00 
  

Issued Equity Share Capital 

  

Particulars No. of Shares (Absolute Numbers) Amount 

At 31 March 2022 55,72,300 557.23 

Increase /(decreased) during the year 19,00,000 190.00 

At 31 March 2023 74,72,300 747.23 

Increase /(decreased) during the year - - 

At 31 March 2024 74,72,300 747.23 
  

Terms & Rights attached to each class of shares; 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 

vote per share. In the event of the liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 

assets of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

Shares held by shareholders each holding more than 5% of the shares 

Number of Shares (Absolute Numbers) 

As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2024 
NE vealed (ery 

  

Equity shares with voting rights 

Sukruti Infratech Private Limited-Holding Company 40,27,103 40,27,103 

Percentage % 53.89% 53.89% 
  

Shareholding of Promoters as on 31st March,2024 

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change 
(+) 

No. of Shares during 
Promoter name CAse ee tl tte yo eC MRT 1g 

  

Sukruti Infratech Private Limited.-Holding Company 40,27,103 53.89% - 
  

Shareholding of Promoters as on 31st March,2023 

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year cee 
(*] 

Colette] 

oes a CRs Promoter name 

  

Sukruti Infratech Private Limited.-Holding Company 40,27,103 53.89% - 
  

Annual Reports 2023-24 147



    

Q Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements 

OPTIMUS 
N CE 

25. Other Equity 

Tattle anh ae 
31 March, 2024 31 March ,2023 

Securities Premium 1,194.10 1,194.10 

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income 0.00 0.00 

Capital Reserves 124.84 124.84 

Reserve Fund U/S 45-IC-(1) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 109.72 52.95 

Foreign currency translation reserve 83.06 42.88 

Statutory Reserve 34.05 - 

Retained Earnings 1,597.39 934.00 

Total 3,143.17 2,348.77         

  

Particulars 
CE 1 

EW lei meray 

rH Ly 

EWM Eli eraty es 

  

Securities Premium 

As per last Balance Sheet 

Additions during the year 

Less : Transaction Cost 

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive Income 

Add: Current year transfer 

Less: Deduction during the year 

Transfer of (gain)/loss on FVOCI equity investments 

Capital Reserve 

As per last Balance Sheet 

Foreign currency translation reserve 

Opening balance 

Transfer for the year 

Closing Balance 

Statutory Reserve 

As per last Balance Sheet 

Additions during the year 

Deduction 

Closing 

Reserve Fund U/S 45-IC (1) Of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

Opening balance 

Add : Transfer during the year 

Closing Balance 

Retained Earnings 

Add : Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss 

Additions/deletion during the year 

Adjustment to Parent Retained earnings as a result of acquisition 

Adjustment in Parent Retained earnings as a result disposal of investment 

Less: Transfer during the year 

Transfer to Statutory Reserve 

Transfer to retained earnings of FVOCI equity investments, net of tax 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      

1,194.10 573.33 

- 627.00 

- (6.23) 

1,194.10 1,194.10 

0.00 29.64 

- (29.64) 

0.00 0.00 

124.84 124.84 

124.84 124.84 

42.88 11.25 

40.18 31.63 

83.06 42.88 

34.05 - 

34.05 - 

52.95 50.89 

56.76 2.07 

109.72 52.95 

934.00 603.91 

525.51 452.61 

- (150.09) 

228.70 - 

(56.76) (2.07) 

(34.05) - 

- 29.64 

1,597.39 934.00     
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26. Interest Income 

For the year Ended on 
Particulars 

For the year Ended on 

  

          

  

          

            

Particulars 
For the year Ended on 

31st March, 2024 CRUEL erste) 

At Amortized Cost 

Interest on inter company loans 104.67 53.67 

Total 104.67 53.67 

27. Sale of product 

, For the year Ended on For the year Ended on 

Particulars ere Ae eee 

Sale of product 

Lubricants and Other petrochemical products 10,858.21 9,522.52 

Total 10,858.21 9,522.52 

28. Other operating income 

’ For the year Ended on For the year Ended on 

Particulars eer Eee 
Other Operating Revenue 

Export Incentives 24.46 1.17 

Other Operating Revenue - 451.36 

Total 24.46 452.53 

29. Other Income 

etm lm tite Cre Roly 

  

ER a Ell mrt) 31st March, 2023 

        

Profit on Sale of Property, plant and equipment & Investment property 5.63 - 

Income from operating leases (Refer Note No. 39 (b) (i)) 5.00 5.00 

Exchange gain on foreign currency translations(net) - 29.82 

Interest income 57.85 72.04 

Commission Income 88.13 - 

Provision for bad debts no longer required 0.88 12.37 

Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.18 - 

Discount income 271.97 33.86 

Other Income 1.10 0.06 

Total 430.75 153.15     

30. Finance Cost 

Particulars 
For the year Ended on For the year Ended on 

        

Ea Ell mrt.) EMO a Eerie e} 

At Amortized Cost 

Interest Cost: 

Interest on borrowings 123.73 134.42 

Interest on Lease Liabilities (Refer Note No. 39 (a) (i)) 1.34 1.97 

Other Interest Expense 4.17 - 

Other borrowing cost 78.84 25.62 

Total 208.09 162.01     
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31. Cost of Raw Material Consumed 

Particulars 
For the year Ended on 

Statutory Reports Financial Statements 

For the year Ended on 

  

  

  

  

            

  

  

  

  

ERM) Ea aE eee} 

(A) Cost of Material Consumed (Raw and Packing Material) 

Opening Stock 461.92 319.57 

Add: Purchases during the year 6,798.26 6,657.71 

7,260.18 6,977.29 

Less: Closing Stock 466.24 461,92 

Total 6,793.95 6,515.36 

(B) Purchase of Stock-In-Trade 

Lubricants and Other petrochemical products 2,255.08 1,662.10 

Total 2,255.08 1,662.10 

ere For the year Ended on For the year Ended on 

a ene) eee 
Inventories at end of year 

Traded Goods 9.06 9.82 

Finished Goods 173.77 205.28 

182.83 215.10 

Inventories at the beginning of the year 

Traded Goods 9.82 0.37 

Finished Goods 205.28 135.95 

215.10 136.32 

Total 32.27 (78.78)           

32. Employee Benefits Expenses 

Particulars 
For the year Ended on For the year Ended on 

  

          

31st March, 2024 ERR Ee ere) 

Salaries and Wages and Bonus 394.05 381.41 

Staff welfare expense 63.30 77.76 

Total 457.35 459.17 

33. Other Expenses 

Particulars 
For the year Ended on 

31st March, 2024 

For the year Ended on 

ER a Ec arate 

  

        

Advertisement expenses 60.82 35.86 

Electricity expenses 743 6.50 

Exchange Loss on foreign currency Translations (net) 43.91 91.74 

Donation expenses 7.2) 7.99 

Repairs & Maintenance 31.15 32.50 

Rates & Taxes 0.74 0.66 

Share trading expenses 1.42 0.01 

Insurance expenses 9.91 9.93 

Payment to Auditors 12.83 2.03 

License Fees 10.63 8.92 

Legal and Professional charges 121.86 118.12 

Travelling & Conveyance 62.54 43.30 

Telephone Expenses 17.92 15.21 

Printing and Stationery 0.21 0.12 

Selling and distribution expenses 102.18 52.10 

Office expense 42.97 38.13 

Rent 64.04 48.49 

Allowance for expected Credit Loss (ECL) 5.71 7.13 

Loss on Sale of Property, plant and equipment 0.54 1.97 

Vehicle Expense 2.57 3.14 

Miscellaneous expenses 11.17 10.22 

Total 617.77 534.07     
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34. Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments 

Year Ended Year Ended 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
Pearle Ley 

  

(a) Contingent Liabilities : 

i) Goods and Service Tax Demand # 44.21 - 

ii) Corporate Guarantee* 1,312.11 - 

(b) Capital Commitments 

i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 6.25 15.94 

capital account and not provided for (net advance paid)   
1,362.57 15.94 

(c) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts 

Total 1,362.57 15.94 
            

# GST demand order is received u/s 73 for INR 44.21 Lakhs. The company is contesting the demand and has paid INR 5.46 lakhs 

under protest while filing appeal before Appellate Authrity [i.e. Joint Commissioner(Appeals), State Tax]. 

*(i) Corporate Guarantee has been given in favour of Stanbic Bank for the credit facility utilised by Quantum Lubricants (EA) Limited 

amounting to INR 6.77 Cr. 

(ii) Corporate Guarantee has also been given in favour of ADCB Bank for credit facility utilised by Maximus Global FZE and Maximus 

Lubricants LLC amounting to Total INR 6.35 Cr. 

35. Taxes Reconciliation 

For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on 

EWC Ele rat ye. 31st March, 2023 
Pea teal) ey 

  

(a) Income tax expense 

  

  

  

  
    

Current tax 

Current tax Expenses 83.67 66.91 

Excess or short provision of earlier years 0.51 (5.75) 

84.18 61.16 

Deferred tax 

Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets * 3.66 (1.62) 

(Decrease) / increase in deferred tax liabilities 7.88 2.38 

Total Deferred tax expenses (Income) 11.54 0.76 

Total Income Tax Expense 95.72 61.92         

The Applicable Indian Statutory Tax Rate for year ended 31st March 2024 is 25.17%.(PY 15.6%) and the Company falls under the 

MAT Provision of India Income Tax Act in Previous Year. 

* includes reconginition of Minimum Alternate Tax Credit. 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate 

: Pree ee el a (Late ela) 
eeu relltled 

  

  

  

ea Ed mre.) RMU Edi mrad 

Profit before income tax expense 918.05 801.03 

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.17% (PY. 22-23-15.6%) 231.07 124.96 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / (taxable) in calculating taxable income: 

Income considered separately (2.43) (1.24) 
Income taxed at Different Rates (including Tax on Gain on Sale of Investment in Subsidiary Company) 23.45 - 

Non-deductible tax expenses (Disallowances u/s 14A, 43B, Capital Expenditure etc.) 1.82 1.89 

Non-Taxable subsidiaries and effect of Differential tax rate under various jurisdiction (165.69) (57.93) 

Depreciation (0.45) 1.61 
MAT credit adjustment 8.03 - 
Others (0.08) (7.36) 
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The Applicable Indian Statutory Tax Rate for year ended 31st March 2024 is 25.17%.(PY 15.6%) and the Company was under the MAT Provision of 

Indian Income Tax Act in Previous Year. 

C) Current tax (liabilities)/assets 

lat ta eles 
For the year Ended on elm La tite ol) 

  

Opening balance 

Income tax paid 

Current income tax payable for the period / year 

Written back of income tax provision of earlier years 

Net current income tax asset/ (liability) at the end 

Current income Tax assets at the End 

Current income Tax liability at the End 

EME a Ele rst | 

(10.86) 

52.68 

(83.67) 

(0.51) 

(42.36) 

15.71 

(58.07) 

ERC a Ee ic mrss} 

(36.97) 

87.27 

(61.16) 

(10.86) 

18.28 

(29.14) 
  

Identification of Segments 

(a) Primary Segment- Business Segment 

36. Disclosure as per Indian Accounting Standard -108 "Segment Reporting” 

The group's operation predominantly comprise of two segments i.e. Financing and Investment activities and Trading 

of chemicals. In view of the same, separate segmental information is provided as under:- 

Particulars 
em Rms Cre ela] For the year Ended on 

  

Segment Revenue 

(a) Financing and Investing activity 

(b) Manufacturing & Trading in Lubricants, Base Oils and Petro chemicals products 

Segmental operating income 

Segmental results 

(a) Financing and Investing activity 

(b) Manufacturing & Trading in Lubricants, Base Oils and Petro chemicals products 

Profit before tax 

Other information 

Segment assets 

(a) Financing and Investing activity 

(b) Manufacturing & Trading in Lubricants, Base Oils and Petro chemicals products 

Total 

Segment liabilities 

(a) Financing and Investing activity 

(b) Manufacturing & Trading in Lubricants, Base Oils and Petro chemicals products 

Total     

EMC a Emel) 

104.67 

10,882.67 

10,987.34 

51.88 

866.17 

918.05 

1,160.83 

8,209.56 

9,370.39 

58.80 

2,984.87 

3,043.67   

31st March, 2023 

53.67 

9,975.05 

10,028.72 

0.93 

800.10 

801.03 

761.79 

7,705.38 

8,467.17 

42.73 

3,259.62 

3,302.35     

(b) Secondary Segment -Geographical segment 

The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the segments. The geographical 

segments considered for disclosure are as follows: 

Sales within India include sales to customers located within India 

Sales outside India include sales to customers located outside India 

  

  

          

mamas Year Ended Year Ended 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Within India 104.67 1,518.34 

Outside India 10,882.67 8,510.38 

Total 10,987.34 10,028.72 
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Carrying value of segment assets 

  

  

          

  

—_—— Year Ended Year Ended 

a 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Within India 1,812.31 1,734.29 

Outside India 7,558.08 6,732.86 

Total 9,370.39 8,467.17 

Property Plant & Equipment by Geographical Locations 

ee Year Ended Year Ended 

ee 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Within India 199.82 132.24 

Outside India 428.94 455.49 

Total 628.76 587.73           

37. Related party Disclosures: 

Names of the related parties and description of relationship 

I) List of Related Parties 

Name of Related Party ELC Moym Celera 

Sukruti Infratech Private Limited Holding Company 
  

  

  

  

Dipak Raval Whole time director 

Milind Joshi Chief Financial Officer (from 01.06.2021) 

Aniruddh Gandhi Person having control over the company 

R S Gandhi Relative of person having control over the company 
  

Axofin Advisors Private Limited 
  

SKG International Holdings Pte Ltd 
  

Quebec Petroleum Resources Ltd 

Enterprises over which Person/close family member have 

control or significant influence 

  

Divya Prajapati Company secretary (From 26.05.2023 To 31.01.2024) 
  

  

  

      
Krati Gupta Company secretary (From 18.03.2024) 

Vinay Pandya Independent Director 

Divya Zalani Independent Director 

Rahil Thaker Independent Director     
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Particulars of Transactions with Related Parties 

rey eC tice ela) 

Financial Statements 

rey eC (mice eli) 

  
          

Name of party A ers Be eee 

Salary to KMP 

-Dipak Raval 29.61 27.75 

-Milind Joshi 22.31 19.26 

-Aniruddh Gandhi 38.96 40,30 

-RS Gandhi 41.12 44.95 

-Krati Gupta 0.17 - 

-Divya Prajapati 3.32 - 

Interest expenses 

- Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 0.03 4.93 

- Aniruddh Gandhi 0.93 - 

Interest Income 

- Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 24.92 0.77 

- Axofin Advisors Private Limited 5.27 4.87 

Rent Income 

- Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 0.14 0.12 

Purchase of Goods and services 

-Quebec Petroleum Resource Limited 500.46 - 

- SKG Energy PTE LTD ( Formerly know as SKG International Holdings Pte Ltd) 339.20 866.23 

Sales of Goods and services 

- SKG Energy PTE LTD ( Formerly know as SKG International Holdings Pte Ltd) 149.49 1,218.52 

Loan taken during the year 

-Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 3.00 163.25 

- Aniruddh Gandhi 84.68 6.33 

Loan repaid during the year 

-Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 16.88 197.91 

- Aniruddh Gandhi 82.07 6.33 

Loan given during the year 

-Axofin Advisors Private Limited 4.50 10.25 

-Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 511.13 29.05 

Loan given received back during the year 

-Axofin Advisors Private Limited - 3.50 

-Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 73.91 24.92 

Director sitting fees 

- Vinay Pandya 0.39 0.42 

-Divya Zalani 0.39 0.42 

- Rahil Thaker 0.39 0.39 

Investment in equity shares 

- Quantum Lubricants (E.A.) Limited - 178.86 

Outstanding Balances at the end of the year 

Loan Payable (including Interest, if any) 

- Sukruti Infratech Private Limited - 13.88 

Loan Receivable (including Interest, if any) * 

-Axofin Advisors Private Limited 54.50 50.00 

- Sukruti Infratech Private Limited 452.85 15.63 
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Trade Payables 

-Quebec Petroleum Resource Limited 

Trade Receivables 

- Quebec Petroleum Resource Limited 

Other Receivables 

- Quebec Petroleum Resource Limited 

Loan payable to KMP (including interest, if any) 

- Aniruddh Gandhi 

Director Sitting Fees 

- Vinay Pandya 

-Divya Zalani 

- Rahil Thaker 

Advances Received 

Remunertion Payable (Gross) : 

-Dipak Raval 

-Milind Joshi 

- Aniruddh Gandhi 

- RS Gandhi 

-Krati Gupta 

-Divya Prajapati   

- SKG Energy PTE LTD ( Formerly know as SKG International Holdings Pte Ltd) 

- SKG Energy PTE LTD ( Formerly know as SKG International Holdings Pte Ltd) 

- SKG Energy PTE LTD ( Formerly know as SKG International Holdings Pte Ltd) 

- SKG Energy PTE LTD ( Formerly know as SKG International Holdings Pte Ltd)   

92.03 

500.65 

81.21 

74.36 

17.15 

3.55 

0.06 

0.06 

0.06 

11.55 

3.06 

4.08 

3.27 

3.81 

0.31 

0.42   

278.21 

17.80 

80.09 

119.43 

309.51 

230.25 

2.29 

3.04 

3.22 

3.75 
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OPTIMUS 
FIN AN CE 

Other Payables 
-Axofin Advisors Private Limited - - 

- Aniruddh Gandhi - - 

    

* Including Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) 

38. Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the group by the 

weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the group by the weighted 

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 

i. Profit attributable to Equity holders of group 

  

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023 

Profit after Tax available for equity shareholders 525.51 452.61 

Total Nos of Equity shares outstanding during the year 74,72,300 60,09,560 

Par value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00 

Basic/Diluted earnings per share 7.03 7.53             Annual Reports 2023-24 155
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39. Leases 

(a) Finance Leases 

(i) As Lessee 

Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities 

For the yearended on __— For the year ended on 

31st March, 2024 ERE Tol a4 | 
Maturity Analysis - Contractual undiscounted Cash Flows 

  

Less than one year 7.17 7.08 

One to five years 1.24 8.83 

More than five years - - 

  

Total Undiscounted Lease Liabilities 8.41 15.91 
  

Lease Liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position 

  

Non Current 1.74 8.97 

Current 6.52 7.08 

Total 8.27 16.05         
  

Amount Recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss 

For the year ended on _‘ For the year ended on 
ata] 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

  

Interest on Lease Liabilities 1.34 1.97 

Depreciation on Lease Asset 4.75 4.46 
  

Amount Recognized in the Statement of Cash Flow 

For the year ended on __‘ For the year ended on 

31st March, 2024 ERR El meray 
earned 

  

Total Cash out flow for leases 7.78 5.40 
  

(b) Operating Leases 

As per Ind AS 116 the lease is classified as an operating lease by the lessor if it does not transfer substantially all 

the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. 

Investment property 
  

          
  

  

Lease Income recognized in the statement of profit & loss during the year is Rs. 5.00 5.00 

Direct Operating expense from property that generated rental income - - 

Depreciation 1.55 1.55 

Profit from Investment Property 3.45 3.45 

Tale) March 31,2024 March 31,2023 

Fair value of Investment Properties -1 119.72 119.72 

Total 119.72 119.72         
  

Details of Investment properties are as below: 

(1) Property - 1: Commercial office no. 301 situated in scheme known as Atlantis Heritage located on land bearing 

R. S no. 54-A/1 paiki, C. S. no. 383 of village vadi - wadi, Dist. Vadodara. Property is owned by the subsidiary 

company. 
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40. Additional information pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of 

consolidated financial statements. 

  

  

Nature eT aa Shareholding as Shareholding as 

Incorporation Che M RE eat) ie Me edt] 

Optimus Finance Limited Ultimate Holding company | India 

Maximus International Limited Subsidiary India - - 
  

Maximus Global FZE Step Down Subsidiary 
United Arab Emirates 

(UAE) 

100% share hold by 

Maximus International 

Limited 

100% share hold by 

Maximus International 

Limited 
  

Maximus Lubricants LLC* Step Down Subsidiary 
United Arab Emirates 

(UAE) 

49% share hold by 

Maximus Global FZE 

49% share hold by 

Maximus Global FZE 

  

100% share hold by 100% share hold by 

          Mx Africa Limited # Step Down Subsidiary Kenya Maximus International | Maximus International 

Limited Limited 

Quantum Lubricants (E.A) Limited# | Step Down Subsidiary Kenya 100% share hold by 100% share hold by 
Mx Africa Limited     MxX Africa Limited 

  

  
* 51% shares are held by local sponsor on behalf of Maximus Global FZE (MGF). MGF has acquired indirect control over the operations of Maximus 

Lubricant LLC (MLL) and hence MLL is subsidiary of MGF , and consequently, step down subsidiary of Maximus International Limited. 

# MX Africa Limited has acquired remaining 49% Equity shares in Quantum Lubricant (E.A) Limited w.e.f 1st October 2022. 

Share in Total 
Comprehensive Income 

SET ee tig 
Comprehensive Income 

Net Assets, i.e. total assets 
reer it) lead el ale 

  

                    
  

Ci \f 
OTT eu) company As % of As % of Path Pea haan 

Pere ere spre Pig Crt ET Coe} Pvt iy Other PU Total PU 
Uae) Profit and Loss Pe ci] Ce ee) 

Income bites D iT) 

Parent 

Optimus Finance Limited 32.33% 2,045.54 2.88% 23.72 0.00% - 2.67% 23.72 

(Previous Year) 34.11% 1,761.73 1.40% 10.34 0.00% - 1.31% 10.34 

Subsidiaries 

Indian Subsidiary 

Maximus International Limited 44.07% 2,788.37 61.02% 501.79 61.24% 40.18 61.04% 541.97 

(Previous Year) 46.02% 2,376.94 59.84% 442.26 63.63% 31.63 60.08% 473.89 

Foreign Subsidiaries 

NA 

Intercompany Elimination and -14.91% (943.51) 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 

Consolidation Adjustments 

(Previous Year) -20.19% (1,042.67) 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 

Minority Interest in subsidiary 38.51% 2,436.32 36.10% 296.83 38.76% 25.43 36.29% 322.26 

(Previous Year) 40.06% 2,068.80 38.76% 286.50 36.37% 18.08 38.61% 304.58 

Total 100.00% 6,326.71 100.00% 822.33 100.00% 65.61 100.00% 887.94 

Previous year figures are in bracket | 100.00% 5,164.81 100.00% 739.10 100.00% 49.71 100.00% 788.81 
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41. Fair Value Measurements 

Financial instruments by category 

Cra lcd eee 4 As at March 31, 2023 
ela alll 

aude a0 ial ahi a Ua 

  

Cost Corer g 

Financial Assets 

  

Investments 

- Equity Instruments (At Cost) - - - - - - 

Trade Receivables - - 4,383.84 - - 4,295.51 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 65.34 - - 217.30 

Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 120.83 - - - 

Loan - - 1,408.58 - - 1,285.19 

Other Financial assets - - 1,314.89 - - 591.95 

Total Financial Assets - 7,293.47 - - 6,389.95   

Financial Liabilities 

                  Borrowings - - 1,492.80 - - 573.68 

Trade payables - - 1,041.23 - - 2,096.05 

Other Financial liability - - 106.50 - - 116.40 

Total Financial Liabilities - - 2,640.53 - - 2,786.13   

(1) Fair value hierarchy 

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments 

that are recognized and measured at fair value and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To 

provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has classified its 

financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the Indian accounting standard. An explanation of each 

level follows underneath the table. 

Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements 

As at March 31, 2024 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial Assets 

Financial Investments at FVTPL 

Equity Instruments - - - - 

  
Total Financial Assets - - - - 

Financial Liabilities 

Total Financial Liabilities 

  

                  

Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements 

As at March 31, 2023 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial Assets 

Financial Investments at FVTPL 

Equity Instruments - - - - 

  
Total Financial Assets - - - - 

Financial Liabilities - : . . 

Total Financial Liabilities - - - - 

  

                  

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity 

instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is 

valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation 

techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific 

estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in 

level 2. 
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Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included 

in level 3. 

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year. 

The group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the 

reporting period. 

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value 

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include: 

- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments 

- the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted analysis. 

The carrying amount of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loan, trade payables, borrowings and other 

financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair value, due to their short - term nature. 

41, Financial Risk Management 

The group's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the group's risk 

management framework. 

The group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the group, to set 

appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly 

to reflect changes in market conditions and the group's activities. 

A. Credit risk 

Risk for Loan 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if customers or counter party to a financial instruments fails to meet its 

contractual obligations and arises principally from the Group's receivables from the loan extended to the customers. 

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit 

worthiness of customers to which the Group grants the loans. The Group has a comprehensive framework for 

monitoring credit quality of its loans primarily based on days past due monitoring at period end. Repayment by loans 

and customer portfolio is tracked regularly and required steps for recovery are taken through follow ups and legal 

recourse. 

Risk for Trade Receivable 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if customers or counter party to a financial instruments fails to meet its 

contractual obligations and arises principally from the group's receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed 

through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to 

which the group grants the credit terms in the normal course of business. The group establishes an allowance for 

doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimates of current losses in respect of trade and other receivables. 

(i) Credit risk management 

The group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The 

demographics of the customer and including the default risk of the industry, also has an influence on credit risk 

assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the 

creditworthiness of customers to which the group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. 

The group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant 

increase in credit risk the group compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of 

default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information 

such as: 
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i, Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business; 

ii. Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty; 

iii, Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to 

meet its obligations; 

iv. Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty; 

v. Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party 

guarantees or credit enhancements. 

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage 

in a repayment plan with the group. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the group continues to engage in 

enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as 

income in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii) Trade Receivable 

The group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, 

demographics of the customer, default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates. Credit risk is 

managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of 

customers to which the group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The group has used expected credit 

loss model for assessing the impairment loss. 

  

Pela Ley PX eM ela er4 te As at March 31, 2023 

Trade Receivable 4403.08 4311.58 

Allowance For Expected Credit loss Allowance 19.25 16.07 

Percentage 0.44% 0.37% 
  

iii) Cash and Cash Equivalent 

As at the year end, the Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 65.34 Lakhs (PY Rs. 217.30 Lakhs). The cash and 

cash equivalents, other bank balances are held with banks having good credit rating. 

  

iv) Loans 

Particulars OER wears rs As at March 31, 2023 

Intercorporate deposits 1409.29 1285.19 

Allowance For Expected Credit loss Allowance 0.71 0.00 

Percentage 0.05% 0.00% 
  

v) Other Financial Assets 

a) Interest Accured on Deposits 

  

Particulars As on 31st March, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Interest Accured on Deposits 9.31 4.60 

Allowance For Expected Credit loss Allowance 2.21 0.00 

Percentage 23.73% 0.00% 
  

b) Other financial assets are neither past over due nor impaired 

Reconcilation of Expected loss allowance provision 
  

Loss allowance as on 01-04-2022 20.89 

Changes in loss allowance (4.82) 

Loss allowance as on 31-03-2023 16.07 

Changes in loss allowance 6.10 

Loss allowance as on 31-03-2024 22.17       
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B. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The responsibility for liquidity risk management 

rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the 

management of the group's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management 

requirements. The group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve 

borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles 

of financial assets and liabilities. 

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities 

The tables herewith analyze the group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual 

maturities for: 

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal 

their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars RE LC LM CTL Total 

As at March 31, 2024 

Non-derivatives 

Borrowing 1,216.51 276.29 1,492.80 

Lease liability 6.52 1.74 8.26 

Trade payables 1,041.23 - 1,041.23 

Other financial liabilities 6.20 92.03 98.23 

Total Non-derivative liabilities 2,270.46 370.07 2,640.53 

As at March 31, 2023 

Non-derivatives 

          
  

Borrowing 475.10 98.58 573.68 

Lease liability 7.08 8.97 16.05 

Trade payables 2,096.05 - 2,096.05 

Other financial liabilities 5.07 95.28 100.35 

Total Non-derivative liabilities 2,583.31 202.83 2,786.13 

Cc. Market Risk 

(i) Price Risk 

The group is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investments in equity instrument. The price risk arises due to 

uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. The above instruments risk are arises due to 

uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. 

Management Policy 

The group maintains its portfolio in accordance with the framework set by the Risk management Policies. Any new 

investment or divestment must be approved by the board of directors. 

(ii) Currency Risk 

Currency Risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 

Foreign Currency risk arise majorly on account of export sales, import purchase, and foreign loan given. The group's 

foreign currency exposures are managed in accordance with its foreign exchange risk management policy and are 

regularly reviewed by the group. 
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43. Capital Management 

Risk management 

For the purpose of the group's capital management, equity includes equity share capital and all other equity reserves 

attributable to the equity holders of the group. The group manages its capital to optimize returns to the shareholders 

and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements. The group's 

objectives are to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its 

business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth and maximize the shareholders 

value. The group funds its operation through internal accruals. The management and Board of Directors monitor the 

return on capital. 

44. Additional Disclosure 

i. The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 

group for holding any Benami property. 

ii, The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off. 

iii. The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period/year. 

iv. The Group has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (suchas, search or survey 

or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.) 

v. TheGroupis not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. 

vi. The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement during the year. 

vii. The company has only one subsidiary in India. Therefore section 2(87) of the Companies Act read with Companies 

(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable to the company. 

viii, The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

ix. The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 

with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

45. Our Foreign Step Down subsidiary - Maximus Global FZE (MGF) and Subsidiary company of a foreign step-down 

subsidiary — Maximus Lubricants LLC (MLL) has entered into the triparty agreement with Neo lubritech FZ-LLC (NEO) 

during the year wherein MGF and MLL has off set their receivable and payable balances to/from NEO. MGF has agreed 

to offset net receivable from NEO amounting to AED 14,148,498 against net payable by MLL to NEO amounting to AED 

9,142,802, resulting in a net receivable of AED 5,005,696 by MGF from NEO. 

46. The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the Board of 

Directors on 29th May, 2024. The financial statements as approved by the Board of Directors are subject to final 

approval by its Shareholders. 

47.The figures of previous year have been re-arranged, disclosed and regrouped wherever necessary to make them 

comparable with those of the current year. 
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